
 

 High Peak Borough Council 

 
 

 
THE EXECUTIVE AGENDA 
 

You can view the 
agenda online by using 

a smart phone camera 
and scanning the code 
below: 

 
 

Date: 
 

Thursday, 6 October 2022 

Time: 
 

6.00 pm 

Venue: 

 

The Board Room, Pavilion Gardens, Buxton 

28 September 2022 

 

PART 1 

1. Apologies for absence  

2. Declarations of Interest  

 i) Disclosable Pecuniary Interests 

ii) Other Interests 
 

 

3. To approve the minutes of the previous meeting (Pages 3 - 6) 

4. Revised Local Council Tax Reduction Scheme (Pages 7 - 16) 

5. First Quarter Financial, Procurement & Performance Review 2022/23 (Pages 17 - 
52) 

6. East Midlands Devolution Deal (Pages 53 - 74) 

7. Response to the Energy Crisis  

8. Joint Procurement Strategy 2022-25 (Pages 75 - 108) 

9. Refreshed Sport and Physical Activity Strategy (Pages 109 - 144) 

10. To resolve that the public and press be excluded from the meeting for the following 
items because there may be disclosure to them of exempt information as defined in 

Part 1 of Schedule 12A of the Local Government Act 1972.  

PART 2 

11. To approve the exempt minutes of the previous meeting (Pages 145 - 146) 

 (Paragraph 3 - Information relating to the financial or business affairs of any 

particular person (including the authority holding that information) ) 
 

12. Application for write off of non- recoverable debts (Pages 147 - 152) 

 

Public Document Pack



 (Paragraph 1 - Information relating to any individual. ) 
 

13. New Staff Pay Grade Structure (Pages 153 - 184) 

 (Paragraph 1 - Information relating to any individual. ) 
 

14. Proposals for the Delivery of the DFG Programme (Pages 185 - 218) 

 (Paragraph 3 - Information relating to the financial or business affairs of any 
particular person (including the authority holding that information) ) 
 

15. Leisure Facilities Improvement Plan and Operating Model Proposals (Pages 219 - 

244) 

 (Paragraph 3 - Information relating to the financial or business affairs of any 
particular person (including the authority holding that information) ) 

 
 
MARK TRILLO 
EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR AND MONITORING OFFICER 
 

Membership of The Executive 
Councillor A McKeown (Chair) Councillor D Greenhalgh (Vice-Chair) 

Councillor A Barrow Councillor F Sloman 
Councillor J Todd  

 



 
 

 

 
THE EXECUTIVE 

 
Meeting: Thursday, 11 August 2022 at 6.00 pm in The Board Room, Pavilion Gardens, 

Buxton 

 

Present: Councillor A McKeown (Chair)   
 

 Councillors A Barrow, D Greenhalgh, F Sloman and J Todd 

 
 Councillors T Ashton and J Collins were also in attendance.   

 
23/12 DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST 

(Agenda Item 2) 
 

There were no declarations made. 

 
23/13 TO APPROVE THE MINUTES OF THE PREVIOUS MEETING 

(Agenda Item 3) 
 

RESOLVED: 

 
That the minutes of the meeting held on 23 June 2022 be approved as a 
correct record. 

 
23/14 HOMELESS STRATEGY 

(Agenda Item 4) 
 

The report outlined to members the Derbyshire wide Homeless Strategy for 

2022-27, which had been developed through close collaboration with all 
Derbyshire Housing leads for each authority, Portfolio holders, NHS, Police, 

Probation and voluntary sector agencies.  The report was considered by the 
Community Select Committee on 6 July 2022.  It was confirmed that the 
report has been circulated to all councillors and outside agencies. 

 
Options considered: 
 

As detailed in the report. 
 
RESOLVED: 

 
That the content of the report and the delivery of the Homelessness strategy 
county wide be noted and supported.  

 
23/15 FOURTH QUARTER FINANCIAL, PROCUREMENT AND PERFORMANCE 

REVIEW 2021/22 

(Agenda Item 5) 
 

The purpose of the report was to inform members of the Council’s overall 
performance and financial position for the period ended 31st March (“Fourth 

Quarter 2021/22”) The report was considered by the Corporate Select 
Committee on 25 July 2022.  The position was summarised as follows: 
 

 High Peak Borough Council 

 

Page 3

Agenda Item 3



The Executive 
Thursday, 11 August 2022 

 

 
 

Subject Headline Reference 

Finance The Finance headlines for the Fourth Quarter were: 

Performance against Budget 

 At the Quarter Four stage the General Fund provisional outturn for 
2021/22 was an underspend of £2,103,407  

Efficiency Programme 

 The savings target for 2021/22 had been achieved in the year. 

Housing Revenue Account 

 The Housing Revenue Account was in surplus (against budget) by 
£693,282 at the Quarter Four (provisional outturn) stage. 

Capital Programme 

 The General Fund Capital Programme budget for 2021/22 as 

revised is £4.95 million.  The outturn is £4.44 million, 
representing an underspend of £0.51 million at year end. 

 The HRA Programme for 2021/22 as revised is £6.40 million.  The 
outturn is £6.24 million which represents a £0.16 million 
underspend. 

Treasury Management 

 Cash investments held at 31st March 2022 totalled £30 million. 
 Council borrowing at 31st March 2022 totalled £66.8 million. 

 The Council’s net interest general fund budget is in surplus by 
£77,981. 

Revenue Collection 

 98.10% of Council Tax was collected by 31
st
 March 2022, compared 

to 97.84% for the same period last year. 

 98.70% of Business Rates was collected by 31st March 2022 
compared with 98.12% for the same period last year. 

 At the end of Quarter Four the value of sundry debt over 60 days old 
was £140,275 which compares to £182,978 at 31st March 2021 

Appendix 

A 

Procurement The Procurement headlines for the Fourth Quarter were: 

 20 procurement activities were completed  

 The Procurement forward plan included 21 procurement 

activities for completion/start in 2022/23 (either HPBC only or 
joint) 

 At the 31st March 2022, 52% of procurement activity undertaken was 
on the forward plan. 

Appendix 

B  

Performance The Performance headlines for the Fourth Quarter were: 

 68% of the key performance indicators met target, with 42% 

Appendix C 

Page 4



The Executive 
Thursday, 11 August 2022 

 

 
 

Subject Headline Reference 

of measures performing  better than last year 

 The Council received 108 complaints, 461 comments and 72 
compliments in the Fourth Quarter.  

 
 

Options considered: 
 
Detailed Analysis was contained within the appendices. 
 
RESOLVED: 

 

1. That the Fourth Quarter 2021/22 financial, procurement and performance 
position detailed in Appendices A, B and C and summarised at 3.3 of the 

covering report be noted. 
 

2. That the allocation of the surplus on the General Fund Revenue Account 

to reserves as explained in Appendix A (paragraph 2.11) be approved. 
 

3. That the proposal to carry forward unspent revenue budget as described in 
Appendix A (Paragraph 2.14) be approved. 

 

4. That the proposals to carry forward unspent capital budget as set out in 
Appendix A (Paragraph 6.5 and 7.5) be approved. 

 
23/16 LOCAL DEVELOPMENT SCHEME 

(Agenda Item 6) 
 

The purpose of the report was to consider and agree the new Local 

Development Scheme that establishes the timetable for proposed planning 
policy documents, including the updated High Peak Local Plan and 
Developer Contributions Supplementary Planning Document.   It was 

reported that the Levelling Up and Regeneration Bill may have an impact on 
the Local Development Scheme and that typographical errors would be 
corrected. 

 
Options considered: 

 
The Council must publish an updated Local Development Scheme. The 
timescales proposed for the Local Plan and Developer Contributions SPD 

are considered to be the most expedient possible having regard to the 
requirements in the regulations and the Council’s Statement of Community 

Involvement and the level of resource available  to support plan making.   
 
RESOLVED: 

 
1. That the content of the proposed Local Development Scheme be noted. 

 
2. That the continued role of Local Plan Steering Group be noted. 
 

3. That the Statement of Community Involvement be reviewed via the Local 
Plan Steering Group. 

 Page 5



The Executive 
Thursday, 11 August 2022 

 

 
 

4. That the Local Development Scheme be approved so that it shall take 
effect from 1st September 2022 (subject to call in). 

 
23/17 HPBC RESPONSE TO THE ENERGY CRISIS 

(Agenda Item 7) 
 

A report would be issued shortly with regards to the Council’s response to 
the energy crisis. 

 
23/18 TO RESOLVE THAT THE PUBLIC AND PRESS BE EXCLUDED FROM 

THE MEETING FOR THE FOLLOWING ITEMS BECAUSE THERE MAY BE 
DISCLOSURE TO THEM OF EXEMPT INFORMATION AS DEFINED IN 
PART 1 OF SCHEDULE 12A OF THE LOCAL GOVERNMENT ACT 1972. 

(Agenda Item 8) 
 

RESOLVED: 
 
That the press and public be excluded from the meeting during 

consideration of the following item of business as there may be disclosure of 
exempt information as defined in Part I of Schedule 12A of the Local 

Government Act 1972. 
 

23/19 TO APPROVE THE EXEMPT MINUTES OF THE PREVIOUS MEETING 

(Agenda Item 9) 
 

RESOLVED: 
 
That the exempt minutes of the meeting held on 23 June 2022 be approved 

as a correct record. 
 
 

The meeting concluded at 6.20 pm 
 

 
 
 

 
CHAIRMAN 

 

Page 6



  

 
HIGH PEAK BOROUGH COUNCIL 

 

The Executive 
 

6 October 2022 
 

 
TITLE: 

 

Revised Local Council Tax Reduction 
Scheme 

 
EXECUTIVE 
COUNCILLOR: 

 
Councillor A Barrow - Executive Councillor 
for Corporate Services and Finance 

 
CONTACT OFFICER: 

 
Martin Owen – Executive Director (Finance & 

Customer Services )    
Joanne Wheeldon - Head of Revenues and 
Benefits 

 
WARDS INVOLVED: 

 

 
Non-Specific 

  

 

 
 
1. Reason for the Report 

 

1.1 The purpose of this report is to request permission to undertake a consultation 

with both the public and the Major Precepting Authorities in respect of 
proposed changes to the Council’s Council Tax Reduction Scheme with effect 
from 1st April 2023. 

 
1.2 Each year the Council is required to review its Council Tax Reduction Scheme 

in accordance with the requirements of the schedule 1A of the Local 
Government Finance Act 1992 and to ither maintain the scheme or replace it. 
 

1.3 Council Tax Reduction (CTR) was introduced from 1 April 2013 when it 
replaced the Central Government funded Council Tax Benefit regime. From its 

inception, the funding available to the Council from government has reduced 
year on year. 
 

1.4 As with the majority of authorities within England, the Borough Council needs 
to make changes to the CTR scheme for working age applicants (the scheme 

for pension age applicants in prescribed by Central Government) in order to 
reduce the significant administrative burden placed on the Council by the 
introduction of Universal Credit. 

 
1.5 This report requests permission to consult on changes proposed to the 

scheme and makes recommendation to members for the 2023/24 scheme 
 

Page 7

Agenda Item 4



  

 
2. Recommendation 

2.1 That the Executive approve that the  Council consult with the public and Major 

Precepting Authorities on the introduction of a new income banded / grid 
scheme for working age applicants with effect from 1st April 2023, to reduce 

the significant administrative burden placed on the Council by the introduction 
of Universal Credit and to target the overall level of support for the lowest 
income families. 

 
3. Executive Summary 

 
3.1 When Council Tax Reduction was introduced in 2013, for working age 

applicants, the Council broadly adopted the previous means tested Council 

Tax Benefit scheme as the basis of awarding support and was able to 
maintain the maximum level of support at 100% for those households on the 

lowest income. Since that time only minor changes have been made to bring 
the scheme into line with either Housing Benefit or Universal Credit. 

 The introduction of Universal Credit within the area has, as experienced in all 

other areas, brought a number of significant challenges to both the 
administration of Council Tax Reduction and also the collection of Council Tax 

generally.  
 It is clear that the existing means tested Council Tax Reduction scheme, which 

is too reactive to change, will not be viable in the longer term now that 

Universal Credit has been rolled out fully within the area and with the massive 
increase in Universal Credit claimants due to the COVID-19 crisis. The 
proposal to move to a new more efficient scheme from 2023 is now 

imperative. 
 Clearly there is a need now to simplify the scheme, not only to mitigate the 

effects of Universal Credit, but also make it easier for customers to make a 
claim and to reduce the costs of administration significantly. 
The proposed new scheme includes more targeted support  to those 

households on the lowest of incomes than in the current scheme and changes 
can only be made to the working age schemes. Pensioners will continue to be 

protected by the legislation prescribed by Government. 
 
 
4.        How this report links to Corporate Priorities  
 

4.1   Aim 1 -  Financial inclusion. Review LCTR Scheme  
 
5. Alternative Options 

 
5.1 The alternative to introducing a new scheme for Council Tax Reduction from 

2023/24 is to leave the existing scheme in place. This would be a short-term 
option; lead to the continuation of increasing costs of administration; and in the 
longer term, significantly affect the collection of Council Tax and the 

effectiveness of the scheme to support households within the Council’s area. If 
the existing scheme remains, our proposal would be to remove the calculation 

letter that accompanies the bill currently and set a monetary limit on the 
changes to Universal Credit reported by the DWP, so that there are fewer 

Page 8



  

changes to Local Council Tax Reduction. In addition, we would allow using the 
amount of Income advised by DWP without any adjustment, in order to aid 
automation and increase the allowable time for backdating where good cause 

is shown to 6 months. 
 

 
6. Implications 

 

6.1
  

Community Safety - (Crime and Disorder Act 1998) 
None 

 
6.2 Workforce 

The introduction of a new scheme will involve a period of training 

for all members in the team , due to the change in the way benefit 
would be awarded. 

 
6.3 Equality and Diversity/Equality Impact Assessment 

The move to the new scheme will either have a neutral or positive 

affect to the majority of working age claimants. From initial 
modelling 4307 claimants will receive the same or more support 

that under the previous scheme. 
 
Based on the modelling of our changes there will be up to 430 

claimants who may receive less support that previous. In all of 
those cases, further support will be available through the Council’s 
Exceptional Hardship Fund. 

 
A full EIA will be completed once the full consultation process has 

been completed. 
 
 

6.4 The current Council Tax Reduction scheme costs approximately 
£5.92m which is borne by the Council’s Collection Fund. Costs are 

shared between the Council and the Major Precepting Authorities 
in the following proportions: 

 Borough Council 11.6% 

 The County Council 71.6% 

 Police and Crime Commissioner 12.7% 

 Fire and Rescue Service 4.1% 
 

The approach and ‘shape’ of the scheme is changing, and the 
overall approach will be to provide additional support to those 

households on the very lowest incomes. There is no intention to 
reduce the level of support available to other households. Based 
on current modelling, were the new scheme to be in place at the 

current time, the costs would be at the samelevel as at present 
namely £6.32m 

Financial modelling has been undertaken and will continue to be 

Page 9



  

undertaken throughout the project. 

6.5 Legal 
Schedule 1A (3) of the Local Government Finance Act 1992, 

states: 
Before making a scheme, the authority must: 

 consult any major precepting authority which has power to 
issue a precept to it, 

 publish a draft scheme in such manner as it thinks fit, and 

 consult such other persons as it considers are likely to have 
an interest in the operation of the scheme. 

In addition, in order to set a new scheme, the Council is obliged to 
make a resolution by 11th March of the year prior to the scheme 

coming into place 
 
 

6.6 Climate Change 
None 

 
 

6.7 

 

Consultation 

A full consultation will be undertaken in line with the statutory 
requirement with: 

 Derbyshire County Council, 

 Derbyshire Police and Crime Commissioner;  

 Derbyshire Fire and Rescue Service;and 

 The public 
6.8 

 

Risk Assessment 

None 

 
Martin Owen 

Executive Director (Finance and Customer Services) 
 
Web Links and 

Background Papers 

Contact details 

 

 
 
 

 
 

Joanne Wheeldon 

Head of Revenues and Benefits 
joanne.wheeldon@staffsmoorlands.g
ov.uk 

 
 

 
 
 

 
7. Detail 

 

7.1 Council Tax Reduction (CTR) was introduced by Central Government in April 
2013 as a replacement for the Council Tax Benefit scheme administered on 

Page 10



  

behalf of the Department for Work and Pensions (DWP). As part of the 
introduction, the Government: 

 Placed the duty to create a local scheme for Working Age applicants 

with billing authorities; 

 Reduced initial funding by the equivalent of ten per cent from the levels 

paid through benefit subsidy to authorities under the previous Council 
Tax Benefit scheme; and 

 Prescribed that persons of Pension age would be dealt with under 

regulations set by Central Government and not the authorities’ local 
scheme. 

 
7.2 Since that time, funding for the Council Tax Reduction scheme has been 

amalgamated into other Central Government grants paid to Local Authorities 
and also within the Business Rates Retention regime. It is now generally 
accepted that it is not possible to identify the amount of funding actually 

provided from Central Government sources. 
 

7.3 The current Council Tax Reduction scheme administered by the Council is 
divided into two schemes, with pension age applicants receiving support under 
the rules prescribed by Central Government, and the scheme for working age 

applicants being determined solely by the local authority.  
 

7.4 Pensioners, subject to their income, can receive up to 100 per cent support 
towards their council tax. The Council has no power to change the level of 
support provided to pensioners and therefore any changes to the level of CTR 

can only be made to the working age scheme. 
 

7.5 When Council Tax Reduction was introduced in 2013, for working age 
applicants, the Council broadly adopted the previous means tested Council 
Tax Benefit scheme as the basis of awarding support and was able to 

maintain the maximum level of support at 100% for those households on the 
lowest income.  

 
7.6 Since that time only minor changes have been made to bring the scheme into 

line with either Housing Benefit or Universal Credit. 

 
The main issues with the current scheme 

 
7.7 There are several issues with the current scheme that will need addressing if 

the system is to continue to provide effective support to low-income taxpayers 

and also if  the Council is able to provide the service in an efficient manner. 
The main issues are as follows: 

 The introduction of Universal Credit for working age applicants; and 

 The need for a simplification of the scheme to aid its understanding by 
local residents and in its operational delivery by the Council 

 
7.8 Each of the above are examined in detail below: 
 
Council Tax Reduction and the roll out of Universal Credit 

 

Page 11



  

7.9 The introduction of Universal Credit within the area has, as experienced in all 
other areas, brought a number of significant challenges to both the 
administration of Council Tax Reduction and also the collection of Council Tax 

generally. All Councils have experienced the following: 

 The reluctance of Universal Credit claimants to make a prompt claim for 

Council Tax Reduction leading to a loss in entitlement; 

 A high number of changes to Universal Credit cases are received from the 
Department for Work and Pensions requiring a change to Council Tax 

Reduction entitlement. On average 40% of Universal Credit claimants have 
between eight and twelve changes in entitlement per annum. These 

changes result in amendments to Council Tax liability, the re-calculation of 
instalments, delays, and the demonstrable loss in collection; and 

 The increased costs of administration through multiple changes with 

significant additional staff and staff time being needed. 
 

7.10 It is clear that the existing means tested Council Tax Reduction scheme, which 
is too reactive to change, will not be viable in the longer term now that 

Universal Credit has been rolled out fully within the area and with the massive 
increase in Universal Credit claimants due to the COVID-19 crisis. The move 
to a new more efficient scheme from 2023 is now imperative. 

 
The need for a simplified approach to the Council Tax Reduction Scheme. 

 
7.11 Notwithstanding the introduction of Universal Credit, the existing scheme is 

based on an ‘old fashioned;’ means tested benefit scheme. It has major 

defects namely: 

 It is complex for customers to understand and is based on a complex 

calculation of entitlement; 

 The administration for staff is complex, with staff having to request 
significant amounts of information from applicants; 

 Staff have to undergo significant training to be proficient in processing 
claims; 

 The timescales for processing applications is lengthy, mainly due to the 
complexity and evidence required to support the applications; and 

 The administration of the scheme is costly when compared to other 
discounts for Council Tax.  

 
7.12 Clearly there is a need now to simplify the scheme, not only to mitigate the 

effects of Universal Credit, but also make it easier for customers to make a 

claim and to reduce the costs of administration significantly. 
 
 

The proposed approach for the 2023/24 Council Tax Reduction Scheme 
 

7.13 In view of the problems being experienced with the current scheme, it is 
proposed that an alternative approach be taken from 2023/24. The approach 
has been to fundamentally review and redesign the scheme to address all of 

the issues with the current scheme and in particular; 
(a) The problems with the introduction of full-service Universal Credit; and 

(b) The significant increase in administration costs due to the high level of 
changes received in respect of Universal Credit;  

Page 12



  

 
7.14 Work has been ongoing since early this year on a new scheme which is now 

complete. Consultation now needs to be undertaken with the public and the 

major precepting authorities. If accepted by the Council, the new scheme will 
take effect from 1st April 2023.  

 
7.15 The proposed new scheme has a number of features as follows: 

 More targeted support shall be given to those households on the lowest 

of incomes than in the current scheme; 
 The changes can only be made to the working age schemes as the 

current schemes for pensioners are prescribed by Central Government; 

 The current means - tested schemes will be replaced by a simple income 

grid model as shown below: 
 

  

Discount 
Band 

Discount 
Single 

Person   

Single 
person 

with one 

child 

Single 

person 
with two or 

more 
children 

Couple 
Couple 

with one 

child 

Couple 
with two or 

more 

children 

Weekly income ranges 

Band 1* 100%  
£0 - 

£95.00 
£0 - 

£160.00 
£0 - 

£220.00  
£0-£140.00 

£0 -
£205.00 

£0 - 
£260.00  

Band 2 75%  
£95.01 - 
£155.00 

£160.01 -
£220.00 

£220.01 - 
£290.00 

£140.01 - 
£210.00 

£205.01 - 
£270.00 

£260.01 -
£330.00  

Band 3 50%  
£155.01 

-
£190.00 

£220.01 - 
£255.00 

£290.01– 
£345.00 

£210.01 -
£260.00 

£270.01 – 
£310.00 

£330.01 -
£390.00 

Band 4 25%  
£190.01 

- 
£235.00 

£255.01 - 
£290.00 

£345.01 – 
£400.00 

£260.01 
£310.00 

£310.01 - 
£360.00 

£390.01 -
£430.00 

  0%  
Over 

£235.00 
Over 

£290.00 
Over 

£400.00 
Over 

£310.00 
Over 

£360.00 
Over £430.00  

 

 It is proposed that the highest level of discount will continue to be at a 
maximum level of liability (100%), Band 1, and all current applicants that 

are in receipt of a ‘*passported benefit’ such as Income Support, 
Jobseeker’s Allowance (Income Based) and Employment and Support 
Allowance (Income Related) receive maximum discount: 

 All other discount levels are based on the applicant’s and partner’s, 
(where they have one) net income; 

 

 The scheme allows for variation in household size with the levels of 
income per band increasing where an applicant has a partner, and / or 

dependants; 
 

Page 13



  

 There will be no charges made where an applicant had non-dependants 
living with them. This is a significant change and means that the 
administration of the scheme will be more straightforward whilst also 

protecting low-income families where adult sons and daughters for 
example remain at home; 

 

 To encourage work, a standard £25 per week disregard will be provided 
against all earnings This will take the place of the current standard 

disregards and additional earnings disregards. Where a family also 
receives a childcare disregard (for childcare costs not paid for by Central 

Government schemes), the income levels in the ‘grid scheme’ are set at a 
higher rate;  

 Disability benefits such as Disability Living Allowance and Personal 

Independence Allowance will continue to be disregarded; 

 Where any applicant, their partner or dependant child (ren) are disabled, a 

further disregard of £50 per week will be given, thereby maintaining the 
current level of support to those with disabilities; 

 Carer’s Allowance and the Support Component of Employment and 
Support Allowance will be disregarded; 

 Child benefit and Child Maintenance will be disregarded; 

 An amount in respect of the housing element, within Universal credit will 
be disregarded; 

 The total disregard on war pensions and war disablement pensions will 
continue; 

 Extended payments will be removed; and 

 The capital limit of  £6,000 with no tariff (or assumed income) being 

applied 

How the new scheme will address the problems with the current Council Tax 
Reduction  

7.16 With the simplicity of the proposed new scheme and by taking a more ‘Council 
Tax discount approach’, it will address the problems associated with the 

increased administration caused by failings in the current scheme and 
Universal Credit as follows: 

 The scheme will require a simplified claiming process. All applicants 

will see a significant reduction in the claiming process and, where possible, 
Council Tax Reduction will be awarded automatically. For Universal Credit 

applicants any Universal Credit data received from the Department for 
Work and Pensions (DWP) will be treated as a claim for Council Tax 

Reduction. Where information is received from DWP, the entitlement to 
Council Tax Reduction will be processed automatically without the need to 
request further information from the taxpayer. These changes will have the 

following distinct advantages namely: 

Page 14



  

o Speed of processing – all claims will be able to be calculated promptly 

and largely automatically without the need to request further information 
which inevitably leads to delays;  

o Maximising entitlement to every applicant. As there will no 

requirement for Universal Credit applicants to apply separately for 

Council Tax Reduction, and for all other applicants, the claiming 
process will be simplified significantly. Entitlement to Council Tax 
Reduction will be maximised with a reduced risk of loss of discount or 

the need for backdating; 

o Maintenance of collection rates – the new scheme will avoid constant 

changes in discount, the need for multiple changes in instalments and 
therefore assist in maintaining the high collection rates currently 
achieved. The increased level of discount will assist all those applicants 

on the lowest levels of income, again improving the overall collection 
rate; 

 The income bands are sufficiently wide to avoid constant changes in 
discount. The current Council Tax Reduction scheme is very reactive and 

will alter even if the overall change to the person’s liability is small. This is 

leading to constant changes in Council Tax liability, the need to recalculate 
monthly instalments and the requirement to issue a large number of 

Council Tax demands. The effect of this is that Council Tax collection is 
reduced. The new scheme, with its simplified income banding approach will 
have the following advantages: 

o Only significant changes in income will affect the level of discount 
awarded; 

o Council Taxpayers who receive Council Tax Reduction will not receive 
multiple Council Tax demands and adjustments to their instalments; 
and 

o The new scheme is designed to reflect a more modern approach, 
where any discount changes it will be effective from the day of the 

change rather than the Monday of the following week. 

Transition to the new scheme and the Exceptional Hardship Scheme 

7.17 The Council must be mindful that any change in scheme or a transition to a 

new scheme may have result in a change to the entitlement of certain 
applicants. 

7.18 Inevitably, with any change in scheme, there will be some winners and losers 
although the proposed scheme has been designed to protect the most 
vulnerable. It is proposed that the new scheme will contain additional 

provisions to protect individuals who experience exceptional hardship. Where 
any applicant is likely to experience exceptional hardship, they will be 

encouraged to apply for an exceptional hardship payment. The Council will 
consider all applications for exceptional hardship on an individual basis, taking 
into account available income and essential outgoings. Where appropriate 

further support will be given to the applicant.  

Page 15



  

7.19 This approach will enable individual applicants to be dealt with in a fair and 
equitable manner. The Exceptional Hardship Scheme will form part of the 
Council Tax Reduction scheme and fall to be paid through the Collection 

Fund. 

 

Page 16



  

 
HIGH PEAK BOROUGH COUNCIL 

 

The Executive 
 

 6 October 2022 

 
 

 
 

 
 
 

 
 

 
 
 

 
 

Appendices Attached 

 Appendix A (2022/23 – First Quarter (Financial Report) 

 Appendix B (2022/23 – First Quarter (Procurement Report)  

 Appendix C (2022/23 – First Quarter (Performance Report) 

 Appendix D (2022/23 – First Quarter (Write-offs (CONFIDENTIAL) 

 

 
1. Reason for the Report  

 
1.1 The purpose of this report is to inform members of the Council’s overall 

performance and financial position for the period ended 30th June (“First 
Quarter 2022/23”) 

 
2. Recommendations 

2.1 It is recommended that the Executive:  
 

 Note the First Quarter 2022/23 financial, procurement and performance 

position detailed in Appendices A, B and C and summarised at 3.3 of this 
covering report; and 

 Approve the write-offs set out in Appendix D 

 
3. Executive Summary 

 
3.1 This report summarises the Council’s performance and financial position after 

considering service activity up to the end of the First Quarter (i.e. 30th  June 
2022).  

 

3.2 Detailed analysis is provided in Appendix A (Finance), Appendix B 
(Procurement) & Appendix C (Performance). 

 

TITLE: First Quarter Financial, Procurement & Performance 
Review 2022/23 

 
EXECUTIVE COUNCILLOR: Cllr Alan Barrow – Executive Councillor for 

Corporate Services and Finance 
  

CONTACT OFFICERS: Keith Pointon – Head of Finance  
Tanya Cooper – Head of OD & Transformation 

   

WARDS INVOLVED:  Non-Specific 

Page 17

Agenda Item 5



  

3.3 The position can be summarised as follows: 
 

Subject Headline Reference 

Finance The Finance headlines for the First Quarter are: 

Performance against Budget 

 At the First Quarter stage the General Fund outturn for 2022/23 is 
projected to be £96,310 underspent  

Efficiency Programme 

 The current Efficiency Programme was delivered in full in 2021/22. 
No savings are programmed to be delivered in 2022/23 

Housing Revenue Account 

 The Housing Revenue Account is predicted to be in deficit (against 
budget) by £1.1million at the Quarter One stage. 

Capital Programme 
 The General Fund Capital Programme budget for 2022/23 as 

revised is £19.5 million.  The projected outturn is currently forecast 
to be to budget at the Quarter One stage. 

 The HRA Programme for 2022/23 as revised is £6.88 million.  The 
projected outturn is forecast to be £7.27 million an overspend of 
£0.39 million compared to budget. 

Treasury Management 
 Cash investments held at 30 June 2022 totalled £31.2 million. 

 Council borrowing at 30 June 2022 totalled £63 million. 

 The Council’s net interest costs are forecast to be £427,870 under 
budget on the general fund and £226,820 over budget on the HRA. 

Revenue Collection 

 28.34% of Council Tax was collected by 30 June 2022, compared to 
28.78% for the same period last year  

 31.15% of Business Rates was collected by 30 June 2022 
compared with 29.10% for the same period last  

 At the end of Quarter One the value of sundry debt over 60 days old 
was £145,240 which compares to £252,450 at 30 June 2021 

Appendix A 

Procurement The Procurement headlines for the First Quarter are: 

 17 procurement activities were completed  

 The Procurement forward plan includes 21 procurement activities for 
completion/start in 2022/23 (either HPBC only or joint) 

 At the 30 June 2022, 34% of procurement activity undertaken was 
on the forward plan. 

Appendix B  

Performance The Performance headlines for the First Quarter are: 

 71% of the key performance indicators on track, with 61% 
performing better than at this point in the previous year. 

 The Council closed 24 complaints, and received  111 comments and 
22 compliments in the First Quarter. 

 

Appendix C 

 
4.       How this Report Links to Corporate Priorities  
 

4.1 The successful delivery of all corporate priorities is dependent upon the 
effective management of performance and financial resources, which is the 

subject of this report. 
 
 
5.       Options and Analysis 

Page 18



  

 

5.1 Detailed Analysis is contained within the appendices 
 

6. Implications 

 

6.1 Community Safety - (Crime and Disorder Act 1998) 
None 
 

6.2 Workforce 
None 

 
6.3 Equality and Diversity/Equality Impact Assessment 

This report has been prepared in accordance with the Council's Equality 

and Diversity policies. 
 

6.4 Financial Considerations 
There are substantial financial considerations contained throughout the 
report. 

 
6.5 Legal 

None 
 

6.6 Sustainability 

None 
 

6.7 External Consultation 
None 

 

6.8       Risk Assessment 
There are a number of risks to the financial position presented, which are 

identified and explained in the financial report attached at Appendix A. 
 
 

 
MARTIN OWEN 

Executive Director (Finance and Customer Services) 

 
Web Links and 

Background Papers 

Location Contact details 

 
Appendices A-C 

 
 

 
Keith Pointon 

01538 395400 Ext. 4193 
Tanya Coper 
01538 395400 Ext. 4146 

 
 

 

Page 19



This page is intentionally left blank



1 
 

 
 

 
 

APPENDIX A 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

2022/23       
First Quarter 

Financial 
Review 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

 

 

Page 21



2 
 

1. Background and Introduction  

 

1.1. In accordance with the Council’s Financial Procedure Rules and recommended 

good practice, a quarterly financial report is presented to members. This is the 
first such report for 2022/23. 

 

1.2. The report summarises overall financial performance for 2022/23 with particular 
emphasis on the key sources of financial risk to the Council. Specific 

considerations are as follows: 
 

 General Fund Revenue Account (Section 2) – considers budgetary 

performance on the General Account by looking at variations in income and 
expenditure and the funding received by the Council.  

 

 Alliance Environmental Services (Section 3) – highlights the performance of 

the Council’s Joint Venture Company providing Waste, Fleet, Street Cleansing 
and Grounds Maintenance services. 
 

 Efficiency and Rationalisation Programme (Section 4) – considers 

progress in achieving the efficiency and rationalisation savings forecast.  
 

 Housing Revenue Account (Section 5) – highlights the budgetary position in 

respect of the operation of the Council’s housing stock. 

 

 General Fund Capital Programme (Section 6) – provides an update to 

Members on progress against the Council’s General Fund capital plans. 

 

 HRA Capital Programme (Section 7 ) – provides an update to Members on 

progress against the Council’s HRA capital plans. 
 

 Treasury Management (Section 8) – sets out the key statistics in terms of 

investments and borrowings. 
 

 Revenue Collection (Section 9) – considers progress-to-date in collecting the 

Council Tax, Business Rates and Sundry Debts. 

 

Page 22



3 
 

2. General Fund Revenue Account 

 

2.1. This section of the report considers the financial performance of the General 
Fund Revenue Account against budget by looking at variations in income and 

expenditure and funding received by the Council. 

Service 2022/23 Budget 
Provisional 

Outturn 
2022/23 

Variance 

Contribution 
to (Use of) 
Earmarked 
Reserves  

Net 
Variance 

  £ £ £ £ £ 

Alliance Leadership Team 58,290 46,790 (11,500) - (11,500) 

Audit 10,240 8,740 (1,500) - (1,500) 

ICT 584,210 584,210 - - - 

Human Resources 69,480 69,480 - - - 

Member Services 260,730 250,730 (10,000) - (10,000) 

Property Services 182,580 403,580 221,000 - 221,000 

Benefits (194,020) (194,020) - - - 

Planning Applications (344,180) (324,180) 20,000 (1,250) 18,750 

Building Control 56,140 56,140 - - - 

Customer Services 144,390 140,390 (4,000) - (4,000) 

Legal Services 30,510 70,510 40,000 - 40,000 

Electoral Services 59,470 59,470 - (2,950) (2,950) 

Licensing and Land Charges (317,750) (275,750) 42,000 - 42,000 

Regeneration 172,630 200,130 27,500 - 27,500 

Communities and Cultural 297,270 292,270 (5,000) - (5,000) 

Housing Strategy** 37,750 37,750 - - - 

Transformation 21,250 20,750 (500) - (500) 

Community Safety and Enforcement 109,580 99,580 (10,000) - (10,000) 

Finance & Procurement 177,650 176,250 (1,400) - (1,400) 

Revenues (293,750) (293,750) - - - 

Corporate Finance* 6,047,540 6,179,340 131,800 (1,300) 130,500 

Waste Collection 2,132,750 1,993,570 (139,180) - (139,180) 

Street Scene 467,920 467,920 - (60) (60) 

Leisure Services 149,940 181,630 31,690 (12,000) 19,690 

Horticulture 358,500 312,020 (46,480) (380) (46,860) 

Environmental Health (30,440) (20,100) 10,340 - 10,340 

            

Net Total of Services 10,248,680 10,543,450 294,770 (17,940) 276,830 

            

Net Interest 1,608,280 1,180,410 (427,870)   (427,870) 

  11,856,960 11,723,860 (133,100) (17,940) (151,040) 

Funding:           

- external (11,396,310) (11,337,280) 59,030   59,030 

- reserves contribution to/(from):           

     general contingency 118,160 118,160 -     

     use of carry forward from 21/22 (21,830) (21,830) -     

     Earmarked - business rates (555,340) (555,340) -   - 

     Earmarked - general (1,640) (23,880) (22,240) 17,940 (4,300) 

            

Projected (Surplus)/Deficit - (96,310) (96,310) - (96,310) 

            

* Staff budgets are currently budgeted within Corporate Finance (except for the staff budget of the Carelink service 
within Housing Strategy which for operational reasons are included within the Service). 

  ** The Council’s Housing management costs are charged to the Housing Revenue Account  

Page 23



4 
 

 

2.2. A revenue budget of £11,835,130 was set for 2022/23. In accordance with 

Financial Procedure Rules, the roll forward of £21,830 in unused budgets from 

2021/22 has been authorised: 

 

 Planning Policy (£10,000): unspent budget in regard to Glossop Gateway 

project. 

 Member Services (£4,000): in respect of Initiatives to increase community 

engagement. 

 Financial Services (£7,830): unspent budget in regard to initiatives to manage 

risk. 

This brings the 2022/23 budget to £11,856,960. 

 
2.3. The table above shows how this budget has been allocated to services. 

 

2.4. The quarter one projected outturn on the General Fund Revenue Account for 
2022/23 is £11,760,650.  This represents a projected underspend for the year of 

£96,310.  
 
2.5. There is one service area with projected significant underspend (>£50,000): 

 
 Waste Collection (£139,180 underspend) – surplus income and reduced 

disposal costs are forecast on Trade Waste. The crystallisation of emerging 
issues experienced by AES (see paragraph 3) may offset or compound this. 

 

2.6. There are two service areas with a projected significant overspends (>£50,000). 
 

 Property Services (£221,000 overspend) – the impact of Glossop Market 

Arcade being closed (£45,000). Impact of the first Quarter of cleaning & 

caretaking being taken over by Norse before the contract start date of 4 th July 
(£76,000). A significant impact on utilities with electricity prices expected to 
increase by 80% from 1st October (£100,000) 

 Corporate Finance (£131,800 overspend) – relates to a shortfall on the 

provision in the MTFP for the 2022/23 pay award. 

 

2.7. The net interest costs, as detailed in section 8, are currently forecast to be in 
surplus by £427,870. 

 

2.8. The level of funding anticipated for the year is currently forecast £36,790 below 

that budgeted due to the following: 
 

 External Funding: (£59,030 reduction) 
 

 Business Rates Retention (£59,030 reduction in funding): It is anticipated that 
the net levy payable to the Derbyshire Business Rates Pool after Pool savings 

will be greater than anticipated due to improved NNDR income in comparison 

Page 24



5 
 

to the budgeted figure. However, this is subject to change as the levy savings 
are partially dependent on the performance of the Pool as a whole. 

 

Movement of Reserves: (£22,240 use) 
 

 

 Other Earmarked Reserves (£22,240 additional usage): These reserves exist 

to match available funding with future projects and activities.  Often it is not 
possible to anticipate when eligible spend will occur and so as the year 

progresses services will identify projects and schemes where earmarked 
reserves can be applied. To date across the authority net usage of these 
reserves amounts to £22,240 more than nominally anticipated at the beginning 

of the year. 
 

3. Alliance Environmental Services 

  

3.1. Alliance Environmental Services Ltd (AES) delivers waste, fleet, street cleansing 

and grounds maintenance services to both High Peak Borough and Staffordshire 
Moorlands District Councils. The Councils are shareholders of the company 

along with Ansa, which is a wholly owned subsidiary of Cheshire East Council. 
 

3.2. AES’s management fee and impact on this Council’s budget is summarised 

below: 

 

2022-23 
General 

Fund 
HRA Total 

 
£ £ £ 

AES base management fee 4,676,600 217,310 4,893,910 

    
Efficiency Rebate (23,880) (1,120) (25,000) 

Allocation of Joint Operation profit tbc tbc tbc 

Contract pressures/ (savings) tbc tbc tbc 

Total management fee payable 4,652,720 216,190 4,868,910 

 
3.3. The AES business plan for all services being delivered to the Council during 

2022/23 includes a budgeted management fee of £4,893,910. The Council will 
also take a share of the total AES forecast efficiency target which is repayable to 
the Council at the end of the year and is allocated against the management fee 

costs. 
 
3.4. Under accounting standards, AES’s financial performance is consolidated in to 

the Councils’ single entity statements as a ‘Joint Operation’ as opposed to 
separate group accounts being reported.  The profit is therefore apportioned 

between the two Councils and the respective services in line with the input of 
original budgeted resources from each department and is offset against the 
management fee costs. 

 
3.5. The profit is therefore apportioned between the two Councils and the respective 

services in line with the input of original budgeted resources from each 

Page 25



6 
 

department and is offset against the management fee costs. 

 

4.       Efficiency and Rationalisation Programme 

 

4.1. This section of the report considers the financial performance of the Council’s 

Efficiency and Rationalisation Programme in 2022/23. 
 

4.2. The current Efficiency and Rationalisation Strategy was approved by Members in 

February 2017 and finished in 2021/22. It had the effect of both reducing 
expenditure and increasing income. The need to grow income is now more of a 

priority as the Council moves more towards being self-financing (that is, not reliant 
on direct government funding such as revenue support grant).  
 

4.3. The strategy was developed with the underlying principles of protecting frontline 
service delivery. It is also intended that the strategy is a tool to enable the Council 

to ensure that its service spending is determined by the established priorities set 
out in the Corporate Plan. It focused primarily on major procurements, the asset 

management plan, growth, income generation and rationalisation.  
 

4.4. No assumptions in respect of any ‘new’ efficiency programme were incorporated 

into the MTFP approved in February 2022.  However, work is underway on a 
Programme to address any challenges faced by the Council in the next budget 

setting process.   
 
4.5. The Authority carries a longstanding reserve earmarked to support the Efficiency 

Strategy which can be drawn on to offset one-off costs of delivering the efficiency 
programme, such as redundancy costs. The reserve currently stands at £200,000. 

It has not been necessary to draw on this reserve in previous years so it remains 
intact to underwrite performance against future savings targets in the Efficiency 
Programme. 

 

5.       Housing Revenue Account (HRA) 
 

5.1. This section of the report considers the financial performance of the Council’s 
Housing Revenue Account and highlights the budgetary position in respect of the 

operation of the Council’s housing stock.  
 

5.2. The 2022/23 Housing Revenue Account budget was originally set to produce a 
deficit of £1,894,070 supported by reserves The Chief Financial Officer has, in 
accordance with Financial Procedure Rules, authorised the roll forward of 

£160,900 in unused budgets from 2021/22 to facilitate completion of capital 
component works.  This brought the 2022/23 budget to a deficit of £2,054,970 and 

will be supported by reserves. 
 

5.3. Provisional outturn expenditure on the Housing Revenue Account at the first 

quarter stage is £18,602,480 with estimated income of £15,437,950. This 
represents a deficit for the year of £6,164,532 (i.e. £1,109,560 over budget – 

Page 26



7 
 

meaning more reserves are required to fund HRA activities in year). 
 

 
 

Housing Revenue Account 
2022/23 

Projection 

Quarter 
1 

Changes 

2022/23 
Revised 

Budget 

2022/23 
Expected 

Outturn 

Variance 

  £         

Repairs & Maintenance 4,664,260   4,664,260 5,088,400 424,140 

Supervision & Management  2,804,230   2,804,230 2,831,090 26,860 

Rates, Rents, Taxes, Other 
Charges  

109,130   109,130 109,130 0 

Other Operating Expenditure 806,290   806,290 806,290 0 

Depreciation & Impairment 
Charges 

2,099,030   2,099,030 2,183,000 83,970 

Interest & Debt Management 
Charges 

2,264,210   2,264,210 2,491,030 226,820 

HRA Contribution to Capital 

Programme 
4,543,790 160,900 4,704,690 5,093,540 388,850 

      0   0 

Total Expenditure 17,290,940 160,900 17,451,840 18,602,480 1,150,640 

Dwellings Rents (14,714,840)   
(14,714,840

) 
(14,697,800

) 
17,040 

Non - Dwelling Rents & Other 

Income 
(682,030)   (682,030) (740,150) (58,120) 

      0   0 

Total Income (15,396,870) 0 
(15,396,870

) 
(15,437,950

) 
(41,080) 

      0   0 

(Surplus) / Deficit for year 1,894,070 160,900 2,054,970 3,164,530 1,109,560 

Use of Reserves (1,894,070) 
(160,900

) 
(2,054,970) (3,164,530) 

(1,109,560
) 

In Year Deficit (Surplus) 0 0 0 0 0 

 

5.4. The Council has a duty, in accordance with Part VI (Section 74) of the Local   

Government and Housing Act 1989, to maintain a “Housing Revenue Account” 
(HRA).  By “ring -fencing’ the Housing Revenue Account, the Council ensures that 

the management and maintenance of the Council’s housing stock is funded from 
the income generated by rents and other related sources. The Council is required 
under Part VI (Section 76) to prevent a debit balance each year on the HRA by 

setting the appropriate budget and monitoring progress against that budget 
throughout the financial year. The deficit balance predicted by the Council at this 

second quarter stage will be funded by a transfer from reserves within the 
Housing Revenue Account. 

 

5.5. There is are four significant (>£50,000) overspend to report at this stage. 

 Repairs and Maintenance (£424,140) – Increased staffing costs due to 
forecast pay award shortfall (£52,140), utility service charge income down due 

to estimated cost 21/22 (£41,000), increase in repair costs (£300,000), 
expected increase in utilities (£31,000)  

 Depreciation Charge (£83,970) – based on latest forecasts. 

Page 27



8 
 

 Interest & Debt Management Charges (£226,820) - additional income 
receivable by the HRA from increased interest rates is offset by a larger share 
of the interest payable per the current share of the pool, following the 
reduction in Voluntary Revenue Provision, 

 Contribution to HRA capital programme (£388,850) – as detailed in section 7 
below 

 

5.6. There is one significant (>£50,000) underspends to be noted at this stage. 
 

 Income - Non-Dwelling Rents (£58,120) – increased income from service 

charges has been responsible for the majority of this positive variance. 
 

6.      General Fund Capital Programme 
 

6.1. This section of the report provides an update to Members on the Council’s 
General Fund Programme. 

 

6.2. The table below shows a high level (service) summary of the General Fund 
Capital Programme position at 30th June 2022:  

 

  
2022/23   

Approved 
Budget  

Q1 
Changes 
(per Q4 

21/22 carry 
forwards 

2022/23 
Revised  
Budget 

Expected 
Outturn 
2022/23 

Expected 
Variance 
2022/23 

  £ £ £ £ £ 

Housing  374,000 -          374,000       374,000  
                 

- 

Housing Standards 489,110     30,000    519,110 519,110               

Property Asset Management 
Programme 

6,513,570     (54,540) 6,459,030 6,459,030 
                 

- 

ICT 20,000      22,150    42,150 42,150 
                 

- 

Fleet  1,354,270  (10,840) 1,343,430 1,343,430 
                 

- 

Leisure Services Outdoor Sports 40,000 1,500 41,500 41,500 
                 

- 

Regeneration – Fairfield Roundabout 2,359,280 345,340    2,704,620 2,704,620 
                 

- 

Regeneration - Buxton 7,779,000              -    7,779,000 7,779,000 
                 

- 

Horticulture Play Facilities 243,000         220    243,220 243,220 
                 

- 

Total   19,172,230  333,830  19,506,060 19,506,060 - 

Funding:-           
External Contributions 8,737,220              -    8,737,220 8,737,220 - 
S106 Planning Obligations  243,000              -    243,000 243,000 - 
Capital Receipts(Land) 2,900,000              -    2,900,000 2,900,000 - 
Capital Receipts(one for one) 374,000              -    374,000 374,000 - 
Capital Receipts(vehicles) 50,250              -    50,250 50,250 - 
Revenue  Reserves               -    

  
- 

Earmarked Reserves               -    
  

- 
Borrowing  6,867,760     333,830  7,201,590 7,201,590 - 

Total 19,172,230 333,830 19,506,060 19,506,060 - 

Page 28



9 
 

 

6.3. The 2022/23 General Fund Capital Budget was approved by Members in 

February 2022 as part of the Medium Term Financial Plan (£19,172,230); and 
then updated in the Quarter 4 2021/22 provisional outturn report £333,830 – 

regarding carry forwards from 2021/22, resulting in a revised overall capital 
programme of £19,506,060, no changes have been made at this early forecast in 
the year.   

 

7.      Housing Revenue Account Capital Programme 

 

7.1. This section of the report provides an update to Members on the Council’s HRA 
capital spending. 

 

7.2. The table below shows a high level summary of the HRA Capital Programme at 

30th June    2022. Further detail on a scheme by scheme basis is contained in 
Annex A. 

 

 

  

Scheme 
2022-23 

Approved 
Budget  

Quarter 1 
Changes  

2022-23 
Revised 
Budget  

2022-23 
Expected 
Out-turn 

2022-23 
Expected 
Variance  

  £  £  £  £ £  

Asset Management works 5,543,820              -    5,543,820 6,093,570    549,750  

Repairs Team Capital works  279,000              -    279,000 279,000              -    

Commissioning Costs 100,000              -    100,000 100,000              -    

Asset Purchases 500,000              -    500,000 500,000              -    

ICT Strategy 100,000              -    100,000 100,000              -    

Repurchase Dwellings  200,000              -    200,000 200,000              -    

2021-22 Net Underspend              -    160,900 160,900              -    (160,900)  

Total Programme 6,722,820 160,900 6,883,720 7,272,570    388,850  

            

Major Repairs Reserve 2,099,030              -    2,099,030 2,099,030              -    

HRA Contribution 4,543,790 160,900 4,704,690 5,093,540    388,850  

Capital Receipts  80,000              -    80,000 80,000              -    

Total Financing 6,722,820 160,900 6,883,720 7,272,570    388,850  

 

 

7.3. The 2022/23 HRA Capital Budget was approved by Members in February 2022 as 
part of the Medium Term Financial Plan (£6,722,820); and then updated in August 

2022 (£160,900 increase  carry forward of 2021/22 under-spend, as a contingency 
towards project cost increases ); This has resulted  in a revised overall HRA  
capital programme of  £6,883,720  

  

7.4. The total  variance (over-spend £388,850) includes cost increases on projects 

which  have been tendered; and anticipated further spend on  additional   
numbers of  roofing, kitchen/ window/ and  door replacements now forecast to be  
completed in year.  

Page 29



10 
 

 

8. Treasury Management 

 

8.1. This section of the report sets out the key Treasury Management statistics in 
relation to the Council’s investments and borrowings. This report comprises a high 

level Treasury Management summary.  The Audit and Regulatory Committee 
receives detailed operational updates on Treasury Management. 

 

Investments 
 

8.2. Cash Investments held on the 30th June 2022 totalled £31.2million. The average 
level of funds available for investment up to the end of the quarter totalled 
£31.9million and £62,620 interest was earned. 

 

8.3. The Council has budgeted to receive £103,670 in investment income in 2022/23 

under the expectation that the Bank of England base rate would only reach 0.75% 
by the end of the financial year. However, interest rates have increased during the 
year following the base rate rise to 1.00% (from 0.75%) in May 2022, to 1.25% in 

June, and again to 1.75% in August, therefore a surplus of £246,000 is currently 
anticipated against the budget. 

 

Borrowing 
 

8.4. Outstanding borrowing at 30th June 2022 totalled £63 million. The Council’s 
general fund and HRA budgeted to incur £1,711,950 and £1,629,210 respectively 
in interest charges and other financing costs in 2022/23. This was based on 

existing external debt and new borrowing of £6.8m mid-year to fund the general 
fund capital programme. 

 

8.5. No ‘new’ borrowing or refinancing activity has occurred during the year. The share 
of charges to the HRA is forecast to be a net £226,830 greater per the current 

share of the pool following the reduction in the Voluntary Revenue Provision; and 
external borrowing costs are forecast to be £64,270 depending on when 

borrowing takes place and interest rates at the time. Including a smaller than 
anticipated Minimum Revenue Provision (MRP) charge in the year, overall 
underspend on general fund borrowing costs is forecast to be £181,870. 

 

9.       Revenue Collection 

 

9.1. The collection rate outturn for Quarter 1 2022/23 was as follows: 
 

 Council Tax – 28.34% of Council Tax was collected by 30th June 2022, 

compared to 28.78% for the same period in 2021/22, and 28.47% in 2020/21. 

 Business Rates – 31.15% of Business Rates was collected by 30th June 

2022, compared with 29.10% for the same period in 2021/22, and 22.51% in 

2020/321. 
 Sundry Debts - The value of sundry debts over 60 days old at the end of 

Quarter One was £145,240 which compares with £252,450 at 30th June 2021. 

Page 30



11 
 

 

 

 

Page 31



12 
 

Annex A 
 

Housing Revenue Account Capital Programme Update 30th June 2022 
 

Scheme 
2022-23 

Approved 
Budget  

Quarter 1 
Changes  

2022-23 
Revised 
Budget  

2022-23 
Expected 
Out-turn 

2022-23 
Expected 
Variance  

   £          

Asset Management            

Roofing     169,600               -       169,600     277,500     107,900  

Gladstone St Walkways      21,000               -         21,000       21,000               -    

Lift Replacements    769,000               -       769,000     769,000               -    

Bathroom Programme    498,570               -       498,570     498,570               -    

Kitchen Programme    600,000               -       600,000     750,000     150,000  

Electrical Works    500,000               -       500,000     500,000               -    

Aids & Adaptations    440,000               -       440,000     440,000               -    

Windows & Doors Programme    500,000               -       500,000     900,000     400,000  

Central Heating Works    230,000               -       230,000     230,000               -    

Queens Court Boiler     200,000               -       200,000     200,000               -    

Gamesley Car Park/Hardstanding     250,000               -       250,000     282,000       32,000  

Watford Lodge Refit       70,000               -         70,000       70,000               -    

CCTV & Aerials     100,000               -       100,000     100,000               -    

Structural & Other Works     290,650               -       290,650               -    (290,650)  

Rendering     445,000               -       445,000     527,000       82,000  

Fairfield View       20,000               -         20,000       20,000               -    

Sheltered Fire Alarm     140,000               -       140,000     208,500       68,500  

Hartington Gardens Footbridge     200,000               -       200,000     200,000               -    

Energy Efficiency Works     100,000               -       100,000     100,000               -    

  5,543,820              -    5,543,820 6,093,570    549,750  

Repairs Capital            

Void Rewires        70,000               -         70,000       70,000               -    

Void Kitchens      139,000               -       139,000     139,000               -    

Void Bathrooms        70,000               -         70,000       70,000               -    

  279,000              -    279,000 279,000              -    

Staffing           

Staffing /Commissioning     100,000               -       100,000     100,000               -    

  100,000              -    100,000 100,000              -    

Asset Purchases            

Vehicle Replacement     500,000               -       500,000     500,000               -    

Re-Purchase Dwellings    200,000               -       200,000     200,000               -    

ICT Housing System    100,000               -       100,000     100,000               -    

  800,000              -    800,000 800,000              -    

2021-22 Net Under-spend  
  

    

160,900  

    

160,900               -    

  

(160,900)  

Total 
6,722,820 160,900 6,883,720 7,272,570 

    
388,850  

 

Page 32



13 
 

 

Page 33



This page is intentionally left blank



 

 

APPENDIX B 

 

 
 

2022/23 
 

First Quarter 
 Procurement  

Review 
 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 35



1. Introduction 
 

1.1 A key element of the financial savings included in the Council’s Efficiency & 
Rationalisation Strategy is being met from Procurement activity which was 

approved by Full Council in February 2017.  
 

1.2 The current Procurement Strategy was developed to ensure that its objectives 

linked closely with the Council’s overall strategic vision and aims and objectives.  
The key actions included, delivery of cashable savings, development of a 

professional Procurement unit, updated Procurement Rules to support 
transparency and the implementation of electronic tendering processes and 
procurement systems.  All of which have been achieved. 

 
1.3 The revised Joint Procurement Strategy is now drafted and scheduled for 

approval in September 2022.  The revised strategy, covering 2022-2025 will 
focus on the following key objectives to support the aims of the Council’s 
Corporate plan and align with the LGA National Procurement Strategy: 

 

 Delivering Value for Money 

 Commercial focus and effective Contract Management 

 Maintaining Transparency and Ethical practices through effective leadership 

 Promoting Responsible and Sustainable Procurement  

 Supporting the Local Economy and Business Growth 

 Delivering Social Value (CSR) through our Contracts 

 
1.4 The Council will work to achieve these priorities by adopting and implementing 

the following key themes which underpin and will drive the Strategy forward over 

the next three years: 
 

 Showing Leadership 

 Behaving Commercially 

 Achieving Community Benefits 

 Environmental Sustainability 

 Ethical Sourcing 
  

2. First Quarter Completed Procurements 

2.1 The activity supported by the Council’s procurement team for the first quarter April 

2022 to June 2022 is summarised below: 

First Quarter   High Value 

(> £181,000) 

Low Value    

(< £181,000) 
Total 

HPBC Only [-] 13 13 

JOINT (SM/HP) [-] 4 4 

TOTAL   17 

 
2.2 Annex A provides details of the 17 procurement exercises completed during 

Quarter one.   

Page 36



3. 2022/23 Procurement Forward Plan  

3.1 The table below details the number of exercises which fall into either low or high 
value (profiled over full contract term) scheduled for either completion or starting 

in 2022/23. 

2022/23 Activity High Value 

(> 181,000k) 

 Low Value  

(< £181,000k) 
Total 

HPBC 

 

4 8 12 

JOINT (SM/HP) 2 7 9 

TOTAL   21 

 

 In addition to the above, there are 54 exercises currently in progress and a 
further 148 listed entries brought forward from previous years (for review and 
completion for both HPBC and SMDC combined).  

 
3.2 Some of the more significant ‘high level’ procurement activity that is scheduled for 

support and delivery in 2022/23 includes:- 
 

 

 Facilities Management (Joint venture delivery model) – now completed 

 Glossop Halls (D2N2) refurbishment project (Glossop Indoor Market and 
adjacent buildings) – Main Contractor – now appointed 

 Levelling Up Funded projects – subject to application outcome 

 Glossop Markets Operator Concession 

 Future High streets – Spring Gardens Buxton 

 EFG Greener homes LAD3 funding 
 

4. Procurement Performance 

4.1 This section reports on the Council performance in terms of procurement activity. 
 

4.2 Performance for the first quarter is highlighted below:- 

 

Performance Indicator Target 
Performance at 
30 June 2022 

% of Alliance Procurement 

Activity on Forward Plan 
70% 34% 

Annual contract spend as % 
of gross expenditure budget 

 

93% 91% 

Supplier (Creditor) spend 
within the local area as a % 

of total spend 

8% 13% 

% of Contracts awarded to 
local suppliers following 
submission of EOI (over 

£5,000) 

Contextual 15% 

 

Page 37



  

ANNEX A 

First Quarter Procurement Activity Completed – HPBC 

Contract Title Brief contract 
description 

Recurring 
or One Off  

Service Area  Procedure  Award Detail Term / 
Duration 

 
 

 Total 
Contract 
Value £     

Contingency Planning 
arrangements 

Emergency and 
Contingency Planning  

Recurring  Corporate 
H&S 

SLA Derbyshire 
County 
Council  
 
Civil 
Contingencies 
Unit 
 

1 yr 17,000 

East Pavilion Boiler 
Replacement 
Pavilion Gardens 

Phase 3 development 
works of East Pavilion 
conservatory – 
Contractor 
Appointment 

One Off Assets CCN Renuvo Ltd 4 wks 47,890 

Shire Hill Development 
Planning Advice 
 

Consultancy One Off Development 
Control 

RFQ White Peak 
Planning 

8-10 
wks 

5,695 

Shire Hill Development 
Heritage Advice 
 

Consultancy One Off Development 
Control 

RFQ Heritage 
Assets 

8-10 
wks 

3,450 

Shire Hill Development 
Viability Advice 
 

Consultancy One Off Development 
Control 

RFQ Keppie 
Massey 

8-10 
wks 

3,600 

Marketing Agent for 
Accelerated Housing 
Delivery Programme 
sites 

Consultancy One Off Regeneration Framework 
Further 
comp 

CBRE Ltd 6 
months 

19,600 

Viability assessments 
Planning Applications 

Consultancy One Off Development 
Control 

RFQ Keppie 
Massey 

2 wks 2,650 

Childrens Rides Manor 
Park 

Concession Contract Recurring Service 
Commissioning 

Open 
Tender 

Bramwells 
Amusements 

1+1 yr 10,000 

Pavilion Gardens 
Buxton  
River Bank Repairs 
Works 

Minor works Contract 
– Contractor 
Appointment 

One Off Assets Open 
Tender 

Bailey 
Contracts 

8 wks 48,789 

Page 38



Buxton HAZ - 
Appointment of 
Architect: 
Reinstatement of 
damaged Urn 

Consultancy One Off Regeneration Direct 
Award 

Bench 
Architects 

10 months 9,640 

Buxton HAZ - 
Appointment for 
Topographical and 
Utility Survey for Spring 
Gardens 

Consultancy One Off Regeneration RFQ Survey 
Solutions 

2-3 wks 6,250 

Queens Court External 
re-Decoration 

Contractor 
Appointment 

One Off Assets RFQ Alfred 
Bagnalls 
Painting and 
Decorating 

4 wks 6,000 

Cavity Wall Insulation 
Derwent Road / Drive 

Minor works 
Contractor 

One Off Housing 
Repairs 

Direct 
Award 

Cooney 
Insulations 

2 wks 6,009 

 

 

First Quarter Procurement Activity Completed – JOINT (HPBC & SMDC) 

Contract Title Brief contract description Recurring 
or One Off  

Service Area  Procedure  Award Detail Term / 
Duration 

 
 

 Total 
Contract 
Value £     

Planning 
Consultancy 
Support  - 
Planning 
Applications 
Service Support 

Framework of professional 
consultants to support 
Development Control 
service in processing of 
planning applications 

Recurring Development 
Control 

Open 
Tender 

Framework  
1. Planning 
Angel Ltd  
2. Terra Quest  
3. DC 
Planning 
Consultancy 
 

2 + 1 
Yrs 

(est) 
75,000  

Courier and 
Collection 
services 

Collection and Banking of 
Income and Internal Mail 
Courier Services 

Recurring Customer 
Services / Assets / 
Finance 

Direct 
Award 

Buxton and 
High Peak 
Security 
Services 
 

1+1  
Yrs 

126,774 

5yr Tourism 
Strategy - High 
Peak and 
Staffordshire 
Moorlands 
 

Consultancy Appointment, 
development of tourism 
strategies for both 
authorities 

One Off Regeneration Open 
Tender 

Blue Sail Ltd 12 
months 

32,675 

Ride on Mowers Grounds maintenance 
capital purchase for AES 

One Off Service 
Commissioning 

Framework 
Direct 
Award 

F R Sharrocks 
Ltd 

Supply 
only 

142,059 

 

 

Page 39



This page is intentionally left blank



 

 

High Peak Performance and Customer Feedback Report: 2022/ 2023 (Q1) 

 

  

P
age 41



 

 

P
age 42



High Peak Q1 Summary  

The following report provides an overview of performance at High Peak for the period April to June 2022 in relation to the Council’s corporate 

plan priorities. As well as the summary below, the report also provides insight into the council’s performance against each of its four strategic 

aims, including both successes and areas for further improvement.    

Performance Overview  

There are 44 targeted measures to report against at the end of June 2022. The charts below show the results for Q1 in terms of both 

attainment and trend data. At the end of the first quarter the council is ‘on track’ to meet 71% of its targets and has improved upon or 

maintained its performance level compared to this point last year in 61% of measures. There has been one unavailable measure during this 

quarter (RTB processing times within Legal), which should be available by Q2. The full framework and the actions being taken to address the 

‘off track’ measures can be accessed here.  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Customer Feedback Overview  

This report also provides an overview of the results from the Council’s customer feedback system in terms of complaints, comments and 

compliments. The number of complaints closed during the first quarter was lower than this point last year, 24 compared to 30 previously. 

There have been no repeat complaints reported and the council responded to all complaints in time, ahead of its 97% target. This report 

includes further details of the lessons learned from complaints and any repeat issues, where relevant.      

 

71%

27%

2%
0%

20%

40%

60%

80%

100%

On Track Off Track N/A

40%
37%

21%

2%
0%

20%

40%

60%

80%

100%

Better Weaker No Change N/A

P
age 43

https://hpbc.alliance-online.org/system/files/documents/attachments/high_peak_performance_indicator_database_june_2022-23.pdf


Aim 1: Help create a safer and healthier environment for our residents to live and work   

Fit for purpose housing 

✓ New housing benefit claims processed in under 11 days against a target of 13 days 

✓ Change of circs processed in under 7 days 

✓ No gas safety checks were overdue in council homes 

✓ Average response times for requests for repair and jobs completed per repairs operative 

 

Areas for improvement: At the end of June the council had 28 households in temporary accommodation for over six weeks but none of the 

households were families. The slow turnover of stock and the reduced availability / high cost of private sector housing continues to affect the 

council’s ability to achieve settled accommodation outcomes for a proportion of prevention and relief homelessness duty discharges. Currently 

55% of homelessness applications are opened at the prevention stage against a target of 60%.    

 

 

 

 

 

 

Carelink Service:  

✓ 97% of emergency calls responded to within 45 minutes 

Areas for improvement: 88% of referrals were installed within 15 days during Q1, below the 95% target. The delays were caused by a number 

of factors including contractor issues and residents returning home later than anticipated from extended hospital stays.  

 

Accelerated housing delivery programme: 

Fairfield Roundabout – Ground survey identified presence of asbestos, the treatment of which could incur additional costs to the 

contractor than tendered. Inflationary factors continue. Significant cost implications to delay works that require Traffic Management 

and thus avoid conflict with Long Hill.   

Granby Road – A Deed of Variation to withdraw from the Grant Funding Agreement with Homes England has been drafted (but not 

yet completed). Due to delays the council is no longer on track to meet the previously agreed milestones outlined in the LAAC grant 

funding agreement. 

 

P
age 44



 

High quality leisure facilities 

✓ £45k in externalo sports funding secured  

At High Peak new leisure and wellbeing and enhanced cultural facilities for Glossop are the focus 

of a £20m bid to the government’s Levelling Up Fund. The results should be known in the autumn. 

Interviews were held for the Move More Development Officer in July. The role has been offerred 

and we are now awaiting the necessary checks before a formal job offer is made.  

 

High quality public amenities, clean streets and environmental health 

✓ Regulatory inspections (routine permitted processes, high risk premises) 

The number of fly-tipping incidents has improved again in 2022-23 with 84 collections recorded, compared to 114 last year.  The council 

launched its public campaign, aimed at deterring illegally dumped rubbish,  with its AES partners early last year.  

 

Aim 1 areas for improvement and Priority Action updates can be viewed here 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

P
age 45

https://hpbc.alliance-online.org/system/files/documents/attachments/off_track_pis_and_priority_actions_aim_1_8.pdf


 

Aim 2: Meet financial challenges and provide value for money 

Financial resilience and value for money 

✓ Improving collection rates across business, council tax, rent and sundry debt 

✓ 98% of invoices paid on time 

✓ 94% of internal audit recommendations were implemented in time 

 

        

 

Available services provided ‘right first time’ 

✓ 55% of contacts made via the web 

✓ Over 9,700 social media followers 

✓ Complaint handing and no repeat complaints 

✓ 47,493 OneVu Portal accounts 

 

Areas for improvement: FOI response times have increased due to the demand on resources caused by the pandemic but performance has 

improved again in Q1 with 76% issued on time.   

A new Access to Services Strategy has been prepared with the help of the Institute of Customer Services, a delivery plan is now scheduled for 

the September cycle of meetings in 2022.     

High performing and motivated workforce 

Areas for improvement: Sickness absence has risen to 2.2 days across the 

Alliance for Q1 with most cases in Direct Services. It’s expected that the target 

for the year of 7 days will be met.   

A leadership development programme is underway with Heads of Service and a 

new Organisational Development Strategy has been agreed with a delivery 

plan hoped to be in place from September 2022.  

Alliance recognised in good practice guides 

The Alliance's approach to performance management has been 

included within two new LGA guides designed to assist officers 

and councillors. The Alliance's Information Team was also one 

of 6 councils asked to submit a case study by the LGA which 

explains our approach to integrated and inclusive performance 

management at all levels of the business.  

 

P
age 46



Effective use of assets 

Areas for improvement: It took an average of 46 days to re-let council 

stock during April to June. This is mainly due to the amount of work 

required and delays from external contractors. Three properties were 

each over 100 days, due to the condition they had been left in and 

required extensive cleaning prior to work commencing. Rent loss from 

vacant properties now stands at 1.32% against a target of 0.86%. The 

majority of the losses come from Marian Court, Church View and The 

Bungalow.  

  

Procurement with a focus on local business 

Areas for improvement: On-contract spend was up on trend but is below 

target at Q1. The Procurement Team will be working with service areas with high off-contract spend to support them in bridging any gaps in 

supply chain arrangements.  

34% of procurement activity during the quarter was included on the forward plan, which is below target and lower than last year. On plan 

activity has dropped due to a number of influences over the last quarter.  A high amount of individual exercises have been completed in and 

around the major Government funding initiatives e.g. LUF and more complex capital projects to source specialist consultancies. We are 

continuing to work with services to capture as much detail from service plans to ensure the Procurement forward plan is current in identifying 

forthcoming activity. 

Technology and innovation 

✓ 100% of system and network availability 

New Digital IT Strategy approved with delivery plan now expected for September 2022, alongside OD and Access to Services.     

Aim 2 areas for improvement and Priority Action updates can be viewed here 

 

 

Asset Management Plan Update: 

Energy audits and Stock Condition surveys now completed.  

Work has started on assembling costs on the individual assets. 

Meetings will be arranged with individual service areas starting 

in September. Interviewing interim officers this week to assist 

with the project. 

Capital programme – first operational planning meeting to be 

set up with Alliance Norse. 

Glossop Cemetery – Budget likely to overspend because of the 

increased scope of the works and also due to supply costs 

significantly increasing. 

P
age 47

https://hpbc.alliance-online.org/system/files/documents/attachments/off_track_pis_and_priority_actions_aim_2_5.pdf


Aim 3: Support economic development and regeneration  

High quality development with an open for business approach 

✓ all planning processing targets on track, including 100% of major applications in time 

✓ no major developments allowed on appeal and just over 2% of minor developments 

 

Flourishing Town Centres and Business Support 

There were 523 hits on the council’s business page during Q1. The monthly council business newsletter continues to provide details of funding 

opportunities, training events and other relevant business 

news. 

The costs associated with the Glossop Halls project have 

increased by circa £700k. Consideration for the operating 

model at Victoria Hall will be included as part of the 

business case and grant application for the Levelling Up 

Funding bid in early August. Further work around the legal 

status and operating model will need to be developed 

with specialist support. 

 

Aim 3 areas for improvement and Priority Action updates can be viewed here 

 

Growth Strategy Update: 

Buxton future high street fund - Legal due diligence underway regarding the 

purchase of Springs. Searches and enquiries are in progress. Report on the 

title is to be provided once complete. We are reviewing tenancy schedules 

and are awaiting report on leases we will inherit plus updated position on 

arrears. Procurement exploring framework options for appointment of 

consultants to assist with wider development delivery. 

Buxton HAZ - 2022/23 first quarter claim for £105,533 has been submitted to 

Historic England. Works at the White Lion are complete. Further works 

ongoing with a number of units prior to submission of grant applications and 

securing statutory consents. Footfall counters installed, and weekly data 

being provided. IBI Consultants appointed to design appropriate public realm 

re-design. 

P
age 48

https://hpbc.alliance-online.org/system/files/documents/attachments/off_track_pis_and_priority_actions_aim_3_3.pdf


 

Aim 4: Protect and Improve the Environment 

Quality Parks and Open Spaces  

Refurbishment of play areas at Simmondley in Glossop and Jodrell Road in Whaley Bridge are now being progressed with 

consultation commencing in September after the school summer holidays. 

 

 

Effective recycling and waste management 

✓ 109kg of residual household waste (estimated data) 

✓ 34 missed bins per 100,000 collections 

Areas for improvement: The estimated recycling rate for Q1 is 49.45% 

against a target of 50% but confirmed tonnages are awaited from partners.    

Meeting the challenge of climate change 

✓ There has been no need to re-stock paper during Q1 

 

Developing a climate change strategy and an action plan of response to a 

declared climate emergency: Consultation responses have been discussed 

at the High Peak Climate Change Working Group. An IED is now being 

drafted to propose formal adoption of the Part 2 Plan, which will conclude 

this project. On-going delivery will be monitored internally by High Peak 

Climate Change Working Group. 

Aim 4 areas for improvement and Priority Action updates can be viewed here 

Parks Development Plans: The Parks Strategy has now been 

approved by The Executive. A play and outdoor sports facilities 

investment and delivery plan has also been approved by The 

Executive and an implementation plan is now being finalised. 

Collective - digital transformation in action 

Over the past 2 years, the council has been working closely with AES 

to build and implement a new waste collection system, known as 

Collective. Bespoke technical automations have been designed to 

digitise internal processes, minimise manual intervention and create 

paperless operations. 

  

The fleet of waste vehicles have been fitted with in-cab devices that link 

back to Collective – enabling collection crews to flag any issues 

throughout their working day, allowing AES to respond quickly to any 

ongoing and arising issues, meaning they can monitor performance in 

real time. 

  

We have worked closely with our webform provider IEG4 to design, 

build and launch brand new, intelligent customer webforms that not only 

get information out of Collective (allowing residents to see detailed 

information about their waste collections) but also pass customer 

requests directly back into Bartec creating jobs, with no manual 

intervention needed. The project will transform our engagement and 

interaction with residents, whilst at the same time improving efficiency 

of the waste and recycling service delivered by AES. 

  
Thanks to the hard work of the AES collection crews, we are actively 

receiving live data whilst they are on their collection round! The benefits 

of this advanced technology will help us to reduce customer contact, 

drive our Digital 

P
age 49

https://hpbc.alliance-online.org/system/files/documents/attachments/off_track_pis_and_priority_actions_aim_4_3.pdf


P
age 50



 

P
age 51



T
his page is intentionally left blank



HIGH PEAK BOROUGH COUNCIL 
 

The Executive 
 

6 October 2022 

 
 

 
 

 
 
 

 
 

 
Appendices Attached: 
Appendix A –  ‘A prospectus Devolution: A Brighter Future for the East 

Midlands’ 
 

 
1. Reason for the Report  

 

1.1 The purpose of the report is to provide a summary of the East Midlands 
Devolution Deal offer that was announced on 30th August 2022.  

 
 
2. Recommendations 

 
2.1 It is recommended that the Executive note the summary of the East Midlands 

Devolution Deal as set out in the report. 
 
 

3. Executive Summary 

 

3.1 On 30th August the Secretary of State for Levelling Up, Housing and 
Communities announced that a Devolution Deal is on offer for the East 
Midlands covering Derby, Derbyshire, Nottingham, and Nottinghamshire. The 

four upper-tier local authority (Derby, Derbyshire, Nottingham, 
Nottinghamshire) leaders have signed up to the deal. 

 
3.2 Previous rounds of devolution deals, agreed by the coalition and Conservative 

governments since 2014, focused on transferring powers and budgets from 

Whitehall to metropolitan city regions. The Levelling-Up white paper set out 
the first tranche of county areas to be invited to begin negotiations on the new 

type of devolution deals. Derbyshire and Derby and Nottinghamshire and 
Nottingham were two of the areas identified. 

 

3.3 In order to seek the maximum ‘Level 3’ powers and flexibilities available the 
four upper tier Councils in Derby, Derbyshire, Nottingham and 

Nottinghamshire submitted an initial devolution deal proposal template to  

TITLE: East Midlands Devolution Deal 
 
EXECUTIVE COUNCILLOR: Cllr Anthony McKeown – Leader 

  
CONTACT OFFICERS: Andrew Stokes – Chief Executive 
   

WARDS INVOLVED:  Non-Specific 

Page 53

Agenda Item 6

https://www.instituteforgovernment.org.uk/explainers/metro-mayors


Government in March 2022. It is clear that Level 3 powers are reserved for 
areas that agree to establish the role of a directly elected mayor; as a result, 

the Leaders of the four upper tier councils agreed to develop proposals for an 
Mayoral County Combined Authority (MCCA) to that ensure maximum 

powers, freedoms and flexibilities are secured. 
 

3.4 Districts and borough councils in Derbyshire and Nottinghamshire are not 

formal parties to the Deal. However, the upper-tier authorities have engaged 
with districts and boroughs through confidential (required by government) 

briefings to Leaders and Chief Executives throughout the negotiation 
process.  

 

3.5 The deal document sets out the powers the Government will devolve to the 
East Midlands MCCA and outlines how the combined authority wi ll work. The 

main headlines from the Deal are:  
  

 An elected Mayor for the East Midlands advocating for the region and held 

accountable by the electorate.  
 Devolved packages of funding for spending on local priorities.  

 New devolved powers from Government including powers related to Skills 
& Education, Transport, Housing & Land, Net Zero, Innovation, Trade & 
Investment, Public Service Reform and Financing. 

 Protection of powers currently held by upper-tier authorities and the district 
& borough councils. 

 Integration of the current Local Enterprise Partnership (LEP) into the 
MCCA.  

 Potential for more devolution of powers in the future 

  
3.6 More detailed summary of the deal set out in ‘A prospectus Devolution: A 

Brighter Future for the East Midlands’ which is attached at Appendix A. 

3.7 The signing of the document is the commencement of a process of 
establishing the East Midlands MCCA. The key elements of the process are 

as follows: 
  

 September / October 2022 - Development of a proposal document that will 
be used for consultation with residents and other stakeholders 

 November 2022 – Sign off of the proposal by the Full Council of each of 

the upper tier councils and approval to move to consultation. 
 November 2022 to January 2023 - Consultation period 

 April 2024 - New East Midlands Mayoral County Combined Authority 
officially comes into existence.  

 May 2024 - Mayoral election for East Midlands Mayoral Combined 

Authority. 
  

3.8 The Levelling up and Regeneration Bill which is currently proceeding through 
the parliamentary process, is required to receive Royal Assent to enable the 
creation of the County combined authority (CCA); and Mayoral county 

combined authority (MCCA). 

Page 54



 
3.9 There is a commitment by the upper-tier Councils to continue the engagement 

with district and borough Councils throughout the process of finalising the deal 
and the development of the MCCA. 

 
3.10 As the proposals are developed progress will continue to be reported to the 

Executive and the appropriate Select Committees. 

 
 
4.       How this Report Links to Corporate Priorities  
 

4.1 The devolved funding and arrangements have the potential to have of positive 

impact on the Council’s priorities 
 

 
5.       Options and Analysis 
 

5.1 There are no detailed options to consider  
 

 
6.  Implications 

 

6.1 Community Safety - (Crime and Disorder Act 1998) 
The detail includes a commitment to work with national government on 

initiatives to address domestic abuse and community safety. 
 

6.2 Workforce 

None 
 

6.3 Equality and Diversity/Equality Impact Assessment 
None 
 

6.4 Financial Considerations 
None 

 
6.5 Legal 

None 

 
16.6 Climate Change 

The deal includes a commitment to: 
 

 Work towards Net Zero and cleaner air with new low carbon homes, 

retrofit existing houses with external wall insulation, promote the use 

of renewable energy, and protect and enhance green spaces, such 

as areas for wildlife and green verges; and 

 Build on the region’s existing knowledge and expertise in green 

technology and promote the growth of a future low carbon economy 

by investing in related skills training at colleges and other training 

facilities. 

Page 55



 

 

6.7 External Consultation 
A formal consultation will take place between November 2022 and January 

2023. 
 

6.8   Risk Assessment 
Not applicable at this stage 
  

 
ANDREW P STOKES 

Chief Executive 
 

 
Web Links and 
Background Papers 

Location Contact details 

 
East Midlands Devolution Deal 
Offer: 

https://assets.publishing.service.gov.uk
/government/uploads/system/uploads/
attachment_data/file/1100741/East_Mi

dlands_devolution_deal.pdf 
 

 Andrew P Stokes 
Chief Executive 
 

 
 

  

Page 56

https://assets.publishing.service.gov.uk/government/uploads/system/uploads/attachment_data/file/1100741/East_Midlands_devolution_deal.pdf
https://assets.publishing.service.gov.uk/government/uploads/system/uploads/attachment_data/file/1100741/East_Midlands_devolution_deal.pdf
https://assets.publishing.service.gov.uk/government/uploads/system/uploads/attachment_data/file/1100741/East_Midlands_devolution_deal.pdf
https://assets.publishing.service.gov.uk/government/uploads/system/uploads/attachment_data/file/1100741/East_Midlands_devolution_deal.pdf


7 Introduction and Background 

 

7.1 On 30th August the Secretary of State for Levelling Up, Housing and 
Communities announced that a Devolution Deal is on offer for the East 

Midlands covering Derby, Derbyshire, Nottingham, and Nottinghamshire. The 
four upper-tier local authority (Derby, Derbyshire, Nottingham, 
Nottinghamshire) leaders have signed up to the deal. 

 
7.2 The Deal will see the devolution of powers and the funding to an Elected 

Mayor and the creation of a Mayoral County Combined Authority (MCCA) for 
the area.    

  

7.3 Full details of the Devolution Deal offer have been published by the 
Government: 

 
https://assets.publishing.service.gov.uk/government/uploads/system/uploads/
attachment_data/file/1100741/East_Midlands_devolution_deal.pdf 

  
7.4 The upper tier councils will work on the details of the deal each will consider a 

report to approve a more detailed proposal for a consultation later this year, 
so that residents, businesses, and other organisations can have their say. 

 

7.5 The purpose of this report is to update councillors with a summary of the deal 
and the agreed next steps. 

 
 
8 Background to the Deal 

 
8.1 Previous rounds of devolution deals, agreed by the coalition and Conservative 

governments since 2014, focused on transferring powers and budgets from 
Whitehall to metropolitan city regions. The first devolution deal in England was 
concluded in 2014 by the coalition government with local authorities from the 

Greater Manchester area. 
 

8.2 Since then, eight further devolution deals have been agreed with local leaders 
in ‘city regions’ across England. These nine deals have all included the 
formation of a combined authority headed by a directly elected ‘metro mayor’. 

The Levelling-Up white paper announced that negotiations will begin to form a 
tenth mayoral combined authority, covering York and North Yorkshire and a 

proposed devolution deal was recently announced. 
 
8.3 Two county areas – Northumberland (a unitary council) and Cambridgeshire 

(a county council) – have been included in devolution deals centred on the 
cities of Newcastle and Cambridge respectively.  

 
8.4 The Levelling-Up white paper set out the first tranche of county areas to be 

invited to begin negotiations on the new type of devolution deals. The nine 

areas were Cornwall, Derbyshire and Derby, Devon, Plymouth and Torbay, 
Durham, Hull and East Yorkshire, Leicestershire, Norfolk, Nottinghamshire 

and Nottingham, and Suffolk. 

Page 57

https://assets.publishing.service.gov.uk/government/uploads/system/uploads/attachment_data/file/1100741/East_Midlands_devolution_deal.pdf
https://assets.publishing.service.gov.uk/government/uploads/system/uploads/attachment_data/file/1100741/East_Midlands_devolution_deal.pdf
https://www.instituteforgovernment.org.uk/explainers/metro-mayors


 
8.5 The White Paper set out a ‘devolution framework’, with three ‘levels’ of 

devolution.  
 

 Level 1 constitutes informal joint working between authorities;  

 Level 2 is a single institution without an elected mayoralty; and  

 Level 3 is a single institution with a directly-elected mayoralty.  
 
8.6 The paper set out that Level 3 bodies will be able to access the broadest 

range of powers. 
 

 
9 Process for the Development of the Draft Deal 

 

9.1 In order to seek the maximum ‘Level 3’ powers and flexibilities available the 
four upper tier Councils in Derby, Derbyshire, Nottingham and 

Nottinghamshire submitted an initial devolution deal proposal template to  
Government at its request in March 2022. 

 

9.2 The Government’s template included information on the level of devolution 
deal being sought; the geography, the leadership and governance model; 

powers, functions and flexibilities being pursued from the Devolution 
Framework; and other innovative ideas. This provided the starting point of 
negotiations for a devolution deal, where proposals will be examined in more 

depth. 
 

9.3 The Levelling up and Regeneration Bill was published in May 2022 and if it 
receives Royal Assent it enables the creation of a: 

 

 County combined authority (CCA); and 

 Mayoral county combined authority (MCCA) 

 

9.4 It is clear that Level 3 powers are reserved for areas that agree to establish 
the role of a directly elected mayor; as a result, the Leaders of the four upper 
tier councils agreed to develop proposals for an MCCA to that ensure 

maximum powers, freedoms and flexibilities are secured. 
 

9.5 Districts and borough councils in Derbyshire and Nottinghamshire are not 
formal parties to the Deal. However, the upper-tier authorities have engaged 
with districts and boroughs through confidential (required by government) 

briefings to Leaders and Chief Executives throughout the negotiation 
process.  

 
9.6 In addition, the Chief Executives of Chesterfield Borough Council and Newark 

and Sherwood District Council were invited to represent the interests of 

district and borough councils throughout the detailed negotiations with civil 
servants, which took place as part of an accelerated timescale throughout 

August. 
 
 

Page 58



  

Page 59



10 Summary of the Devolution Deal 

 

10.1 The deal is one of the first of a new type of combined authority, requiring new 
legislation from central government. As well as the £1.14 billion, it includes an 

extra £17 million for new homes on brownfield land, and control over a range 
of budgets like the Adult Education Budget, which could be better tailored to 
the needs of people in communities. 

 
10.2 The deal document sets out the powers the Government will devolve to the 

East Midlands MCCA and outlines how the combined authority will work. The 
main headlines from the Deal are:  

  

 An elected Mayor for the East Midlands advocating for the region and held 
accountable by the electorate.  

 Devolved packages of funding for spending on local priorities.  
 New devolved powers from Government including powers related to Skills 

& Education, Transport, Housing & Land, Net Zero, Innovation, Trade & 

Investment, Public Service Reform and Financing. 
 Protection of powers currently held by upper-tier authorities and the district 

& borough councils. 
 Integration of the current Local Enterprise Partnership (LEP) into the 

MCCA.  

 Potential for more devolution of powers in the future 
  

10.3 The devolution deal is a level 3 deal, which offers the most local powers and 
funding  includes the proposed new elected regional mayor, like those in other 
areas such as the West Midlands and Greater Manchester, who would 

represent both cities and counties. The role of the mayor would be to look at 
major issues affecting the whole region, give the area more of a voice, and 

take advantage of local knowledge and expertise. 
 
10.4 The deal means that a future mayor and combined authority could: 

 
 Work towards Net Zero and cleaner air with new low carbon homes, 

retrofit existing houses with external wall insulation, promote the use of 
renewable energy, and protect and enhance green spaces, such as areas 
for wildlife and green verges. 

 Build on the region’s existing knowledge and expertise in green technology 
and promote the growth of a future low carbon economy by investing in 

related skills training at colleges and other training facilities. 
 Set up and coordinate smart integrated ticketing and enhanced 

concessionary fares schemes. 

 Work with Homes England to build more affordable homes, by using new 
powers to buy land and housing (With district and borough council 

consent). 
 Enhance the region’s economy by developing new commercial space to 

maximise opportunities. Work with national government on initiatives to 

address homelessness, domestic abuse, community safety, social 
mobility, and support for young people. 

Page 60



 Take advantage of economies of scale by using combined and devolved 
budgets to deliver more value for taxpayers and more cost-efficient 

services. 
 

 
10.5 More detailed summary of the deal set out in ‘A prospectus Devolution: A 

Brighter Future for the East Midlands’ which is attached at Appendix A. 

 
11 Next Steps 

  
11.1 The signing of the document is the commencement of a process of 

establishing the East Midlands MCCA. The key elements of the process are 
as follows: 

  

 September / October 2022 - Development of a proposal document that will 
be used for consultation with residents and other stakeholders 

 November 2022 – Sign off of the proposal by the Full Council of each of 

the upper tier councils and approval to move to consultation. 
 November 2022 to January 2023 - Consultation period 

 April 2024 - New East Midlands Mayoral County Combined Authority 
officially comes into existence.  

 May 2024 - Mayoral election for East Midlands Mayoral Combined 

Authority. 
  

11.2 There is a commitment by the upper-tier Councils to continue the engagement 
with district and borough Councils throughout the process of finalising the deal 
and the development of the MCCA. 

 
11.3 The governance arrangements for the MCCA and the role of the district and 

borough councils will be of particular interest. An agreed set of principles of 
governance have been adopted as part of the deal submission: 

 

Government requirements 
Principle one: Effective leadership  - Elected mayor 

Principle two: Sensible geography 
Principle three: Flexibility 
Principle four: Appropriate accountability 

 
Local principles 

Principle five: Inclusivity - as inclusive a model of governance as possible 
Principle six: Subsidiarity - add value to existing governance arrangements 
not duplicate 

Principle seven: Commissioning – individual or collective organisations 
commissioned to deliver functions on the MCCA behalf 

Principle eight: Choice - respect the existing sovereignty of the lower-tier local 
authorities. It follows that they will have a choice about whether to participate. 
 

There are also further discussions to be had around the role of the Vision 
Derbyshire and how that will fit into the future arrangements. 

Page 61



 
11.4 As the proposals are developed progress will continue to be reported to the 

Executive and the appropriate Select Committees. 
 

 

Page 62



DEVOLUTION:
A BRIGHTER FUTURE FOR 
THE EAST MIDLANDS

£1.14 BILLION  deal for Derbyshire, 
Nottinghamshire, Derby and Nottingham

A BRIGHTER FUTURE FOR A BRIGHTER FUTURE FOR A BRIGHTER FUTURE FOR A BRIGHTER FUTURE FOR 
THE EAST MIDLANDSTHE EAST MIDLANDSTHE EAST MIDLANDS

Page 63



  MORE INVESTMENT IN OUR AREA
  ECONOMIC GROWTH
  MORE AND BETTER JOBS
  BETTER TRANSPORT, SKILLS TRAINING, HOUSING
  AN ENHANCED GREENER ENVIRONMENT
  MORE POWER IN LOCAL HANDS

#EASTMIDLANDSDEVOLUTION 
#EASTMIDSCOMBINED

MORE FUNDING, 
MORE CONTROL,
 A BRIGHTER FUTURE

DEVOLUTION: A BRIGHTER FUTURE FOR THE EAST MIDLANDS2 Page 64



Barry Lewis
Derbyshire 
County Council

A DEVOLUTION DEAL FOR THE EAST MIDLANDS: 
ONE OF THE BIGGEST IN THE COUNTRY
Derbyshire County Council, Nottinghamshire County Council, Derby City Council and 
Nottingham City Council have been o� ered a £1.14 billion devolution deal by  Greg 
Clarke MP, the Secretary of State for Levelling Up, Housing and Communities. 

The deal with the government would see an extra £38 million a year coming to the 
East Midlands from 2024, addressing years of historically low investment in our area. 

It would mean funding and powers move from a national level to a regional level to 
help the 2.2 million people who live here.

We want to make the most of every penny so this can be used to make a real 
di� erence to people’s lives.

As Leaders, we have all fought for a fairer share for our cities and counties, and a 
bigger voice for our area, to give us the clout and the infl uence we deserve, and to 
help us live up to our full potential. This deal would help make that a reality.

More and better jobs through greater investment in our area, economic growth, 
better transport, housing, skills training, and an enhanced greener environment, as 
we move towards being carbon neutral, are what we all want to see. We will work 
together for the common good of the East Midlands.

We haven’t always had the same level of funding or infl uence as other areas, which 
has held us back. This is a golden opportunity to change that and put the power to do 
so in our own hands.

There is a lot still to be agreed, and this is the beginning of the journey, not the end. 
We’re determined to build on this deal over time, as other areas have done.

MORE FUNDING, MORE CONTROL, A BRIGHTER FUTURE 3

Ben Bradley MP
Nottinghamshire 
County council

Christopher Poulter
Derby City Council

David Mellen
Nottingham 
City Council

Page 65



Broxtowe

A1

A1

M1

M1

M1

A1

GLOSSOP

BAKEWELL

BUXTON

CHESTERFIELD

ASHBOOURNEO

MANSFIELD

 DISTRICT

ASHFIELD 

DISTRICT

BROXSTOWE

NEWARK AND SHERWOOD 

DISTRICT 

RUSHCLIFFE BOROUGH 

GEDLING 

BOROUGH

BASSETLAW DISTRICT

MANSFIELD

SOUTHWELL

HUCKNALL

BEESTON

SUTTON IN 

ASHFIELD

NEWARK

WORKSOP

RETFORD

WEST BRIDGFORD

NOTTINGHAM

DERBYSHIRE NOTTINGHAMSHIRE

DERBY

MATLOCK

ILKESTON

STAFFORDSHIRE

LINCOLNSHIRE

SOUTH YORKSHIRE

AMBER 

VALLEY

DERBYSHIRE 

DALES

HIGH PEAK

CHESTERFIELD & 

NORTH EAST

BOLSOVER

EREWASH

SOUTH

DERBYSHIRE

£1.14 BILLION OF FUNDING
The deal would mean a new guaranteed funding stream of £1.14 billion, 
or £38 million a year over the next 30 years to help level up the East Midlands, as well 
as an extra £16.8 million for new homes on brownfi eld land and control over a range 
of budgets like the Adult Education Budget.

The deal o� ers the joint largest Investment Fund in the country, matching the amount 
o� ered to West Yorkshire, with other similar deals attracting lower Investment Fund 
fi gures.

Other areas with devolution deals have been able to make their funding go even 
further by o� ering loans to businesses so they can invest and grow, with devolved 
areas making money from the interest – so the true fi nancial benefi t is likely to be 
greater still.

DEVOLUTION: A BRIGHTER FUTURE FOR THE EAST MIDLANDS4 Page 66



Building on our regional strengths… 
  Derbyshire, Nottinghamshire, Derby and Nottingham have a combined population 
of 2.2 million people and contribute £50.5 billion to the UK economy in terms of 
GVA (Gross Value Added).

  The area has more than 88,000 businesses providing over 930,000 jobs in sectors 
with potential for growth, including advanced manufacturing, engineering, clean 
energy, logistics, creative and digital, education, health, pharmaceuticals, and 
wholesale and retail trade.

  The region is home to Toyota UK, Rolls Royce, Alstom, and Boots, as well as the 
University of Derby, Nottingham Trent University, and the University of Nottingham, 
which provide centres of research excellence with expertise in aerospace, rail, life 
sciences, and strong transport links.

  The area is home to major tourist attractions including the Peak District National 
Park, the National Forest, Nottingham Castle, Derby’s Silk Mill and Sherwood Forest.

  There are major strategic opportunities presented through the East Midlands 
Freeport, the East Midlands Development Corporation, and the announcements in 
the Integrated Rail Plan on HS2.

  The two cities and counties are geographically close and already work closely 
together on many collaborative large-scale initiatives.

…and helping us to overcome the challenges we face.
  Productivity in the East Midlands is behind the UK average - we need an increase of 
14.6% to close the gap.

 Public spending per person has historically been below the UK average. 

  There are areas within our region with high levels of poverty and poor social 
mobility.

  More local powers will help us tackle these challenges and harness the true 
economic potential of our area, for the benefi t of everyone who lives here, and 
which would also benefi t the whole country.

  Devolution for the East Midlands would give us more control and fl exibility to 
respond to local needs including transport, skills training, regenerating our villages, 
towns, and cities, and more.

MORE FUNDING, MORE CONTROL, A BRIGHTER FUTURE 5Page 67



WHAT WOULD DEVOLUTION MEAN?
Devolution would create a new legal entity known formally as a Mayoral Combined 
County Authority (MCCA). This would include Derbyshire County Council, 
Nottinghamshire County Council, Derby City Council and Nottingham City Council 
and cover the areas of both cities and both counties. 

The four authorities would still exist as individual councils and would work together on 
a formal and legal basis to improve the region for our communities and businesses.

It would mean we can work more e� ectively across council boundaries. People move 
across these boundaries every day to get to their homes, for work, for leisure, and to 
visit friends and family, and so it makes sense that we all work together to improve 
things on a regional level.

Councils in our counties and cities already work in partnership in many di� erent ways. 
Devolution would mean we can do this more e�  ciently and do more than is currently 
possible.

Rather than a brand-new tier of government, this devolution deal would move existing 
funding and powers from London, directly to us in the East Midlands, which means 
that local voices would play a greater role in decision making.

The new MCCA would include representatives from existing county, city, borough, 
and district councils. It would be led by a new regional mayor, and there would also be 
opportunities for private, public, and voluntary sector organisations to contribute and 
have their voices heard.

Devolution is a major opportunity to bring decisions closer to where they have an 
impact, and to get a fairer share to help to close the gap in public investment in 
the East Midlands, so we can see more economic growth and new and better jobs. 
Devolved funding is allocated for specifi c purposes. For example, the adult skills 
budget must be used on training. 

The deal would give us much more control over our own area. Rather than many 
major decisions being made for us in London, as happens now, local people would 
have a say in the region’s priorities, and devolution would give us a national platform 
and greater representation in London.

Devolution has seen real improvements in other parts of the country where it has been 
successfully adopted.

DEVOLUTION: A BRIGHTER FUTURE FOR THE EAST MIDLANDS6 Page 68



A MORE PROSPEROUS FUTURE
Devolution is a great chance for us to improve our 
economy and prepare for the industries of the future. 
It would mean we could develop new commercial 
spaces to maximise jobs and business opportunities.

We can build on our region’s existing knowledge 
and expertise, for example in transport and green 
technology, promoting the growth of a future low carbon economy by 
investing in related skills training at colleges and other training facilities.

By playing to our strengths and tailoring our approach to the needs 
of our area, we can encourage economic growth and make sure local 
people benefi t.

Devolution also means we can take advantage of economies of scale 
by using combined and devolved budgets to deliver more value for 
taxpayers and more cost-e�  cient services.

MORE FUNDING, MORE CONTROL, A BRIGHTER FUTURE 7Page 69



A FUTURE WITH MORE OPPORTUNITIES
Devolution means we’d get more say locally, and get to make decisions about our 
area, in our area. For example, we’d have a fully devolved adult skills budget, which 
means we’d no longer be constrained by rules set nationally on what we can use adult 
education funding for – only on specifi c age groups, for instance – and could instead 
tailor this to the needs of people in our communities.

We could help this funding be available to the people who need it, so they can fulfi l 
their potential and help them get the jobs they want. We’d also help employers hire 
people with the skills they need by addressing the skills gap, by removing barriers to 
better paid work.

We can play to our strengths in research and industry, including aerospace, life 
sciences, advanced manufacturing, and energy, as well as make the most of 
opportunities in the future associated with the East Midlands Freeport, HS2 and rail, 
and the East Midlands Development Corporation, 

A BETTER-CONNECTED FUTURE
Devolution would give us the opportunity to:

  combine local transport plans together, so we have a single integrated plan, 
rather than four

 develop new smart integrated ticketing on public transport

 create new concessionary fare schemes

It would also mean we could set up and coordinate a Key Route Network, which 
would be made up of some of the busiest and most important roads in our area, so we 
could better manage our highways.

DEVOLUTION: A BRIGHTER FUTURE FOR THE EAST MIDLANDS8 Page 70



A GREENER FUTURE
Devolution means we can work more e� ectively on 
a larger scale so we can all benefi t from cleaner air, 
lower heating costs, and so we can move towards 
being carbon neutral, with:

 new low carbon homes

  retrofi tting existing homes with external 
wall insulation 

 promoting the use of renewable energy

 protecting and enhancing our green spaces. 

 It would make £18 million available to support housing 
and drive Net Zero ambitions in the East Midlands.

BETTER HOUSING FOR US AND 
FOR FUTURE GENERATIONS
With devolution, we could work at a regional level with Homes England to build more 
a� ordable homes, using new powers to buy land and housing, with the consent of 
district and borough councils.

It could mean new and better standards for homes, low carbon measures, and 
improvements to existing housing.

It would mean £16.8 million a year would be available for building new homes on 
brownfi eld land, subject to suitable areas being identifi ed.

MORE FUNDING, MORE CONTROL, A BRIGHTER FUTURE 9Page 71



AND MORE…
Devolution also means we could work with national government at a regional level 
on new initiatives to support young people and to tackle:

 Homelessness

 Domestic abuse

 Community safety

 Social mobility

OUR FIRST REGIONAL MAYOR
A new regional mayor would give us a bigger voice, more infl uence, and a higher 
profi le across the country.  It would create a single point of contact for businesses and 
other organisations looking to move into our region or expand.

A regional mayor would help us speak with one voice and help us make a strong case 
to the Government for more investment in the East Midlands.

The mayor would be directly elected by residents in Derbyshire, Nottinghamshire, 
Derby and Nottingham, giving them more infl uence over issues which a� ect them.

The fi rst election for a regional mayor would be in spring 2024.

DEVOLUTION: A BRIGHTER FUTURE FOR THE EAST MIDLANDS10 Page 72



WHAT’S NEXT?
All four city and county council leaders in Derbyshire, Nottinghamshire, Derby and 
Nottingham have signed up to work on this devolution deal with the government.

We want to hear your views. Each council will look at the details of the deal in the 
autumn to approve the deal for a consultation later this year, so that residents, 
businesses, and other organisations can have their say. The deal also needs new 
legislation from central government.

A devolution deal is the beginning of the journey, not the end. There would be 
opportunities to build and enhance on it over time, as has happened in other areas. 
A new combined authority would be considered at future national government 
spending reviews. 

There is still a lot to do and details to work out for 
devolution to become a reality in 2024. We will have 
to work hard to make devolution work for us, and to 
ensure it results in the improvements we want to see. 
But we’re convinced it’s the right move and would be 
a massive step forward for the East Midlands.

Our region has so much potential, but we’ve not 
always had the investment or control over our own 
future to make a di� erence. A devolution deal is our 
chance to create a better future.

MORE FUNDING, MORE CONTROL, A BRIGHTER FUTURE 11Page 73



WHO’S BACKING DEVOLUTION?
Those supporting devolution include local leaders across the political spectrum, 
the Chamber of Commerce, the East Midlands D2N2 Local Enterprise Partnership 
(LEP), the University of Derby, Nottingham Trent University, and the University of 
Nottingham.

It is supported by a wide range of di� erent organisations and local leaders because 
they see the great potential it o� ers for improving our area, our communities, and the 
lives of people who live, work, and visit our region.

#EASTMIDLANDSDEVOLUTION 
#EASTMIDSCOMBINED

Page 74



  

 
HIGH PEAK BOROUGH COUNCIL 

 

The Executive 
 

6 October 2022 
 

 

TITLE: 
 

Joint Procurement Strategy 2022-25 
 
EXECUTIVE COUNCILLOR: 

 

Councillor Barrow - Executive Councillor for 
Corporate Services and Finance 

 

CONTACT OFFICER: 
 

Elaine Hallworth - Lead Procurement Officer 
 
WARDS INVOLVED: 

 

 

Non Specific 

 

 
Appendices Attached: 
Appendix 1 – Draft Joint Procurement Strategy 2022-2025 

 
 
1. Reason for the Report 

 

1.1 To present the Council’s Joint Procurement Strategy 2022-2025 for approval. 

 
2. Recommendation 

2.1 That the contents of this report are noted and and that the Executive approve 

and adopt of the Joint Procurement Strategy. 
 
3. Executive Summary 

 
3.1 Procurement activity has the opportunity to influence all functions within 

organisations and throughout supply chains to deliver innovative products 
and services that meet the evolving needs of consumers and society.  

 
3.2 The Council’s current Procurement Strategy, developed jointly with the 

Council’s Alliance partner Staffordshire Moorlands District Council, was 

approved in 2014 and set out the vision and strategic priorities to direct and 
govern the Council’s  procurement activities. The Strategy provided a 

basis for development of the procurement function to deliver the efficiencies 
identified over the next 2-3 yrs. 

 

3.3 The high level achievements made as a result of the 2014 Joint Procurement 
Strategy’s objectives, included: 

 

 Over £1.9m achieved in Efficiency and Rationalisation Programme 

Savings; 

Page 75

Agenda Item 8



  

 Professional Practitioner qualified Lead Procurement Officer MCIPS 

accredited (Member of Chartered Institute Procurement and Supply); 

 Fully integrated electronic workflow, tendering and sourcing platforms – 
eliminating paper based practices throughout the purchasing cycle; 

 Actively engaging and supporting the Local Supply chain in applying for 
contracting opportunities – making them visible and accessible at lower 

levels of spend. 
 

3.4 The existing strategy has now expired and requires a new document to focus 
on future direction of travel with an emphasis on national priorities and the 

Council’s key priorities for the next three years.  
 
3.5 The Council’s current Corporate priorities, and those highlighted in the Local 

Government Association’s (LGA’s) National Procurement Strategy, have 
provided a basis to determine the key themes and objectives to shape this 
Strategy.  The key themes will be the underlying focus of the action plan and 

objectives for implementation and delivery 
 

3.6 The new Strategy will set clear objectives to meet future challenges and 
deliver services to our communities and to create a responsible framework in 
which to achieve the key objectives as outlined in the Corporate Plan 2019-

2023 for each Authority. 
 

3.7 The focus for the next three years will be to continue to drive value for money 
and achieve financial savings, but also to consider environmental, social and 
ethical responsibilities to drive procurement in a sustainable way and 

effectively work with local suppliers to enhance the local economy.  
 

3.8 Five key themes have been identified which will link and underpin the strategic 
vision and aims of the proposed new Joint Procurement Strategy: 

 

 Showing leadership 

 Behaving Commercially 

 Achieving Community Benefits 

 Environmental Sustainability 

 Ethical Sourcing 
 

3.9 The Strategy includes an action plan covering the next three years. This 
details a range of actions which will be undertaken and delivered in order to 
demonstrate our support of each of the five key themes detailed above. The 

actions identified for each theme have been prioritised with regards to their 
impact and importance and to ensure clarity of the target delivery date.  

Further details are included in section 10 of this report. 
 
4. How this report links to Corporate Priorities  

 

4.1 The Strategy contributes to the Corporate Plan 2019-23 aim ‘to use resources 

effectively and provide value for money’ and the specific objective under this 
aim to ‘develop a new Procurement Strategy with a focus on spending money 
locally’. 

Page 76



  

 
 

5. Alternative Options 

 
5.1 There are two options available to the Council: 

 
1. To not implement a new Joint Procurement Strategy to contribute to the 
delivery of the Council’s Corporate Priorities (not recommended) 

 
2. To adopt the new Joint Procurement Strategy as presented in this report 
(Recommended) 

 
6. Implications 

 
6.1

  

Community Safety - (Crime and Disorder Act 1998) 

 
None 
 

6.2 Workforce 
 

The implementation of the strategy will need support from all 
integrated Council services and Elected members to champion and  
effectively deliver the priority actions. 

 
6.3 Equality and Diversity/Equality Impact Assessment 

 

None 
 

6.4 Financial Considerations 
 
The current MTFP contains no new efficiencies, however, work is 

underway to scope out a new efficiency plan and procurement 
savings will be identified as a sizeable contributor to this 

programme going forward given the current volatile economic 
environment. 
  

6.5 Legal 
 

Compliance with internal and regulated external governance is 
addressed in this Strategy and will be delivered in accordance with 
the Regulations as set out in Public Sector Contracting legislation 

and the Council’s own Procurement Procedure Rules. 
 

6.6 Climate Change 
 
Environmental Sustainability is included as a key theme in this 

Strategy, with associated strategic objectives.  Actions to meet 
climate change challenges through procurement activity are 

detailed in the Strategy and will be a main focus for the delivery 
and planning for future commissioning strategies.  
Specific actions to be undertaken include the development and 

Page 77



  

implementation of a Green purchasing guide and the production of 
sustainable mandatory standards in specifications for procurement 
exercises. It is also intended to work with the Council’s supply 

chain to identify sustainable alternatives and support innovation in 
manufacturing and service delivery to reduce emissions. 

 
6.7 
 

Consultation 
 

Consultation has been undertaken throughout the drafting of this 
strategy, as detailed at section 9 of this report, including 

consideration of relevant issues by the Council’s Climate Change 
Working group. 
 

6.8 
 

Risk Assessment 
 

Effective management of contractual and procurement risk is 
detailed as a priority action in this strategy.   

 

Mark Trillo 
Executive Director (Finance and Customer Services) 

 
Web Links and 
Background Papers 

Contact details 

29.6.2021 – Development of a Joint Procurement 
Strategy (Information Digest) 

Elaine Hallworth – Lead Procurement Officer 
Elaine.hallworth@highpeak.gov.uk 
 

 
 
 

7. Detail 
 

7.1 Procurement activity has the opportunity to influence all functions within 
organisations and throughout supply chains to deliver innovative products and 
services that meet the evolving needs of consumers and society.  

 
7.2 The Council’s current Procurement Strategy, developed jointly with the 

Council’s Alliance partner, Staffordshire Moorlands District Council, was 
approved in 2014, and set out the vision and strategic priorities to direct and 
govern the Council’s procurement activities. The strategy provided a basis for 

development of the procurement function to deliver the efficiencies identified 
over the next 2-3 yrs. 

 
7.3  The high level achievements made as a result of the 2014 Joint Procurement 

Strategy’s objectives included: 

 

 Over £1.9m achieved in Efficiency and Rationalisation Programme 

Savings; 

 Professional Practitioner qualified Lead Procurement Officer MCIPS 

accredited (Member of Chartered Institute Procurement and Supply); 

 Fully integrated electronic workflow, tendering and sourcing platforms – 

eliminating paper based practices throughout the purchasing cycle; 

Page 78

https://democracy.highpeak.gov.uk/documents/s25023/ID%20-%20Joint%20Procurement%20Strategy.pdf
https://democracy.highpeak.gov.uk/documents/s25023/ID%20-%20Joint%20Procurement%20Strategy.pdf


  

 Actively engaging and supporting the Local Supply chain in applying for 
contracting opportunities – making them visible and accessible at lower 
levels of spend. 

 

7.4 The existing Strategy has now expired and requires a new document to focus 

on future direction of travel with an emphasis on national and the Council’s key 
priorities for the next three years.  

 
7.5 The Council’s current Corporate plan aims and those highlighted in the Local 

Government Association’s (LGA’s) National Procurement Strategy, have 

provided a basis to determine the key themes and objectives to shape this 
Strategy.  The key themes will be the underlying focus of the action plan and 

objectives for implementation and delivery. 
 
7.6 The main themes for the new Joint Procurement Strategy 2022-25 are based 

 on the following objectives:  
  

 Delivering Value for Money;  

 Commercial focus and effective Contract Management;  

 Maintaining Transparency and Ethical practices through effective 

leadership;  

 Promoting Responsible and Sustainable Procurement;  

 Supporting the Local Economy and Business Growth;  

 Delivering Social Value (CSR) through our contracts. 
 
8. Performance monitoring & benchmarking 

 
8.1 To achieve continuous improvement, performance of the Council’s 

Procurement function is measured through quarterly and annual key 
performance reporting framework.   

 
8.2 Performance is measured via a number of internally reported corporate KPIs, 

these being: 

 Supplier (creditor) spend within the local area as a % of total spend  

 Use of Contracts Register – annual contract spend as % of gross 

expenditure budget 

 % of Procurement activity on forward plan (Joint Alliance measure) 

 % of contracts awarded to local suppliers following submission of 
expression of interest (over £5,000)   

 

8.3 The table below details our performance with regards to these indicators in 
2021-22 and the targets for 2022-23: 

 
KPI 2021-22 result 2022-23 target 

Supplier (creditor) spend within the 

local area as a % of total spend  
 

8.79% 8%  

Use of Contracts Register – annual 

contract spend as % of gross 
expenditure budget 

Result: 92% 

(target 93.92% 

based on 2020-21 

2% improvement 

on 2021-22 

Page 79



  

 results) 

% of Procurement activity on forward 

plan (Joint  HP/SM measure) 
 

Result: 52% 

(target was 68%) 

70% 

% of contracts awarded to local 
suppliers following submission of 
expression of interest (over £5,000)   
 

Result: 15% Contextual no 
target set 

 
8.4 The first critical step in effective strategic sourcing practice is to understand 

the organisation’s spend profiles, values and categories (ie. The classification 
of areas of expenditure).  Having clear visibility of the organisation’s spend will 

support informed decisions on priority areas for procurement to focus on. 
 
8.5 Regular analysis of the Council’s supply chain expenditure is used to inform 

decisions on how to achieve best value through procuring future supplies, 
services or works contracts. 

 
8.6 The table below details the Council’s supply chain spend (inc management 

payments ie: AES) over the last five years including 2020 – 2022 (during 

coronavirus pandemic): 
 

Authority 2017/18 

[£] 

2018/19 

[£] 

2019/20 

[£] 

2020/21* 

[£] 

2021/22* 

[£] 

HPBC 
 

18,977,415 19,868,373 20,468,722 
 

23,534,268 27,731,112 

   * Inc. ‘In Contract’ Financial support payments_Covid19 
 
8.7 From expenditure data, we can look to review further to identify categories of 

spend and which suppliers are classified as ‘Local’.  For the purpose of 

defining ‘local’ business supply arrangements, the regional boundaries for 

Derbyshire and Staffordshire are used and the revised strategy aims to 
increase the % of local spend through supply chain arrangements over the 
next three years. 

 
8.8 The current local supply chain spend profile as a % of overall spend for 

2021/22 is detailed below for the Council: 
 

Spend Profile – % Regional spend (County Postcode Areas) 

 

Page 80



  

                  
 
8.9 We will continue to work to improve the percentage of local spend and 

 opportunities to supply to the Council and will request that our Joint Venture 

Companies adopt and support the Council’s Joint Procurement Strategy 
objectives of active engagement and support of the local supply chain and 

economy. 
 
8.10 Wider benchmarking of the Council’s procurement function was completed in 

September 2021 through voluntary participation in the LGA’s National 
Procurement Strategy Diagnostic survey.  The results confirmed, regionally 

and nationally, that the Council has a ‘developing’ to ‘mature’ profile against 
other regional Public Sector Contracting Authorities in the following areas: 

 

o Obtaining social value 

o Engaging strategic suppliers 

o Creating commercial opportunities 

o Contract and relationship management 

o Managing strategic risk 

o Working with partners 

o Engaging VCSEs (voluntary, community sector…) 

o Local SME and micro-business engagement… 

o Engaging Councillors 

o Engaging senior managers 

o Enablers 

8.11 This is a real achievement for the Council, demonstrating progression of the 

priority areas as identified in the National Procurement Strategy, and provides  
a firm basis for the Council’s revised Joint Strategy to build on. 

 
9. Strategy review & consultation 
 

9.1 In preparation of drafting the strategy, wider consultation has taken place with 
internal and extended stakeholders to ensure that the key priorities and 

actions are appropriate, agreed and practicable for delivery. 
 

Page 81



  

 Elected member input 
 
9.2 This review commenced during summer 2021 when elected members were 

initially consulted on the proposed Joint Procurement Strategy via an 
Information Digest Report issued on 29th June 2021.   

 
9.3 Further to these reports, an online consultation survey was issued to all 

elected members at that time asking for their feedback on the key outputs as 

detailed in the new three year strategy.  
 

9.4 Below is an example of some of the suggested amendments for the strategy 
relating to environmental actions:  

 
“I would suggest that the “Green Procurement Policy” should include considerations 
of whether suppliers are sourcing products that do not cause detriment to biodiversity 
whether local or international.” 

 

9.5 The outline strategy was also presented at the SMDC Climate Change 
working group on 16 July 2020 and similarly to the equivalent working group at 

HPBC in September 2020, thus ensuring active engagement with these 
groups and executive leads to determine the procurement priorities to directly 
address climate change challenges. The draft Strategy specifically seeks to 

support the Council’s climate ambitions, with Environmental Susutainability a 
key theme throughout, supported by the objective to minimise the 

environmental impacts of our procurement activity through sustainable 
sourcing policies and effectively supporting the supply chain to improve 
efficiency and achievements in environmental standards. Specific actions to 

be undertaken include the development and implementation of a Green 
purchasing guide and the production of sustainable mandatory standards in 

specifications for procurement exercises. It is also intended to work with the 
Council’s supply chain to identify sustainable alternatives and support 
innovation in manufacturing and service delivery to reduce emissions. 

 
9.6 The outline strategy was positively received, with the majority of feedback 

confirming that the actions against the key themes were suitable and sufficient 

for inclusion and implementation. Requirements for the use of single use 
plastics was included as an additional item for specifications - a policy on such 

was adopted at HPBC in 2020. 
 
 Business & Chamber of Commerce input 

 
9.7 In addition to member engagement, both East Midlands and West Midlands 

Chamber of Commerce have been supportive in the development of the Joint 
Procurement Strategy, adding value to shape the content to support 
opportunity and outputs for Small to Medium Enterprises (SME’s) and Micro 

businesses.   
 

9.8 In October 2021, representatives from the Council’s Procurement team 
attended Glossopdale small Business Network event held at Glossopdale 

Page 82



  

School.  This event was an opportunity to network with other agencies and 
businesses in the High Peak area to share the outline strategy  objectives and 
also to provide information and opportunities for future engagement. 

 
9.9 Similarly, events with West Midlands Chamber of Commerce have been 

attended prior to the pandemic. 
 
9.10 During the next three years we will continue to work with both Chambers to 

address some of the barriers identified for businesses when looking for Public 
Sector Contracting opportunities, building on work already completed.  

Business network panels and meet the buyer events will be delivered over this 
time to establish strong wider supply chain networks and support local 
business engagement. 

 

 LGA National Procurement Strategy 2018-2022 

 
9.11 To shape and identify the key outcomes of the Council’s strategy, detailed 

review and consideration of the national Procurement Strategy’s priority focus 
areas has been incorporated in this revision.  This is to ensure the Council is 
delivering consistent positive change and improvements alongside wider 

Public Sector Contracting Authorities.  
 

9.12 The National Procurement Strategy (NPS) for Local Government in England 
2018 focuses on three themes which have been identified as the sector’s 
priorities for the next four years:  

 

 Showing leadership,  

 Behaving commercially,  

 Achieving community benefits.  

 
9.13 The above outputs in the National Strategy represent the foundations of which 

the Council’s Joint Strategy will build on, in addition to two further themes to 

ensure the Council observes its responsibilities around ethical sourcing and 
environmental sustainability.  The updated National Strategy will be released 

for publication imminently and will provide the emphasis and tools that help 
local government continue on the procurement improvement journey. 

 

 Public procurement reforms 
 

9.14 Whilst the United Kingdom has left the European Union, we are still governed 
by the Public Contract Regulations 2015 and therefore must adhere to the 
requirements and principles of those regulations, until such a time that new 

reforms on how public sector procurement in the UK is to be delivered in the 
future. 

 

9.15 In December 2020 Government published the Green Paper Transforming 
Public Procurement which set out proposals intended to shape the future of 

public procurement in the UK. 

9.16 The Government’s goal is to speed up and simplify procurement processes, 
place value for money at their heart, and unleash opportunities for small 

Page 83



  

businesses, charities and social enterprises to innovate in public service 
delivery. 

9.17 The Procurement Bill, which will reform the existing EU Procurement 

Directives for Public Sector Contracting, is currently going through Parliament.  
It will take several months to complete its passage to obtain Royal Assent, 

secondary legislation will then follow establishing reformed ‘Regulations’.  It is 
anticipated that this will be occur no earlier than 2023 with a 6 month lead in 
for implementation. 

 
9.18 The objectives of the reforms already mirror the intentions set out in our new 

Joint Strategy, but will need to be monitored over the next 12 months, to 
ensure that any fundamental changes which could affect the delivery of this 
Strategy are brought before members for revision. 

 
10. Joint Procurement Strategy 2022-25 

 

10.1 The new strategy will set clear objectives to meet future challenges and deliver 

services to our communities and create a responsible framework in which to 
achieve the key objectives as outlined in the Corporate Plans 2019-2023 for 

each Authority. 
 
10.2 The focus for the next three years will be to continue to drive value for money 

and achieve financial savings, but also to consider environmental, social and 
ethical responsibilities to drive procurement in a sustainable way and 

effectively work with local suppliers to enhance the local economy.  
 
10.3 Both Councils declared a Climate Emergency during 2019. Consequently, a 

proactive approach to procurement is required, looking beyond short-term 
needs and considering the longer term impacts of each purchase.  

 
10.4 The Joint Procurement Strategy 2022-25, as provided at Appendix 1 will, in 

addition to the pursuit of value for money, compliancy and transparency, place 

further focus on environmental, social and ethical responsibilities and 
engagement of local suppliers to enhance the local economy and embed 

commercial focus throughout our organisations.  
 
10.5 Five key themes have been identified which will link and underpin the strategic 

vision and aims of its new Joint Procurement Strategy, these key themes are: 

 Showing leadership 

 Behaving Commercially 

 Achieving Community Benefits 

 Environmental Sustainability 

 Ethical Sourcing 

 
10.6 The strategy includes an action plan covering the next three years. This details 

a range of actions which will be undertaken and delivered in order to 

demonstrate our support for each of the five key themes detailed above. The 
actions identified for each theme have been prioritised in regards to their 

impact and importance and to ensure clarity of the target delivery date.   
 

Page 84



  

10.7 The Action Plan included in the Strategy is detailed to identify each action that 
 supports and enables the delivery of the objectives.  The following table 
summarises those objectives and actions, as detailed in section 5 of the 

Strategy: 
 

 
KEY THEME OBJECTIVEs ACTION Headings 

Showing 
Leadership 
 

Engaging Councillors, Senior 
Management and Stakeholders 
 
Working with Partners and 
Strategic Suppliers 
 
Embedding excellence in 
Procurement 

Working with Internal  
Stakeholders, external 
partners and strategic 
suppliers 

 

 
Developing expertise, skills 
and knowledge 

 
Behaving 
Commercially 

 

Creating Commercial 
Opportunities 
 
 
 
 
Contract Management 
Managing strategic risk 

Identifying and establishing 
commercial advantages in 
Contracts, through innovation 
and alternative commercial 
service delivery models 
 
Effective Contract 
Management practice – 
achieving best value and 
continuous improvement 
through contractual 
arrangements 
 
Awareness, management 
and mitigation of strategic 
contractual risk(s) 

Achieving 

Community 
Benefits 
 

Engaging local small, medium 
enterprises (SMEs) and micro-
businesses  
 
Obtaining Social Value – award 
of services and works contracts 
to protect and enhance the 
health & wellbeing of local 
people and the local economy 

 

Local Supplier and Business 
engagement practice 
 
 
Achieving social value 
outcomes through 
procurement to benefit local 
communities and 
organisations 

Environmental 
Sustainability  

 

Minimising environmental 
impacts through sustainable 
sourcing policies and effectively 
supporting the supply chain to 
improve efficiency and 
achievements in environmental 
standards. 
 

Meeting the challenges of 
climate change actions in the 
procurement cycle, 
renewable energy, 
sustainable materials and 
reduction in supply chain 
carbon footprint 
 
Develop and implement a 
Green purchasing guide and 
sustainable mandatory 
standards in specifications 

Page 85



  

 
Work with supply chain on 
identifying alternatives and 
supporting innovation in 
manufacturing and service 
delivery to reduce emissions 

 

Ethical 
Sourcing 

 

Contracting with responsible 
businesses 
 
Ensuring that human rights and 
employment rights are protected 
throughout the Councils’ supply 
chains and encouraging 
responsible business practices. 
 

 

 
 
 

Maintaining standards for 
‘responsible’ procurement 
 
Supply chain analysis and 
due diligence to protect 
employment rights, fair pay 
and conditions. 
 
Ensure the Council’s own 
procurement practices are 
fair, equal, non-
discriminatory and 
transparent 

 
 

Page 86



       

  

High Peak Borough Council 

 &  

Staffordshire Moorlands District Council  
 

 

Joint  
Procurement 

Strategy 
 

2022 – 2025 

 
 

Page 87



Page | 2  
High Peak Borough Council & Staffordshire Moorlands District Council  
Joint Procurement Strategy 2022-2025 

 

 

 

Section Title 

 

Page 

1 Introduction  
 

 

3 

2 
 

Background 
 
 

4 

3 

 

Joint Procurement Strategy Vision and Aims 

 
 

6 

4 Delivery of the Joint Procurement Strategy 

 
 

8 

5 Joint Procurement Strategy Action Plan 2022-2025 

 
 

15 

 

Version Control 

Version:  4.0 

Last updated: 26.08.22 

Author: E Hallworth 

Date Approved:  

 

Joint Procurement Strategy 2022-2025 

High Peak Borough Council and Staffordshire Moorland District Council  set out in 

this Joint Procurement Strategy their vision and strategic aims which will direct and 

govern their procurement activities for the next three years. 

The Strategy will strengthen the foundations for the effective delivery of procurement 

in the Councils and  support  responsible and sustainable sourcing practices. 

 

 

 

Contents 
 

Page 88



Page | 3  
High Peak Borough Council & Staffordshire Moorlands District Council  
Joint Procurement Strategy 2022-2025 

1. Introduction  

1.1 Procurement is the process by which we obtain goods, services, and works. 

Procurement is more than just purchasing, the process covers a full lifecycle of 

activities starting with the identification of needs, through to evaluation, purchasing 

and contract management.  

 

   

Fig 1.0 Procurement Cycle Example 

  
1.2 Procurement can range from the day to day purchasing of commodities, to 

purchasing key strategic items (such as large capital assets), commissioning, buying 

in or outsourcing an entire service.  

 

1.3 Procurement can influence all functions within organisations and throughout supply 

chains directly to deliver innovative products and services that meet the evolving 

needs of consumers and wider society. 

 

1.4 The Councils recognise that the Joint Procurement Strategy should, in addition to the 

pursuit of value for money, compliancy and transparency, provide further focus on 

environmental, social and ethical responsibilities and the engagement of local 

suppliers to enhance the local economy and embed commercial focus throughout our 

organisations. 

 

1.5 The Strategy includes clear objectives to meet future challenges and to create a 

responsible framework in which to achieve the key objectives as outlined in the 

Corporate Plans for each Authority. The focus for the next three years will be to 

implement and deliver against the actions as identified. 

 

Page 89



Page | 4  
High Peak Borough Council & Staffordshire Moorlands District Council  
Joint Procurement Strategy 2022-2025 

2. Background  

2.1 The Councils’ previous Joint Procurement Strategy was approved in April 2014 and 

implemented over the following two years.  Since then, further position statements 

have been reported to elected members on the outputs and achievements of the then 

priority actions, summarised in the following table:  

ACTION DETAIL 

 

STATUS 

14/16_1.0 Delivery of cashable efficiency savings to support 
the Efficiency & Rationalisation Strategy by 
tendering, retendering, and renegotiating of 
contracts 
 

Ongoing 

14/16_2.0 Development and embedding a professional 
procurement unit of excellence to deliver on going 
efficiency savings for the Councils 
 

Completed 

14/16_3.0 Revising Financial and Procurement Procedure 
Rules to support transparency, timeliness of 
contract award and greater control 
 

Completed 

14/16_4.0 Expanding the usage of electronic procurement 
systems for works as appropriate 
 

Completed 

14/16_5.0 Increasing the levels of spend covered by contract 
implementation of electronic tendering 
 

Completed 

14/16_6.0 Supporting the local economy by increasing the 
number of procurement opportunities advertised 
and adoption of a local business concordat* 
 

Completed  

*under review 

14/16_7.0 Meeting the actions of Climate Change Agendas Ongoing 

 

2.2 2014-2016 JOINT PROCUREMENT STRATEGY ACHEIVEMENTS 

2.2.1 Some of the more high-level achievements that have been made as a result of the 

 Strategy’s objectives include: 

   Over £1.9m achieved in Efficiency and Rationalisation Programme Savings

  Professional Practitioner qualified Lead Procurement Officer MCIPS  

  accredited (Member of Chartered Institute Procurement and Supply) 

  Fully integrated electronic workflow, tendering and sourcing platforms – 
 eliminating paper-based practices throughout the purchasing cycle 

  Actively engaging and supporting the Local Supply chain in applying for  

  contracting opportunities – making them visible and accessible at lower levels 
  of spend 

Page 90



Page | 5  
High Peak Borough Council & Staffordshire Moorlands District Council  
Joint Procurement Strategy 2022-2025 

2.3 EFFECTIVE SUPPLIER RELATIONSHIPS 
 
2.3.1 The Councils have existing and newly established supplier relationships for the 

 delivery of key front line and support services.  The relationships between 

 client and provider work with a common goal to achieve best value and optimum 

 advantage for delivering efficient and cost effective services to the Councils’ 

 communities.   

 

2.3.2 Through effective management, communication, shared knowledge and expertise the 

Councils and delivery partner(s) continue to work to shared objectives and outcomes 

that benefit, financially and non-financially, all parties to these arrangements.    

 

2.3.3 The Councils are ensuring that, by working together with delivery partners, Corporate 

Plan objectives are achieved and benefits realised in their local communities through 

these commercial arrangements.   

 

2.4 CONSULTATION 

2.4.1 During 2021 elected members across in both Councils  were consulted on the 

proposed Joint Procurement Strategy following the presentation of Information Digest 

reports.  In addition, an online consultation survey was issued to all elected members 

asking for their feedback on the key outputs as detailed in the proposed three year 

strategy. 

 

2.4.2 In addition, the outline Strategy was presented at the Climate Change working groups 

at both Councils, engaging with these groups and executive leads to determine the 

procurement priorities to address Climate Change challenges directly. 

 

2.4.3 The outline Strategy was received positively at both Councils, with most of the 

feedback confirming the proposed actions against the key themes were suitable and 

sufficient for inclusion and implementation. Requirements concerning the use of 

Single use Plastics were included as an additional item for specifications. 

 

2.4.4 Chambers of Commerce in the East and West Midlands have been supportive in the 

development of the Joint Procurement Strategy, adding value to shape the content to 

support opportunity and outputs for Small to Medium Enterprises (SMEs) and Micro 

businesses.   

 

2.4.5 During the next three years we will continue to work with the Chambers on 

addressing some of the barriers for businesses when seeking Public Sector 

Contracting opportunities, building on work already completed.  Business network 

panels and meet the buyer events will be delivered over this time to establish strong 

wider supply chain networks and support local business engagement. 

 

 

 

Page 91



Page | 6  
High Peak Borough Council & Staffordshire Moorlands District Council  
Joint Procurement Strategy 2022-2025 

3. Joint Procurement Strategy Vision and Aims 

3.1 Each Councils’ priorities are set out in their four-year Corporate Plans.  They detail 

the Councils’ aims; objectives; key projects and how we will measure our success.  

The aims of the Corporate Plans have been transposed into key themes and actions 

to be delivered through the Joint Procurement Strategy. 

3.2 The key priorities for the 2022 – 2025 Joint Procurement Strategy are: 

 Delivering Value for Money 

 Commercial focus and effective Contract Management 

 Maintaining Transparency and Ethical practices through effective leadership 

 Promoting Responsible and Sustainable Procurement  

 Supporting the Local Economy and Business Growth 

 Delivering Social Value through our Contracts 

 Achieving Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) through contracting 

 Developing expertise and excellence in Procurement 

3.3 As Local Authorities face an uncertain future through reductions in Central 

Government funding, they should look to diversify their strategies for delivering public 

sector services and maximise the opportunities for business growth in their regions. 

 

3.4 High Peak Borough Council and Staffordshire Moorlands District have identified Five 

key themes that underpin the strategic vision and aims of their Joint Procurement 

Strategy which complement both Councils’ Corporate Plan objectives and support 

the vision and aims of the current National Procurement Strategy for Public Sector 

Contracting Authorities.  

 

3.5 A Golden thread links each key theme to shape the approach to successfully 

implementing and delivering against the key actions for each: 

    
 

Fig. 2.0 Joint Procurement Strategy 22-25  Golden Thread Five key themes 

Page 92



Page | 7  
High Peak Borough Council & Staffordshire Moorlands District Council  
Joint Procurement Strategy 2022-2025 

3.6 The Councils have made significant progress to date in forming and delivering 

innovative contracting strategies through establishing Joint Ventures and alternative 

means for front line service delivery. The first two key themes of the Joint 

Procurement Strategy can be evidenced as being fundamental to the success of 

strategic sourcing projects undertaken to date, namely: 

 

 Showing leadership - Maintaining Transparency and Ethical practices 

 through effective leadership, expertise, and excellence 

 

 Behaving Commercially - Delivering Value for Money, embedding

 Commercial focus and effective Contract Management  

 

3.7 Both Councils declared a Climate Emergency during 2019, consequently a proactive 

approach to procurement must be considered, looking beyond short-term needs and 

considering the longer-term impacts of each purchase made. 

 

3.8 It is essential that we tackle and meet the climate change challenges as a nation to 

 protect the natural environment, to improve air quality, protect against flooding, and 

 ensure transport, waste and energy policies are environmentally sustainable.   

 

3.9 The Councils can contribute to reducing negative environmental and social impact for 

our future generations directly, by maintaining ethical and sustainable sourcing 

approaches and controls within their Supply chain, by applying the remaining three 

key themes: 

 

 Achieving Community Benefits - Supporting the Local Economy and 

 Business Growth.  Delivering Social Value through our Contracts 

 

 Environmental Sustainability - Promoting Responsible and Sustainable 

 Procurement  

 

 Ethical Sourcing – Achieving Corporate Social Responsibility through 

 Contracting 

 

3.10 Effective sustainable procurement practices can contribute to reducing environmental 

and social impact for our future generations, by maintaining ethical and responsible 

sourcing approaches, controls, and influences with our Supply chain.  This is a key 

priority area for procurement activities to achieve positive outcomes. 

3.11 The Councils intend to explore the feasibility of implementing models like the Preston 

Model1 which is based on locally focused procurement utilising the following 

fundamental objectives: 
 

                                                                 
1
 The "Preston Model" is a term applied to how Preston City Council, its anchor institutions and other 

partners are implementing the principles of Community Wealth Building within Preston and the wider 
Lancashire area. 

Page 93



Page | 8  
High Peak Borough Council & Staffordshire Moorlands District Council  
Joint Procurement Strategy 2022-2025 

 Community Wealth Building 

 Influencing Local Spend 

 Growing local Business and Co-operatives 

 Innovation and Collaboration between partner organisations 

  

3.12 Overall, the vision and aims of this strategy will embed an innovative way forward in 

 commissioning activities and practices for the Councils, maximising on new ways of 

 working, innovative technology, and alternative models for delivery of services. 

 

4. Delivery of the Joint Procurement Strategy 

4.1 The Councils, working as a Strategic Alliance, recognise the responsibility they have 

to procure value for money goods, services and works, whilst maximising 

opportunities for social value, minimising environmental impacts and ensuring the 

ethical treatment of people throughout the supply chain. 

 

4.2 Delivering the key priorities to achieve our strategic aims will enable opportunities for 

continuous development, improvement and positive outcomes within the Councils 

themselves, their partners, and Joint Venture organisations. 

 
 

4.3 SPEND AND PERFORMANCE MANAGEMENT 

4.3.1 The first critical step in strategic sourcing practice, is to understand the 

 organisation’s spend profiles, values and categories (ie. Classification areas of 

 expenditure).  Having clear visibility of the organisation’s spend will support informed 

 decisions on priority areas for procurement to focus.  UK Public Procurement 

 spend is a large contributor towards overall public expenditure; 

 “In the last financial year, UK public procurement spend is expected to exceed 
 £300bn, over a third of all public expenditure”……”with Local Government (England) 
 Spend of £90bn”         [Ref: Government Commercial Strategy 2021-
25] 

4.3.2 Councils’ Procurement Spend Profiles 

 Frequent analysis of the Councils’ Supply Chain expenditure is used to inform 
decisions on how to achieve best value through procuring future supplies, services or 
works contracts. 

 
4.3.2.1  The table below details each Council’s Supply Chain spend (inc management 

payments ie: AES) over the last five years including 2020 – 2022 (during Coronavirus 
pandemic): 

 
Authority 2017/18 

[£] 

2018/19 

[£] 

2019/20 

[£] 

2020/21* 

[£] 

2021/22* 

[£] 
HPBC 
 

18,977,415 19,868,373 20,468,722 
 

23,534,268 27,731,112 

SMDC 
 

10,251,375 10,717,316 11,651,730 12,267,540 14,290,529 

Page 94



Page | 9  
High Peak Borough Council & Staffordshire Moorlands District Council  
Joint Procurement Strategy 2022-2025 

   * Inc. ‘In Contract’ Financial support payments_Covid19 
4.3.2.2  ‘Local’ Spend Analysis 
 

 For the purpose of defining ‘local’ business supply arrangements, the regional 

 boundaries for Derbyshire and Staffordshire are used and will aim to deliver through 

 this strategy, an increased % of local spend through supply chain arrangements over 

 the next three years. 

4.3.2.3 The current local supply chain spend profile as a % of overall spend for 2021/22 is 

 detailed below for both Councils: 

Spend Profile – % Regional spend (County Postcode Areas)  

                          

 

4.3.3 Performance Measurement and Benchmarking 

 The Strategy includes quarterly and annual key performance indicators, providing 

 a framework of clear standards measuring compliance and continuous improvement.  

 The current Procurement performance indicators are detailed in the table below: 

Performance Indicator 
 

Authority 21/22 
Result 

22/23 
Target 

% On Contract Spend HP 92% 94% 

% On Contract Spend SM 92% 94% 
% On Forward Plan Activity JOINT 52% 70% 

Local Spend as a % of total spend HP 8.79% 8% 
Local Spend as a % of total spend SM 5.68% 6% 

% of contracts awarded to local 
suppliers (EOI over £5,000) 

HP 15% Contextual 

% of contracts awarded to local 
suppliers (EOI over £5,000) 

SM 20% Contextual 

 
 
4.3.4 LGA National Procurement Strategy – 2021 Diagnostic positioning  

6% 
Local 

94% 
Other 

SMDC % LOCAL 
SPEND 2021/22 

[VALUE]
Local 

91% 
Other 

HPBC % LOCAL 
SPEND 2021/22 

Page 95



Page | 10  
High Peak Borough Council & Staffordshire Moorlands District Council  
Joint Procurement Strategy 2022-2025 

 In September 2021, the Councils completed the LGA National Procurement Strategy 

 diagnostic benchmarking online surveys.  Participation was on a voluntary basis and 

 the results of the surveys positioned the Councils, regionally and nationally.  The 

 surveys also gave opportunity to contribute thoughts on what should be included in 

the  next iteration of the National Procurement Strategy aimed to be published in 2022 

and  provided direction of travel for this strategy. 

4.3.4.1  Diagnostic results profiled both Councils overall as ‘Developing’ to ‘Mature’ in 

respective assessment areas.  This strategy will provide the basis to move the 

Councils forward to secured status of ‘Mature’ and ‘Leaders’ in procurement practice. 

 

4.4 VALUE DRIVERS 

4.4.1 To embed responsible and value driven procurement practices into our purchasing 

strategies, three focus areas are identified for inclusion in the Strategy.  These 

 value drivers shape the direction of this procurement strategy and associated 

 delivery action and forward plans: 

   

 Fig. 3.0 Value Drivers in the Joint Procurement Strategy 2022-2025 

 Community Focus  Providing best value to our internal and external customers 

through our contracting activities and operational delivery.  Ensuring on time in full 
payment for supply chain, optimising on maximum contractual advantages for 
community benefits and customer satisfaction.  
 

 Efficiencies  Reducing costs by value adding or re-engineering contract portfolios, 

encouraging innovation and use of technology to achieve reduction on costs and 
emissions throughout tier one suppliers and wider supply chain. 
 

VALUE 

Community 
Focus 

Efficiencies 

Effectiveness 

Page 96



Page | 11  
High Peak Borough Council & Staffordshire Moorlands District Council  
Joint Procurement Strategy 2022-2025 

 Effectiveness Underpin the delivery of the Procurement Strategy by effective 
management of supply chain, strategic, regular and alternative sourcing approaches, 
collaborative supplier relationships and robust contract management practice. 
 
 

4.5 GOVERNANCE & REGULATORY FRAMEWORKS 

4.5.1 Procurement governance provides fundamental principles for Public Sector 

contracting i.e. transparency, integrity, economy, openness, fairness, competition 

and accountability.  The regulatory frameworks to which the Councils adhere, and 

which will continue to deliver the actions outlined in this strategy, are: 

 Public Contract Regulations 2015 (PCRs 15) 

 Councils’ Joint Procurement Procedure Rules (revised. 2017) 

 The Public Services (Social Value) Act 2012 

 Local Government Association National Procurement Strategy 2018-22 

 Government Commercial Strategy 2021 -25 

 

4.5.2 The Councils have robust due diligence processes in place to mitigate exposure to 

risks in supply arrangements.  From selection stage through to contractual exchange 

we have specific policies and conformance checks to ensure that we do not expose 

the Councils and our residents to risks of, amongst others, data breach, 

safeguarding, environmental crimes and Health & Safety. 

4.5.3 We ensure through best practice, policies and mandatory conditions that our 

contracts and tender information include the required legal standards for: 

 Data Protection and GDPR 

 Safeguarding 

 Model Slavery 

 Financial Integrity 

 Health and Safety, Environmental and Equalities 

 

4.6 TRANSFORMING PUBLIC PROCUREMENT REFORMS 

4.6.1 Even though the United Kingdom has left the European Union, we are still governed 

by the Public Contract Regulations 2015 in UK law and, therefore, we must still 

adhere to the requirements and principles of those regulations, until such time that 

revised legislation is enacted. 

4.6.2 In preparation for this, in December 2020 the Green Paper Transforming Public 

 Procurement was published by the Government setting out proposals intended to 

 shape  the future of public procurement in this country for many years to come. 

4.6.3 The Government’s stated aim is to speed up and simplify our procurement 

processes,  place value for money at their heart, and unleash opportunities for small 

businesses,  charities, and social enterprises to innovate in public service delivery. 

Page 97



Page | 12  
High Peak Borough Council & Staffordshire Moorlands District Council  
Joint Procurement Strategy 2022-2025 

4.6.4 The Procurement Bill, which will reform the existing EU Procurement Directives for 

Public Sector Contracting, is going through Parliament currently.  This will take 

several months to complete its primary passage to obtain Royal Assent, then 

secondary legislation will follow, establishing reformed ‘regulations’.  It is expected 

the earliest this will be drafted is 2023 with a 6 month lead in for implementation. 

 

4.6.5 The objectives of the reforms mirror the intentions already set out in this Strategy and 

will be monitored over the next 12 months; any fundamental changes that may affect 

the delivery of this Strategy will be brought before members for revision. 

 

 4.7 PROCUREMENT TOOLKITS 

4.7.1 It is intended to introduce existing Public Sector Procurement toolkits into the 

 Councils’ procurement processes to drive forward a fit for purpose and effective 

 Procurement Strategy over the next three years. 

 

4.7.2 This new approach will include the development and utilising of new and existing 

toolkits to support the  delivery of the Strategy The key toolkits to support the delivery 

of our key Strategic themes are detailed in the table below: 

 

4.7.2.1 Procurement Toolkit Matrix 

Access Detail Outputs Joint Procurement 
Strategy 2022-25 

Key Theme 

Local 
 

Alliance 
Procurement E-
essentials  

Introduction of a Procurement 
Procedures training package 
utilising E-essentials  
E- training platform for Members 
and those staff with purchasing 
responsibilities 
 

Showing Leadership 

Local Alliance Contract 
Management 
toolkit 

Development of an internal 
toolkit to support Contract 
managers in monitoring and 
managing their contracts to 
maximise on opportunities for 
mutual benefits, reduce risk, 
deliver high quality outputs and 
value for money 

Behaving 
Commercially 

National LGA National 
TOMS Framework 
 

Supporting delivery of Social 
Value best practice 
 

Achieving 
Community Benefits 

National LGA Sustainable 
Procurement toolkit 
 
  

Toolkit content is aligned with 
mobilising commissioning, 
procurement, and contract 
management to deliver relevant 
economic, social and 
environmental outcomes 
 

Environmental 
Sustainability 

Global  CIPS Ethics Audit Examination of Suppliers Ethical Sourcing 

Page 98



Page | 13  
High Peak Borough Council & Staffordshire Moorlands District Council  
Joint Procurement Strategy 2022-2025 

Access Detail Outputs Joint Procurement 
Strategy 2022-25 

Key Theme 

  
 

practices to ensure legal and 
Contractual Compliance 
 

 

4.8 COMMERCIAL & STRATEGIC PARTNERING 

4.8.1 Local Authorities are adopting a commercially driven approach to the services they 

provide.  The Councils are no exception to this and have made significant progress in 

moving away from the more traditional outsourcing of services to market sector 

economic operators to a model of joint venture companies with public and private 

sector partners. 

 

4.8.2 Staffordshire Moorlands District Council and High Peak Borough Council agreed in 

 2017 to establish a joint venture partnership with ANSA, a subsidiary of Cheshire 

 East Council, to deliver waste and recycling collection, street cleansing, grounds 

 maintenance and fleet management services in order to achieve financial savings 

 to support its wider Efficiency & Rationalisation Plan. Alliance Environmental 

 Services (AES) was established under the “Teckal” ruling  which permits certain 

 exemptions from the provisions of the public procurement regulations. 

4.8.3 Services were transferred in phases to AES starting in August 2017 with the 

 High Peak waste and recycling services and ending in April 2020 with the final 

 transfer which included the transfer of both Councils’ street cleansing and grounds 

 maintenance functions.  

4.8.4 An overall efficiency programme of £1.2 million was developed for the project, to be 

 achieved by both AES and the Council. Most of the savings were projected to be 

realised through fleet (and other) procurement, operational efficiencies, 

management savings and depot rationalisation. 

4.8.5 Four years into the project a total of £838,000 in savings have been achieved. The 

 £1.2 million saving target is expected to be realised in 2023-24.  

4.8.6 Similarly, and more recently, the Councils have launched a new joint venture 

company, set up for the delivery of facilities management of Public Buildings, Capital 

Asset project delivery and repairs and maintenance services including the housing 

assets in High Peak.    

4.8.7 Alliance Norse Limited established with the Councils and partners Norse Group 

Limited, a company 100% owned by Norfolk County Council and has been 

operational since 4th July 2022.  The new joint venture company will provide greater 

opportunities for improved services and value for money for residents of both 

Councils. 

4.8.9 Moving forwards, the Councils are reviewing the operating model in place for delivery 

of leisure centre operations and our wider physical activity strategy aspirations. 

Whilst our leisure centres are operated under contract, these expire in 2024. 

Page 99



Page | 14  
High Peak Borough Council & Staffordshire Moorlands District Council  
Joint Procurement Strategy 2022-2025 

Therefore, as a result of the successes delivered through the AES provision, and 

those which are expected to be achieved via the creation of Alliance Norse Ltd, the 

review being undertaken will consider the benefits that a further ‘Teckal’ company 

could deliver.  Decisions on this review are expected to be made during 2022-23. 

 

 

 

 

 

4.9 NEXT STEPS  

 

4.9.1 The Joint Procurement Strategy must continue to focus on commercial advantage, 

sustainability and supporting economic growth, while clearly leading the way through 

effective procurement strategies and demonstrating initiatives and resourcefulness to 

rise to the social, economic and environmental challenges that our communities are 

facing. 

 

4.9.2 The key priority actions as detailed in section five of this document will be delivered 

over the next three years, fulfilling the aims and strategic direction of travel for the 

Councils in their commissioning activities. 

 

4.9.3 Leadership and governance of this strategy will be supported by the Alliance 

Leadership Team and the Executive Councillor/Portfolio Holder responsible for 

Service Commissioning at both Councils.  Quarterly and annual reports will be 

presented through the Medium Term Financial Plans. Specific projects will adopt the 

Councils’ project methodology and be monitored  through the Councils’  Alliance 

Transformation Board. 

 

 

 
Page 100



Page | 15  
High Peak Borough Council & Staffordshire Moorlands District Council  
Joint Procurement Strategy 2022-2025 
 

5.0 Joint Procurement Strategy Action Plan 2022-2025 

 

Key Theme 01 – Showing Leadership 

 Maintaining Transparency and Ethical practices through effective leadership 

 Developing expertise and excellence in Procurement 

 

Procurement 
Strategy Key 

Theme 

Focus Outputs Link to 
Corporate Plan 

Key Objectives 
 

Ref Actions 2022-2025  Priority/  
Year 

 
 

 

Engaging Councillors, 
Senior Management 

and Stakeholders 
 
Working with Partners 

and Strategic Suppliers 
 
Embedding excellence 

in Procurement  

AIM1: 
 

Effective 
relationship  
with strategic 

partners (HP / SM) 

Working with Internal Stakeholders HIGH (YR 1) 

22/25.001 Procurement Forward Plan proposing procurement activity for following 

12 months presented to Executive/Cabinet each February 

 

22/25.002 Quarterly procurement updates provided alongside Quarterly Financial 

reports to members. Review format and enhance as necessary 
 

22/25.003 Individual Executive / Cabinet Decision reports and Committee reports 
presented for approval based on the value of procurements / nature of 

procurement  
 

22/25.004 Liaison with Executive Councillor/Portfolio Holder for Procurement and 
the respective Service Executive Councillor/Portfolio Holder through 

sharing of extracts taken at the quarterly forward plan reviews with 
Heads of Service 
 

22/25.005 Consider feedback from consultation exercise with Members / Staff / 

other stakeholders 
 
 

 S
h

o
w

in
g

 L
e
a
d

e
rs

h
ip

 P
age 101



Page | 16  
High Peak Borough Council & Staffordshire Moorlands District Council  
Joint Procurement Strategy 2022-2025 
 

Key Theme 01 – Showing Leadership 

 Maintaining Transparency and Ethical practices through effective leadership 

 Developing expertise and excellence in Procurement 

 

Procurement 

Strategy Key 
Theme 

Focus Outputs Link to 

Corporate Plan 
Key Objectives 

 

Ref Actions 2022-2025  Priority/  

Year 

 Working with External Partners / Strategic Suppliers HIGH (YR 1) 

22/25.006 Procurement support provided for strategic options considered for 
alternative service delivery 

 

 

22/25.007 Establishment of targets for continuous improvement and innovation 
throughout contract lifecycle 
 

22/25.008 Early Supplier / Buyer Engagement prior to publication of contracts to 

deliver variable or options for end of product or service 
 

 

Developing Expertise, Skills, and Knowledge MED (YR 2) 

22/25.009 Developing internal expertise through recognised professional 
qualifications and training and development programmes. 
 

 

22/25.010 Continuous development and training of those Commissioning or 

awarding Supplies, services or works to fulfil their contributions on 
delivery of the Procurement key themes.  
 

22/25.011 Working with key commercial partners to develop a transparent network 

of best practice delivered through procurement activities, across the 
Councils’ Joint Venture companies and strategic commercial suppliers.  
 

P
age 102



Page | 17  
High Peak Borough Council & Staffordshire Moorlands District Council  
Joint Procurement Strategy 2022-2025 
 

Joint Procurement Strategy Action Plan 2022-2025 

  

 

    

Key Theme 02 – Behaving Commercially 

 Delivering Value for Money 

 Commercial focus and effective Contract Management 

Procurement 

Strategy Key 
Theme 

Focus Outputs Link to 

Corporate Plan 
Key Objectives 

 

Ref Actions 2022-2025 Priority/ 

Year 

  

 

Creating Commercial 

Opportunities 
 
Contract Management 

Managing strategic risk 

AIM 2:  

Effective use of  
financial and other  
resources to ensure  

value for money 
(SM) 
 

Creating Commercial Opportunities 

 

HIGH (YR 1) 

22/25.012 Establishing commercial advantage for buyer organisations through 
gain share arrangements 
 

 

22/25.013 Consideration of partnering agreements and/or establishment of Joint 

Venture Arrangements, to spread direct and indirect costs amongst 
collaboration partners to reduce overall costs for the delivering of front 
line services as well as accessing expertise – Leisure Transformation 

(Vision) 
 

Effective Contract Management 
 

HIGH (YR 1) 

22/25.014 Internal Contract management toolkit to be developed and rolled out 
 

 

 22/25.015 Effective communications between buyer and suppliers to create a ‘win 
-win’ approach to delivery of contracts and to identify options for 
efficiencies / added value throughout the contract term 

22/25.016 Regular documented performance review meetings and contract spend 

analysis 
 
 

 B
e
h

a
v
in

g
 C

o
m

m
e
rc

ia
ll

y
 P

age 103



Page | 18  
High Peak Borough Council & Staffordshire Moorlands District Council  
Joint Procurement Strategy 2022-2025 
 

22/25.017 Contact Agreements:  
[1] Flexibility on extension terms in contracts to revisit the requirements 
and conditions – to enable innovation and efficiencies 

[2]Implement Electronic Contract Signing system – to enable real time 
review of contract terms throughout their term of delivery and thereafter 
 
 

Managing Strategic Risk 

 

HIGH (YR 1) 

22/25.018 Strategic Contracts risk register to be established, monitored, and 
reported on  
 

 

22/25.019 Regular ‘health check’ of key strategic supply partners (e.g. financial / 

Health and Safety / Insurance / Environmental profiles) 
 

22/25.020 Contingency planning arrangements for alternative delivery in the event 
of contractual relations breakdown 
 

22/25.021 The impact and legacy of Covid-19 Coronavirus pandemic has 

emphasised the need to consider contractual terms and conditions for 
business interruption for the future.  Review process for terms and 
conditions to achieve longevity of contractual arrangements. 
 

 

P
age 104



Page | 19  
High Peak Borough Council & Staffordshire Moorlands District Council  
Joint Procurement Strategy 2022-2025 
 

Joint Procurement Strategy Action Plan 2022-2025 

    
 

 

Key Theme 03 – Achieving Community Benefits 

 Supporting the Local Economy and Business Growth  

 Delivering Social Value though contracting  
 

Procurement 
Strategy Key 

Theme 

Focus Outputs Link to 
Corporate Plan 

Key Objectives 
 

Ref Actions 2022-2025 Priority/ 
Year 

 Engaging local small, 
medium enterprises 

(SMEs) and micro-
businesses  
 

Obtaining Social Value 
– award of services and 
works contracts to 

protect and enhance 
the health & wellbeing 
of local people and the 

local economy 

AIM 2:  
Effective 

procurement with a 
focus on local 
businesses (HP / 

SM) 
 
AIM1: 

Develop a positive  
relationship with  
communities (HP / 

SM) 
 

Local Businesses Engagement 

 

MED (YR2) 

22/25.022 Ensuring quotations and tender opportunities at lower levels are openly 
available for local businesses 
 

 

22/25.023 Actively and directly encourage participation from local businesses 

through direct entry into bidding opportunities 
 

22/25.024 Promotion of technical support through business support offerings 
 

22/25.025 Profiling contracts that give greater opportunity to enable participation 

from Micro to Medium Business Enterprises e.g. establishing more 
multi-lot frameworks and Dynamic Purchasing systems 

 

22/25.026 Attendance and presentation at regional buyer events 

 

22/25.027 Effective, clear, and regular communication for businesses established  
 

22/25.028 Revisiting qualification criteria, reducing question sets, clear and 
accessible application process 

 

 A
c
h

ie
v
in

g
 C

o
m

m
u

n
it

y
 B

e
n

e
fi

ts
  

P
age 105



Page | 20  
High Peak Borough Council & Staffordshire Moorlands District Council  
Joint Procurement Strategy 2022-2025 
 

22/25.029 Implement ‘Cabinet Office PPN21/11 Reserved Contracts policy ’ in 
regard to sourcing within a direct regional area where relevant 
 

22/25.030 Explore principles from the ‘Preston Model’ – adopt best practice 

 

 

22/25.031 Consider feedback from consultation exercise with Chamber of 
Commerce and contribute to ongoing business network events 

 

Social Value 
 

MED (YR2) 

22/25.032 Inclusion of scored weighted evaluation criteria to promote: 

 Training and skill development opportunities 

 Local employment opportunities through contracts 

 Delivery of community schemes 

 Evaluation % weightings in selection process, proportioned 
with higher emphasis on Corporate Social Responsibility 
(CSR) 

 

 

22/25.033 Encourage, support and signpost local businesses and VCSE 
(Voluntary, Community and Social Enterprise) sector organisations to 
do business with the Councils  

 

22/25.034 Wherever possible seek to invite as many local suppliers into an OPEN 
tender procedure 

 

22/25.035 Through contract management, measure social value benefits delivered 

through key significant contracts – setting clear outputs 
 

P
age 106



Page | 21  
High Peak Borough Council & Staffordshire Moorlands District Council  
Joint Procurement Strategy 2022-2025 
 

Joint Procurement Strategy Action Plan 2022-2025 

      

Key Theme 04 – Sustainability 

 Promoting Responsible and Sustainable Procurement  

Procurement 
Strategy Key 

Theme 

Focus Outputs Link to 
Corporate Plan 
Key Objectives 

 

Ref Actions 2022-2025 Priority/ 
Year 

 Minimising 
environmental impacts 
through sustainable 

sourcing policies and 
effectively supporting 
the supply chain to 

improve efficiency and 
achievements in 
environmental 

standards. 

AIM 4:  
Meeting the 
challenges of 

climate change 
(SM) 

Climate Change  
 

HIGH (YR 1) 

22/25.036 Set clear standards in our specifications to reduce or eliminate impact 
on the environment, including Single use Plastics and sustainably 

sourced materials 

 

22/25.037 Selection assessment criteria for carbon reduction, water consumption 
efficiency, clean fuels 

22/25.038 Source renewable energy supplies for Council buildings 
 

22/25.039 Construction / capital projects design and product considerations with 

regards to environmental impact 
 

22/25.040 Advocate ‘Green Procurement’ policy – incorporating human health and 
environmental concerns into the search for high quality products and 

services at competitive prices 
 

22/25.041 Consider greener alternatives (in line with infrastructure capabilities) as 
part of the Climate Change Action Plan to reduce carbon emissions 
 

22/25.042 Work with key strategic partners to establish clear links for sourcing 

strategies and support the Councils ’ agenda on Biodiversity initiatives 
 

22/25.043 Encouraging local organisations and businesses to reduce their carbon 
footprint  

 S
u

s
ta

in
a
b

il
it

y
  

P
age 107



Page | 22  
High Peak Borough Council & Staffordshire Moorlands District Council  
Joint Procurement Strategy 2022-2025 
 

Joint Procurement Strategy Action Plan 2022-2025 

 

 

Key Theme 05 – Ethical Sourcing 

 Achieving Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) through our Contracts 

Procurement 

Strategy Key 
Theme 

Focus Outputs Link to 

Corporate Plan 
Key Objectives 

 

Ref Actions 2022-2025 Priority/ 

Year 

 Contracting with 
responsible businesses 
 

Ensuring that human 
rights and employment 
rights are protected 

throughout the 
Councils’ supply chains 
and encouraging 

responsible business 
practices. 
 

 
 
 

 
 

AIM1: 
Effective 
relationship  

with strategic 
partners (HP / SM) 
 

Develop a positive  

relationship with  
communities (SM)  
 

‘Responsible’ Procurement 
 

LOW – YR 3 

22/25.044 Ensuring human and labour rights complying with UN International 
Labour Organisation (ILO) conventions throughout supply chains 

 

 

22/25.045 Ensuring legal and fair employment practices validated throughout 
supply chain arrangements 
 

 

22/25.046 Eliminating modern slavery and human trafficking.  Ensuring supply 
chain employees are working legally 
 

 

22/25.047 Guarding against bribery, corruption, and tax evasion 
 

 
 

 E
th

ic
a
l 
S

o
u

rc
in

g
 P

age 108



HIGH PEAK BOROUGH COUNCIL 

The Executive

6 October 2022 

TITLE: Refreshed Sport and Physical Activity 
Strategy 

EXECUTIVE COUNCILLOR: Councillor Damien Greenhalgh - Deputy 
Leader & Executive Councillor for 
Regeneration, Tourism and Leisure 

CONTACT OFFICER: Robert Wilks - Principal Officer (Leisure and 
Recreation) 

WARDS INVOLVED: All wards 

Appendices Attached – Appendix: A Move More High Peak Draft Strategy 

1. Reason for the Report

1.1 The purpose of the report is to inform the Executive as to the work completed 
to develop the Move More High Peak Strategy in replacement of the current 
Physical Activity and Sport Strategy and consider whether a grants progamme 
should be developed to support its delivery. 

2. Recommendation

2.1 That the Executive approves the Move More High Peak Strategy. 

2.2 That  the Executive approves the principle and proposed budget to support the 
delivery of the strategy.  

3. Executive Summary

3.1 In June 2017, The Executive approved a new physical activity and sport strategy 
called ‘Towards an Active High Peak. The main focus of the strategy was to use 
an evidence based approach to enable the Council and other partners from 
across High Peak to better support people to become more physically active. 

3.2 The strategy outlined five strategic objectives for focus, underpinned by 
partnership working and collaboration would be the key to having an impact in 
the future: 

Page 109

Agenda Item 9



  

 The five strategic outcomes: 
 

1. Develop a strong local universal offer for sport and physical activity. 
Support the growth of the “core market” and local infrastructure for 
physical activity and sport and encourage local organisations who 
support the already physically active to continue to thrive. 
 

2. Address participation inequalities, supporting the inactive to become 
physically active with a focus on:  

 
   a. Women and girls  
   b. People with a limiting illness or disability  
   c. People aged 55 years and over  
   d. Children and young people aged 5 to 18.  
 

3. Establishing a ‘place based approach’ with strategic partners to improve 
the health and wellbeing of residents in the areas facing multiple 
challenges and deprivation Initial focus areas will include:  
 

a. Gamesley & Hadfield  
b. b. Fairfield (Buxton)  
c. c. Glossop  
d. d. New Mills East  
e. e. Chapel West and Limestone Peak 

 
4. Maximise physical activity and sporting opportunities using the outdoor 

and natural environment.  
 

5. Supporting our existing club and voluntary sector base to build local 
capacity, strengthen their community offer, and encourage diversity.  

 
3.3 In May 2020, an information digest report was published to showcase progress 

of the work undertaken against the aspirations of the strategy, highlighting 
pieces of work which have been completed since 2017. 

 
3.4 Since the information digest was published in June 2020 and despite the 

challenges presented by the pandemic, the Council, together with its partners, 
has still been able to deliver a range of projects and pieces of work which 
contribute towards existing priorities; 

 
 Key achievements 

 
• Over £2.3m of external investment secured across High Peak capital 

projects during 2020 and 2021; 
• The first Parks Strategy for the High Peak has been developed, 

embedding movement into these future plans; 
• A new Play Investment and Delivery Plan has been approved to 

ensure Council owned facilities continue to provide excellent spaces 
for young people to access, learn and be active;  

• New Local Football Facilities Plan has been developed, aligning 
national funding to local priorities; 

Page 110



  

• Place based roles established with the voluntary sector in Buxton, 
Glossop, New Mills, which have produced new local opportunities, 
excellent case studies and valuable learning; 

• Installation of a new pump track has been completed in Bankswood 
Park, supported by a grant of £34,000 from British Cycling. An 
upgrade to the pump track in Whaley Bridge has also been 
commissioned; 

• Allocated more than £130k funding towards capital projects 
Buxworth, Charlesworth, Furness Vale, Glossop, Hayfield, New Mills 
and Tintwhistle; 

• Created the ‘Walking Movement’ project; 
• Developed ‘Active Communities Plans’ with Parkwood Leisure (Lex 

Leisure) to connect Move More High Peak strategy priorities to local 
delivery via Council owned leisure facilities; 

• Recently submitted an application containing ‘Leisure’ related 
projects to the Governments ‘Levelling Up Fund’ (LUF).  

 
3.5 The existing leisure centres in the High Peak are key assets and provide a range 

of opportunities for residents to engage in activities that positively impact of their 
physical and mental health. In developing this strategy, officers have been 
working with the operator of these facilities, Parkwood, to develop an ‘Active 
Communities Plan’. This plan details the approach and key actions that 
Parkwood will take with partners to engage more people from the priority groups 
and places identified in the Move More High Peak Strategy. 

 
 Strategy refresh process 
 
3.6 The review of data for this refresh has included the latest Sport England Active 

Lives Survey (ALS), but has also included health data, particularly where 
connections can be made between less active groups that ALS identifies. The 
main focus for the review of data is detailed below;  

 
• Levels of inactivity across the adult population 
• Levels of inactivity in the children and young people population  
• Focus on any specific demographic groups who participate a least (eg 

55+, those with long term health conditions, those people from lower 
socio-economic groups, gender)  

• Public Health England data sources (borough level and specific to GP 
practices 

 
3.7 The aspiration is for this updated strategy to be more co-produced and as such, 

officers have engaged a wide range of stakeholders in its development, to help 
position it as much as a strategy for the Council as it is wider partners working 
across the High Peak. 

 
3.8 Existing meetings and forums along with two stakeholder engagement sessions 

were used to capture the views from a wide range of partners including those 
from education, sport, health, voluntary and community, and public sectors. An 
online survey was also used capture the views of stakeholders and partners 
who were unable to attend the facilitated sessions and the key themes fed into 

Page 111



  

the production process for the new strategy, which has been titled ‘Move More 
High Peak’ 

 
3.9 The strategy review also included the aim of exploring whether there was a need 

to establish a grant fund to support delivery of the strategy priorities and what 
form this should take. To be effective, it is proposed that a minimum annual 
amount of £15,000 - £20,000 be considered for approval and that further work 
be undertaken by officers during the implementation planning process to define 
the approach. It is proposed that a update via an Independent Executive 
Decision (IED) would then be brought forward to gain final approval, detailing a 
proposal for how funds would be managed and allocated. 

 
 Move More High Peak Strategy 
 
3.10 Move More High Peak (MMHP - Appendix A) is a ten year strategy that 

collectively reimagines how we move more every day. This strategy is an 
evolution of Towards an Active High Peak (2017) and draws on experiences 
and learning from the intervening years, which includes the exceptional 
circumstances we all found ourselves in during the coronavirus pandemic. 

 
3.11 Once approved, the strategy sets the overall strategic direction for how the 

Council and partners focus resources, it is important for any new plan developed 
by the Council or partners align where possible to the agreed principles and 
priorities detailed in section 9.16 and 9.17. For example, Council related plans 
include; Leisure Transformation Plan, Place based working plans, Local 
Football Facilities Plan (LFFP). 

 
3.12 Alongside stakeholder engagement, a review of current data relating to health, 

physical activity levels and deprivation (amongst others) has been reviewed to 
help identify what the main priorities of the MMHP strategy should be and the 
following six priorities have been jointly agreed; 

 
1. A collective message 
2. Place based working 
3. Better health 
4. Environments 
5. Universal offer  
6. Children and young people 

 
3.13 The principles of how we act and work together is vital if this shared strategy is 

going to continue to extend its reach and have a more positive impact on 
peoples lives. These principles are;  

 
1. Working and learning together 
2. Being evidence led 
3. Enabling opportunities for all 
4. Building on what is strong 

 
3.14 Implementation plans for each priority will be developed in due course and these 

will detail the headline actions we will take with partners to deliver the aim of the 
strategy. These plans present an opportunity for other relevant work streams, 

Page 112



  

strategies and plans to be reflected, creating a more systemic approach to how 
all internal services and partners positively work together to help people to move 
more and maintain active habits. 

 
 How will we know if people are moving more 
 
3.15 Learning taken from across the country and what we have experienced locally 

strongly suggests there isn’t a single way to measure whether people are 
moving more. The approaches below have been identified with partners and will 
build up a richer picture of not only the progress being made, but importantly 
which aspects are working, which aren’t and, how we will use this to evolve the 
approach. 

 
• A focus on learning 
• Ongoing review of data 
• Stories of change and case studies 

 
            Next steps  
 
3.16 Subject to approval, officers will complete further work to finalise the document 

ready for full release, including undertaking a copywriting process, final 
document design and creation (via an external company) of a ‘explainer’ video 
clip/animation, to be used with a range of stakeholders or colleagues to help 
confirm understanding and commitment. Implementation plans for each priority 
area will also be created with partners. 

 
4.        How this report links to Corporate Priorities  
 
4.1 Aim 1 of the Councils Corporate Plan (2019-2023) is to supporting our 

communities to create a healthier, safer, cleaner High Peak. Within this aim, 
there is an objective to review the Sport and Physical Activity Strategy in order 
to integrate communities and sports clubs into the delivery of its objectives. 

 
5. Alternative Options 
 
5.1 In effect, there are two options; 
 

1. The reports sets out clearly the reasons why the existing strategy needs 
updating and therefore approval of the proposed Move More High Peak 
Strategy should be recommended. 

 
2. To do nothing and not recommend the proposed Move More High Peak 

Strategy is approved. 
 
6. Implications 
 

6.1
  

Community Safety - (Crime and Disorder Act 1998) 
 
Being physically active and playing sport can contribute towards 
encouraging positive behaviour and in diverting people away from 
antisocial behaviour and crime.  

Page 113



  

 
6.2 Workforce 

 
There are no workforce implications as it proposed that the Councils 
current staff resource will manage delivery of the strategy. 
 

6.3 Equality and Diversity/Equality Impact Assessment 
 
As outlined in the associated EIA document.  
 

6.4 Financial Considerations 
 
It is proposed that an annual amount of £15,000 - £20,000 be 
considered for approval towards a grants programme that supports 
delivery of the strategy. Further work needs to be undertaken by 
officers to define the approach and this will be detailed at a later 
stage via an Independent Executive Decision (IED) to gain final 
approval.  
 

6.5 Legal 
 
There are no legal implications. 
 

6.6 Climate Change 
 
Encouraging people to move more can have a positive benefit on 
the environment, such as encouraging people to walk and cycle 
instead of using a motor car. 
 

6.7 
 

Consultation 
 
There are no requirements for the Council to formally consult on 
the refresh of this strategy.  
 
Stakeholder consultation and engagement has been undertaken in 
order to involve stakeholders in the development of the strategy.  
 

6.8 
 

Risk Assessment 
 
None required. 

 
Mark Trillo 
Executive Director (Governance & Commissioning) 
 
Web Links and 
Background Papers 

Contact details 

Towards an Active High Peak Strategy 
 
Towards an Active High Peak Strategy, 
Information Digest May 2020 
 

Robert Wilks 
Principal Officer (Leisure and 
Recreation) 
robert.wilks@highpeak.gov.uk 
 

Page 114

https://www.highpeak.gov.uk/media/2765/HP-Physical-Activity-Strategy/pdf/Active_High_Peak_Strategy_document_final_version.pdf?m=1513160002947
https://democracy.highpeak.gov.uk/documents/s25029/ID%20SportsandPhysicalStrategyReport.pdf
https://democracy.highpeak.gov.uk/documents/s25029/ID%20SportsandPhysicalStrategyReport.pdf


  

 
 
7. Detail 
 
7.1 In June 2017, The Executive approved a new physical activity and sport strategy 

called ‘Towards an Active High Peak. The main focus of the strategy was to use 
an evidence based approach to enable the Council and other partners from 
across High Peak to better support people to become more physically active. 

 
7.2 The strategy was developed in order to be the catalyst for change. It intended 

to frame an understanding that physical activity levels of people and 
communities do not stand in isolation, but are interconnected to many other 
influencing factors that affect everyone’s life, and that this needs to be better 
understood if there is to be a positive impact on activity levels.  

 
7.3 The strategy outlined five strategic objectives for focus, underpinned by 

partnership working and collaboration would be the key to having an impact in 
the future: 

 
 The five strategic outcomes: 
 

1) Develop a strong local universal offer for sport and physical activity. Support 
the growth of the “core market” and local infrastructure for physical activity 
and sport and encourage local organisations who support the already 
physically active to continue to thrive. 
 

2) Address participation inequalities, supporting the inactive to become 
physically active with a focus on:  

 
  a. Women and girls  
  b. People with a limiting illness or disability  
  c. People aged 55 years and over  
  d. Children and young people aged 5 to 18.  
  e. Young People involved in antisocial behaviour and crime 
 

3) Establishing a ‘place based approach’ with strategic partners to improve the 
health and wellbeing of residents in the areas facing multiple challenges and 
deprivation Initial focus areas will include:  
 

  a. Gamesley and Hadfield b. Fairfield (Buxton) c. Glossop   
 d. New Mills (East) e. Chapel (West) and Limestone Peak  

 
4) Maximise physical activity and sporting opportunities using the outdoor and 

natural environment.  
 

5) Supporting our existing club and voluntary sector base to build local 
capacity, strengthen their community offer, and encourage diversity.  

 
7.5  In May 2020, an information digest report was published to showcase progress 

of the work undertaken against the aspirations of the strategy, highlighting 
pieces of work which have been completed since 2017. 

Page 115



  

  
7.6 Since this information digest was published, the world has been affected in an 

unprecedented way by the Covid19 pandemic. Restrictions placed on the whole 
population meant that overnight, people’s ability to access physical activity 
opportunities changed and some of us found it difficult more difficult than others 
to maintain our active habits. 

 
7.7 During the pandemic, the importance of positive health and wellbeing was being 

emphasised on a national level almost everyday. The view that everyone doing 
that little bit more was good for our physical and mental health  helped to enable 
conversations locally that we may never have had pre pandemic, particularly 
with health organisations.  

  
7.8 It was noticed that the angle of these conversations was very different to the 

angle we may have used with existing partners pre-pandemic. The shift from 
‘people being physically active and playing sport’ to ‘moving more to benefit 
people’s health and wellbeing was a clear change. If we are to hold onto this 
and build more effective relationships with these partners, this shift in language 
and focus needs to be recognised sufficiently in the refresh of the strategy. 

 
 Key achievements 
 
7.9 Since the information digest was published in May 2020 and despite the 

challenges presented by the pandemic, the Council, together with its partners, 
has still been able to deliver a range of projects and pieces of work which 
contribute towards existing priorities; 

 
• Over £2.3m of external investment secured across High Peak capital 

projects during 2020 and 2021; 
• The first Parks Strategy for the High Peak has been developed, 

embedding movement into these future plans; 
• A new Play Investment and Delivery Plan has been approved to 

ensure Council owned facilities continue to provide excellent spaces 
for young people to access, learn and be active;  

• New Local Football Facilities Plan has been developed, aligning 
national funding to local priorities; 

• Place based roles established with the voluntary sector in Buxton, 
Glossop, New Mills, which have produced new local opportunities, 
excellent case studies and valuable learning; 

• Installation of a new pump track has been completed in Bankswood 
Park, supported by a grant of £34,000 from British Cycling. An 
upgrade to the pump track in Whaley Bridge has also been 
commissioned; 

• Allocated more than £130k funding towards capital projects 
Buxworth, Charlesworth, Furness Vale, Glossop, Hayfield, New Mills 
and Tintwhistle; 

• Created the ‘Walking Movement’ project; 
• Developed ‘Active Communities Plans’ with Parkwood Leisure (Lex 

Leisure) to connect Move More High Peak strategy priorities to local 
delivery via Council owned leisure facilities; 

Page 116



  

• Recently submitted an application containing ‘Leisure’ related 
projects to the Governments ‘Levelling Up Fund’ (LUF).  

 
7.10 The existing leisure centres in the High Peak are key assets and provide a range 

of opportunities for residents to engage in activities that positively impact of their 
physical and mental health. In developing this strategy, officers have been 
working with the operator of these facilities, Parkwood, to develop an ‘Active 
Communities Plan’. This plan details the approach and key actions that 
Parkwood will take with partners to engage more people from the priority groups 
and places identified in the Move More High Peak Strategy.  

 
7.11 The reason for developing this plan is to encourage the centres to look beyond 

their existing customer base and by doing so, widen the reach and contribution 
that the staff teams and assets make to the places and people we know are less 
likely to use them. By working differently and in collaboration with new partners, 
the learning taken from this approach will help enrich, refine and deliver more 
effective services in the future that more fully reflect local need. 

 
7.12 Proposals contained within the corresponding committee report set out the 

proposed investment options and future delivery model for the leisure centres. 
It is important that future investment and service delivery of the leisure centres 
is fully aligned to the Move More High Peak Strategy.  

 
 Strategy refresh process 

 
8.1 Typically, the Sport England Active Lives (ALS) survey has been the main 

source of data we have used to inform strategic direction when it comes to levels 
of physical activity, including when the current strategy developed in 2017. The 
review of data for this refresh has included the latest ALS, but has also included 
health data, particularly where connections can be made between less active 
groups that ALS identifies. The main focus for the review of data is detailed 
below;  

 
• Levels of inactivity across the adult population; 
• Levels of inactivity in the children and young people population;  
• Focus on any specific demographic groups who participate a least (eg 

55+, those with long term health conditions, those people from lower 
socio-economic groups, gender);  

• Public Health England data sources (borough level and specific to GP 
practices. 
 

8.2 The current strategy was primarily approved as a Council strategy, but with a 
call to action for other partners in the High Peak to contribute towards the 
delivery of the priorities identified. The aspiration is for this updated strategy to 
be more co-produced. As such, officers have engaged a wide range of 
stakeholders in its development, to help position it as much as a strategy for the 
Council as it is wider partners across the Borough. 

 
8.3 There are various conversation spaces already established for partners across 

the Borough to collaborate. Officers used these to help inform the review along 
with coordinating two stakeholder engagement sessions that were facilitated 

Page 117



  

working jointly with Active Derbyshire. The sessions captured views from a wide 
range of partners including those from the education, sport, health, voluntary 
and community, and public sector.  

 
8.4 An online survey was also used capture the views of wider stakeholders and 

partners who were unable to attend the facilitated sessions and the key themes 
taken from this approach fed into the production process for the new strategy, 
which has been titled ‘Move More High Peak’. 

 
8.5 The strategy review also included the aim of exploring whether there was a need 

to establish a grants programme to support delivery of the strategy priorities and 
what form this should take. A grants programme currently exists in the 
Staffordshire Moorlands, and this is coordinated by the Leisure and Recreation 
Team who allocate small amounts of up to £500, from a budget of £15,000 to 
athletes, coaches and clubs, based on an application against a set criteria. The 
grant programme is marketed widely and allications can be made by any athlete, 
coach or club living or operating in the district.  

 
8.6 This question was included during stakeholder engagements and the online 

survey conducted as part of the review, and the overwhelming feeling was that 
new funding being made available to support delivery of the strategy priorities 
would be welcomed. Partners identified whether a more strategic approach 
could be taken, as opposed to a traditional small grants programme and 
questioned whether this idea could be developed further through the proposed 
implementation planning process to ensure anything that is developed fully 
meets the priorities and principles identified in the strategy. 

 
8.7 To be effective, any grant progamme would need to involve a sufficient amount 

of funds and it was felt that a minumum annual amount of £15,000 - £20,000 
could have a positive impact on delivery of the strategy. It would be possible to 
replicate the approach applied currently in Staffordhshire Moorlands or consider 
a different approach that provides a greater alignment to the new strategy 
priorities.  

 
8.8 If the overall principle of developing a fund to support delivery of the strategy 

could be approved, along with an approved annual budget for this purpose, 
further work could be undertaken by officers during the implementation planning 
process to define the approach with partners. Update report via an Independent 
Executive Decision (IED) could then be brought forwards to gain final approval 
on the proposal for how these funds would be managed and allocated most 
effectively. 

 
 
 
9. Move More High Peak 
 
9.1 As previously outlined, the Move More High Peak (MMHP) Strategy is a ten year 

strategy that collectively reimagines how we move more every day – from 
walking and gardening to being active at the gym or playing sport.  

 

Page 118



  

9.2 This strategy (Appendix A) is an evolution of Towards an Active High Peak 
(2017) and draws on experiences and learning from the intervening years, 
which includes the exceptional circumstances we all found ourselves in during 
the coronavirus pandemic. A time when some people found it more difficult than 
others to maintain our active habits. 

 
9.3 The refresh of this strategy sits in context with a new national strategy, launched 

by Sport England in 2021. ‘Uniting the Movement’ highlights 5 big issues;  
 

Recover and reinvent - Recovering from the biggest crisis in a 
generation and reinventing as a vibrant, relevant and sustainable 
network of organisations providing sport and physical activity 
opportunities that meet the needs of different people.  
 
Connecting Communities - Sport and physical activity’s ability to make 
better places to live and bring people together.  

 
Positive experiences for children and young people - An unrelenting 
focus on positive experiences for all children and young people as the 
foundations for a long and healthy life.  
 
Connecting with health and wellbeing - Strengthening the connections 
between sport, physical activity, health and wellbeing, so more people 
can feel the benefits of, and advocate for, an active life.  
 
Active environments - Creating and protecting the places and spaces 
that make it easier for people to be active. 
 

9.4 This national driver provides an essential context for understanding the picture 
in High Peak and where the same priorities exist, use them to help facilitate 
even greater engagement in the future with public health partners, education, 
business sectors and potential funders.  

 
9.5 The diagram below summarises how government strategy feeds through to 

Sport England strategy which then connects to the MMHP Strategy; 
 

Page 119



  

 
 
9.6 As a new Strategy that is responsible for setting the overall strategic direction 

for how the Council and partners focus resources, it is important for any new 
plan developed by the Council aligns where possible to the agreed principles 
and priorities set out in the MMHP Strategy. For example, Leisure 
Transformation Plan, Place based working plans, Local Football Facilities Plan 
(LFFP).  

 
Local data review  
 
9.7 Data from the latest Sport England Active Lives Survey (ALS Nov 20/21) 

suggests that nearly 7 in 10 adults (67%) across the High Peak are active 
enough for it to benefit their health, which means doing more than 150 minutes 
of physical activity a week. This is positive and collectively we need to retain 
some focus and resources towards helping these motivated people maintain 
this habit.  

 
9.8 As shown in the graphic below, more than 2 in 10 adults are inactive (21%)  

across the High Peak, which means doing less than 30 minutes of physical 
activity a week.  And more than 1 in 10 adults are doing no physical activity at 
all in each week (14%).  That’s over 10,000 people, a figure that has risen during 
the pandemic. 

 

 

Page 120



  

 
9.9 Whilst active habits are positive, the level of inactivity hides distinct inequalities 

within different population groups, for example, among those of us who 
experience living with a limiting illness or disability, four in ten are inactive (40%). 
That’s double the population average and two and a half times higher than those 
of us without a limiting illness or disability.   

 
9.10 As we age, we become less active, an important factor for the High Peak given 

the increasingly ageing population. Inactivity levels fluctuate for our older 
population, they currently stand at 24% (more than two in ten), but they have 
recently been as high as 32% (more than three in ten).  

 
9.11 The reason why the oder age group is also identified as a priority, is that there 

is a great deal of crossover between ageing and experiencing a limiting illness 
or disability. For example, 74% of people with a long-term health condition or 
disability are aged over 50 years (Census 2011) and where the three 
characteristics of ageing, limiting illness or disability and low socio-economic 
status come together, inactivity is likely to be higher still.   

 

 
9.12 The table below summarises the most prevalent long term health conditions 

which exist in the High Peak when considering data from Primary Care Network, 
taken from National General Practice Profiles and Public Health Outcomes 
Framework. Under the ‘Better Health’ priority outlined in 9.17 of this report, it is 
proposed that the Council together with relevant health organisations work 
collaboratively to explore how movement and physical activity could support 
people living with these conditions, thus working more effectively towards the 
aspiration of people moving more. 

 
9.13 Data collection methods and measures relating to children and young people’s 

activity levels are different to that of adults, and across the Borough we do not 
always have a sufficiently large enough sample for detailed analysis relating to 
young people’s active habits. 

 
9.14 The data we do have suggests that more than half of our children and young 

people are not active enough for it to benefit their health and development. 
Children in school years 3 and 4, young people in school years 9 to 11 and 

Page 121



  

children from lower income families are far less likely to be active. We also see 
fewer girls being active than boys. 

 

 
 
9.15 Where we live makes a difference too.  Inactivity, in parallel with wider health 

outcomes, varies greatly between neighbourhoods across the High Peak and 
this has been the basis for our shared place based working approaches.  The 
inactivity map below shows clusters of neighbourhoods around Glossop, New 
Mills and Buxton where inactivity is greatest. 

 

 
 
9.16 Collectively, this insight suggests that along with supporting people to maintain 

their active habits, there are specific population groups and places which 
collectively we should focus proportionately more time and resources towards 
engaging if we are to have a positive effect on the inactive data. These groups 
are summarised below; 

 

Page 122



  

• People with a limiting illness or disability 
• Older people 
• People and families on lower incomes 
• Children and young people 

 
9.17 An interactive data map of High Peakcontaining the data presented above, 

along with other data such as GP (most prevalent health conditions), leisure 
centre membership and deprivation is currently in development. This interactive 
map will enable the Council and its partners review data that is most relevant 
and layer this help inform future areas of work and where collaboration and 
investment might be needed most. It will also help identify whether existing 
resources are prioritised in the areas of greatest need. 

 
 Shared Principles  
 
9.18 Developed collaboratively and at the heart of the new strategy, is a set four 

shared principles defined to guide how partners across the High Peak intend to 
act when working together to implement the strategy. 

 
1. Working and learning together 
2. Being evidence led 
3. Enabling opportunities for all 
4. Building on what is strong 

 
 Shared priorities 
 
9.19 Insight gathered from the data review, learning from what has happened over 

the last 5 years and feedback from the stakeholder engagement process when 
developing this strategy has identified 6 priorities that we believe can make the 
biggest difference in terms of influencing activity levels. 

 
9.20 Within each of these shared priorities, the strategy proposes the Council and 

focusses it energy and resources on the people and places identified within 
this strategy as being in greatest need.  

 
1. A collective message 
2. Place based working 
3. Better health 
4. Environments 
5. Universal offer  
6. Children and young people 

 
9.21  It is proposed that implementation plans for each priority will be developed in 

due course and that these detail the headline actions we will take with partners 
to deliver the aim of the strategy. These plans will present an opportunity for 
other relevant work streams, strategies and plans to be reflected, helping to 
create a more systemic approach to how all internal services and partners 
positively impact on how likely people are to move more and maintain active 
habits.  

 
 

Page 123



  

10. How we will know if people are moving more 
 
10.1 Learning taken from across the country and what we have experienced locally 

strongly suggests there isn’t a single way to measure whether people are 
moving more. The approaches below have been identified with partners and will 
build up a richer picture of not only the progress being made, but importantly 
which aspects are working, which aren’t and, how we will use this to evolve the 
approach. 

 
• A focus on learning 
• Ongoing review of data 
• Stories of change and case studies 

 
 A focus on learning 
 
10.2  How we learn with partners and understand what contributes to change at 

system, organisational and community level, will be central to how we support 
people to move more.  We will think about learning from the process as well as 
about the change created (whether positive or negative). By bringing together a 
range of approaches we will look at things from as many perspectives as 
possible, to ensure our learning is rich and reflects what is happening between 
organisations and in the community, using this to help inform decision making 
and investment. 

 
 Ongoing review of data 
 
10.3 The Council together with its partners will use a diverse range of population data 

to help explore and understand local needs, particularly where priority groups, 
places and related health conditions are concerned. The ongoing review of 
population level data will be complemented by other more local sources of data 
such as leisure centre, programme and intervention data to inform learning, 
action, quality and the contribution to the overall aim of people moving more we 
are making. 

 
10.4 To help ensure the focus remains on people and places which need it most, we 

will use data to help to observe what change might be occurring over time, 
drawing out patterns and trends which will help us understand what is working, 
not working. Where it is relevant and appropriate to monitor attendances, we 
will do so, but recognise we should only count what needs to be counted. 

 
 Stories of change and case studies 
 
10.5 We will observe what change is happening at system, organisational and 

community level and use stories and case studies to help explain what factors 
have contributed towards that change. This detail will be built from a range of 
perspectives, so that what is collected can help shape collective learning and 
influence our future approach. This approach will bring the work to life, using 
case studies to positively influence others. 

 

Page 124



  

10.6 Future reports containing a summary of the progress made towards delivery of 
the strategy, reflecting the learning, any changes to local data (positive or 
negative) and stories of change will be provided at appropriate milestones.  

 
11. Next steps  
 
11.1 As outlined in section 9.18, implementation plans will be developed once 

approval of the MMHP Strategy is confirmed and this will involve creative 
spaces being organised where a range of partners can collaborate around each 
priority identified in the strategy. Key actions that we collectively need to take 
will be detailed, along with how resources should be allocated or secured, the 
timescales associated to these and any outcome measure that will be captured 
to help demonstrate impact  

 
11.2 Subject to approval, officers will complete further work to finalise the document 

ready for full release, including undertaking a copywriting process, final 
document design and creation (via an external company) of a ‘explainer’ video 
clip/animation, to be used with a range of stakeholders or colleagues to help 
confirm understanding and commitment. 

 
 

Page 125



This page is intentionally left blank



 1 

Move More High Peak 
A movement strategy for the High Peak 

 
Together, our aim is for everyone across the High Peak to move more every day  and 

within this, to provide greater support to those that need it most. 
 
When we say 'we' and 'our', we mean our collective work, including integrated health and 
care, voluntary and community organisations, young people services and education, 
wellbeing, sport, leisure, transport, housing, environment, community safety and planning, 
to name a few. 
 

 
Move More High Peak is our ten year strategy to collectively reimagine how we move more 

every day – from walking and gardening to being active at the gym or playing sport. 
 

This strategy is an evolution of Towards an Active High Peak (2017) and draws on our 
experiences and learning from the intervening years, which includes the exceptional 

circumstances we all found ourselves in during the coronavirus pandemic.  A time when 
some of us found it difficult to maintain our active habits. 

 
Across the High Peak, many of us are fortunate enough to enjoy an active life.  We benefit 

from living in close proximity to beautiful natural environments and parks, our populated 
urban towns are important hubs which connect us, and our vibrant voluntary and 
community sector supports us to keep healthy and active.  For those of us that wish to, 
there are plenty of opportunities to enjoy organised sport and physical activity outdoors and 
from within our leisure centres and sports clubs who play a vital role in helping us to 

maintain our active habits. 
 

But this experience is not the same for us all.  Inequalities exist and persist, and in some 
cases, have been made worse by the pandemic. Whilst working to help people maintain 

active habits, it is these inequalities that we also want to address together through this 
strategy. An unfairness that affects the same groups of people, living in the same places, 

across other outcomes such as health, wealth, and access to services . 
 

These inequalities are intertwined, often feeding off each other, and is why this strategy is 
equally a strategy for reducing health inequalities as it is for reducing inactivity. We may 

experience up to 10 years difference in the number of years we can expect to live in good 
health, dependent on where we live in the High Peak, or dependent on our relative wealth.  
We want to make this basic expectation more equitable across our society and believe that 
supporting us all to move more every day is  an important contributing factor towards 
achieving this.   
 
This is a collaborative strategy that will see partners working closely together and bringing a 

wide range of influences to the work. Together we will use our shared resources to 
proportionately focus on the people and neighbourhoods that experience the greatest 
need, so that we can collectively achieve the greatest impact.  At the same time, we will 
work collectively to sustain and develop the infrastructure and opportunities for people 

Page 127



 2 

who are currently active to remain so, and to make these accessible to more people in the 
High Peak. 
Being active helps more than just individuals. It benefits communities and wider society and 
has a knock-on effect on the economy and the environment. Through our combined effort;  

1. People become healthier, happier, and more fulfilled 

2. Communities are more equal, connected and feel safer 
3. Society is more equal, with empathy, effort and resources being invested in the right 

places 
4. Environments encourage movement, are welcoming, highly valued and are less 

polluted 
 

However, there are lots of challenges that mean some of us are less active than others. By 
understanding these challenges, together we can decide how best to make a difference. 

Shifting all the influences 

The following diagram helps us to think about the many and varied ways in which the whole 

system influences individual behaviour.  Over the past five years, growth in our partnership 
has been engineered by shifting our approach to understand and encompass many more 
influences.  Recognising that if we are to bring about change, greater collaboration is 
needed across the whole system. 

 

  

Individual

Social 
environment

Organisations
and Institutions

Physical 
environment

Policy

Cultural norms 
and mindsets

Adapted from the Socio-Ecological Model by Hayley Lever and Scott Hartley   

Individual capabilities, motivations, opportunities, knowledge, 
needs, behaviours, physical and mental health and wellbeing

Language, myths, metaphors, stories, hierarchy of values, 
know how, assumptions, imagery

International and national guidance and laws, local laws and 
policies, rules, regulations, codes, times and schedules

Built environment, natural environment, green and blue 
spaces, transport networks, homes

Schools, health care, businesses, faith organisations, charities, clubs

Individual relationships, families, support groups, social networks

Page 128



 3 

Identifying the need 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Nearly 7 in 10 adults (67%) across the High Peak are active enough for it to benefit their 
health, which means doing more than 150 minutes of physical activity a week. 
 

More than 2 in 10 adults are inactive (21%)1 across the High Peak, which means doing less 
than 30 minutes of physical activity a week.  And more than 1 in 10 adults are doing no 

physical activity at all in each week (14%).  That’s over 10,000 people, a figure that has risen 
during the pandemic. 

 

 
 
This level of inactivity hides distinct inequalities within different population groups.   

 
For example, among those of us who experience living with a limiting illness or disability, 

four in ten are inactive (40%).  That’s double the population average and two and a half 
times higher than those of us without a limiting illness or disability.   

 
If we live on a lower income, we’re also likely to experience similar inequalities, with more 
than three in ten being inactive (32%).  That’s three times as high as  those of us on higher 
income. 
 
As we age, we become less active, an important factor for the High Peak given our 
increasingly ageing population.  Inactivity levels fluctuate for our older population, they 

currently stand at 24% (more than two in ten), but they have recently been as high as 32% 
(more than three in ten). 

                                                 
1
 Sport England’s Active Lives Survey (Adults) 2020/21 

Our insight tells us that across the High Peak, the greatest need in terms of inactivity is 
evident in these groups: 
 

 People with a limiting illness or disability 
 Older people 

 People and families on lower incomes 
 Children and young people 

 
Through this strategy we will proportionately focus our resources on these groups in 
greatest need, while maintaining opportunities for all. 

Page 129



 4 

 
What is significant about our ageing population, and the reason they are included as a 
priority group, is that there is a great deal of crossover between ageing and experiencing a 
limiting illness or disability. 
 
74% of people with a long-term health condition or disability are aged over 50 years (Census 

2011). And where the three characteristics of ageing, limiting illness or disability and low 

socio-economic status come together, inactivity is likely to be higher still.   
 

 
Where we live makes a difference too.  Inactivity, in parallel with wider health outcomes, 
varies greatly between neighbourhoods across the High Peak and this has been the basis for 

our shared place based working approaches.  The inactivity map below shows clusters of 
neighbourhoods around Glossop, New Mills and Buxton where inactivity is greatest. 

 

Page 130



 5 

 
 

More than half our children and young people are not active enough for it to benefit their 
health and development.2   

Data collection methods and measures for children and young people’s activity levels are 
different to that of adults, and across the High Peak we do not always have a sufficiently 

large enough sample for detailed analysis.  However, our patterns are typically like those 
across Derbyshire, where we know that younger children, (particularly school years 3 and 4), 

and children from lower income families are far less likely to be active.  Within our local 
data we also see fewer girls being active than boys. 
 

 
 

 

                                                 
2
 Due to low sample sizes of High Peak children and young people data, we have combined four years of data 

(ALCYP 2017-2021) to identify groups in the greatest need.   

Page 131



 6 

How the last strategy has helped move us forward 

 
Over the last five years a growing range of partners across the High Peak have been working 
to help ‘all residents lead more active lives. Towards an Active High Peak, provided the 
framework and policy context to shape this work as partners including the Borough Council 
sought to take forward its intentions. Outlined below are some of the key moments that 
helped to take the work of the previous strategy forward and that have provided us with 
learning around what’s needed now. 
 
 

 

 
 

Page 132



 7 

 
 

Page 133



 8 

 
 
  

Page 134



 9 

The experience over the previous five years, including adapting to a global pandemic, has 
impacted and provided learning and value that now underpin Move More High Peak: 

 Partners have invested significantly over the previous 5 years and will continue to do 
so 

 Over £2.3m of external investment secured across High Peak capital projects 
in 2020 and 2021. Over 40 sports clubs have accessed over £260,000 of 
support during the pandemic 

 Significant leisure transformation commitments have been made to review 
council leisure facilities and ensure their provision meets the needs of local 

communities 
 The network of partners has widened and is now connected to a broader range of 

policy areas that are contributing to helping all High Peak residents to move more.  
With voluntary, community and social enterprise partners  at the heart of our place 

based work 
 More resources are being focused on the parts of our community that require more 

support in line with the priority groups and places identified in the last strateg y 
 Investment into place-based approaches have been established at a neighbourhood 

level that have: 
 Brought smaller community organisations and residents into creating the 

change in their communities 
 Provided opportunities for partners across our places to experience 

collaboration around physical activity 
 Secured capacity at a local level to continue to bring partners together in 

these places to drive change 
 Identified characteristics of what a place-based approach may need to look 

like going forward: 
 United around shared goals 
 Working on system change across a place together 
 Proportionately focused on some of the neighbourhoods where need 

is greater. 
 
This learning, along with various engagement opportunities, have helped to shape Move 
More High Peak intentions. These intentions reflect the views of a much broader network of 

partners than was possible for Towards an Active High Peak and will help to take this 
strategy forward over the coming years. 

  

Page 135



 10 

Shared principles (the way we want to act) 
Our strategy is built around a collaborative approach.  We are united around a shared vision 
and are aligning ourselves towards the same shared priorities.  At the heart of this united 
approach are our ways of working and we’ve set out four shared principles for how we 
intend to act. 
 

1. Working and learning together 
2. Being evidence led 
3. Enabling opportunities for all 
4. Building on what is strong 

 
Working and learning together  
 
We will spend time building shared purpose and trusted relationships across the wider 
system including health, planning, regeneration, community safety, education, and 
transport.  We aim for this work to influence and result in the recognition and inclusion of 
movement and physical activity into: 

 
 Strategies and plans of broader partners 

 Commissioning practices that promote people moving more and address 
inequalities 

 Inclusion within funding opportunities (eg Towns Fund, Levelling Up etc) to connect 
movement into wider priorities. 

 
Learning across the last strategy cycle has helped to shape this strategy and the ways in 
which we have evolved different approaches to our work.  We will continue to use our joint 

experiences to learn together and refine those approaches as we go. 
 

We will support community groups, clubs, volunteers and coaches to develop approaches 
and skills that align with collaborative ways of working, so that our collective efforts result in 

a healthier, happier more connected and equal society for everyone across the High Peak. 
 
Being evidence led 
We will use existing and create new insight and learning to develop a deeper understanding 
of people and neighbourhoods across the High Peak.  Our focus will be on identifying and 
working alongside people and places that are most likely to experience greater 
disadvantage, inactivity and poor health outcomes, ensuring our work is empathetic to lived 
experience. 
 
We will do this by: 

 Consistently reviewing data sources, to keep up to date with changes in active 
behaviours of our population, and our health condition prevalence.  
 

 Proactively listening to the voices in our communities we will adapt our approach to 
better meet neighbourhood needs, working alongside residents to help create 
positive change in their place. 

 

Page 136



 11 

 Continually learning from our past and ongoing work, as well as that of others.  We 
will create spaces to share, reflect and collaborate with a wide range of partners, 
and jointly find ways to demonstrate the positive effect of when people and places 
move more.   

 
Enabling opportunities for all 
We will aim to support everyone across the High Peak to access opportunities to be active in 

the way that suits them, but we are acutely aware that not everyone has equal access to 
these opportunities.  This strategy builds a fairer approach, that not only proportionately 

focuses our capacity and resources on the people and neighbourhoods that need it most, 
but also aims to identify and address systemic barriers that may be present. 

 

 
Adapted from original by @CRA1G 

 
Together, a wide range of partners will work collaboratively to align our joint resources so 
that we may collectively achieve the greatest impact.  We will use this strategy to influence 
policy and seek to bring new external investment into the High Peak to enhance the delivery 
of the strategy.  

 
Building on what is strong  

Our place based work will continue to emphasise the assets of people and communities, 
alongside their needs.  We will build on the assets found in these communities and support 

individuals and organisations to come together to realise and develop their strengths.  At 
the heart of this shared approach is people and communities ‘owning’ the change they are 

trying to create by being involved and feeling empowered.  Recognising that everyone and 
every place will have a unique set of skills and capacities, we will facilitate the work to be 

co-produced at neighbourhood level and use our collective influence to remove barriers and 
help make positive change happen. 

 
Across the High Peak we have great strength and relationships across our community and 

voluntary sector.  Driven by local people, their passion and enthusiasm, they provide 
countless opportunities for many of us to be active and this strategy will continue to 

support this work. 
 

Page 137



 12 

Alongside this, we have worked hard to embed our vision of enabling everyone to move 
more every day, within our strategies and plans for leisure, sport, facilities, and parks.  We 
are now well positioned through these strategies to enable investment into our leisure 
centres, community facilities, playing pitches and parks that are so important to people 
moving more. 

 
Shared priorities (the things we want to do) 
Our insight and experiences from our place based working have highlighted some clear 
opportunities and areas of focus, where we believe we can make the biggest difference by 

addressing inequalities and enabling people to move more.  These are cross-cutting 
priorities with interconnecting themes.  It’s complex and we need to understand and 

embrace this.  We’ve set out six shared priorities: 
 

1. A collective message 
2. Place based working 

3. Better health 
4. Environments 
5. Universal offer  

6. Children and young people 
 

Within each of these shared priorities, we will focus our energy and resources on the people 
and places identified within this strategy as being in greatest need. 

 
A collective message  

Together, we will develop a collective voice that publicly unifies our shared approach.  The 
Move More messages will resonate as much within health and care, education and planning 

as they will within leisure facilities or across our work in communities.  We will use this 
shared voice to communicate our actions, our learning, and our progres s. 

 
While the benefits of physical activity for people living with long term health conditions are 

well established, we know that the fear of worsening long term problems commonly stops 
people from moving more and can make many healthcare professionals feel unsure about 

what advice they give.  To help address concerns around risk, we will promote the 
consensus statement: “It is safer for people with long term conditions to be physical active” , 
through our Move More Better Health campaign, to reinforce this message that the benefits 
outweigh the risks.  We will use similar framing for our messaging to encourage older 
people across the High Peak to keep moving.  Our aim will be to shift mindsets among 
organisations and residents around the importance of keeping active as we get older. 
 
We will prioritise establishing shared spaces where our networks come together both at a 
strategic level and in our priority places.  In this way, we aim to nurture collaborative 
working practices around collective messaging and beyond. 
 

Place based working  
We will commit to investing in areas that experience the greatest inequalities, using a place 
based approach to our work and investment that builds on existing strengths.  Prioritising 

Page 138



 13 

places where we have the conditions for change and evidence of need and jointly attracting 
and realigning financial resources and capacity to these communities.  Where we have 
parks, green spaces and leisure facilities, co-design of opportunities within them will be part 
of this work. 
 
Decisions will be informed by place based work in Glossopdale, Buxton and New Mills, 
recognising that each of these places has neighbourhoods with greater need.  We will also 

acknowledge and explore the rural challenges of the Hope Valley area. 
 

At a neighbourhood level, we will continue to find out what matters to individuals and work 
alongside the community and their leaders to enable change, recognising that this may take 

time.  We believe this approach of developing our understanding of people and places will 
help us to change the system to enable people to move more. 

 
Better health  

Move More Better Health is the agreed ‘umbrella brand’ for future collaborative working 
with health colleagues.  This was developed with colleagues from the Clinical 
Commissioning Group (CCG), Public Health and High Peak Place Alliance and will frame the 
work moving forwards, making the offer of support, where movement is concerned, more 
clearly identifiable for practitioners, medical professionals, and local people across the High 
Peak. 
 
We will work to embed movement within integrated health and care systems, ensuring it is 
recognised, prioritised, and supported by healthcare professionals, commissioners, carers, 
and wider community work such as social prescribing, weight management and mental 
health services.  At the same time, supporting the health and care workforce to have 
conversations about moving more.  Where we have leisure facilities, they wil l more closely 
integrate health and leisure opportunities to engage with a far wider audience. 
 
Focusing on the long term health conditions most prevalent across the High Peak, 
particularly hypertension, depression, obesity and diabetes, we will develop targeted work 
to understand how to engage people with long term conditions more effectively and 
demonstrate the preventative and treatment benefits of moving more. This approach of 

identifying the most prevalent conditions was supported by the partners mentioned above 
when agreeing Move More Better Health, and fits with our principle of enabling 

opportunities for all, focusing proportionately more of our capacity and resources on the 
people that need it most.  

 
Environments 

Ensuring our neighbourhoods feel accessible, welcoming, and safe will be the key to 
reducing inequalities, as we know that most physical activity and sport takes place within 

twenty minutes of our homes.  Through our place based work, we will continue to hear local 
perspectives on walking, cycling, access to parks and green space and community facilities, 

particularly through the eyes of people experiencing inequalities and long term health 
conditions. We will also focus on investing in our leisure facilities through an emerging 
leisure transformation plan, ensuring these facilities spaces are more accessible and engage 
priority groups more fairly and effectively than ever before.  

Page 139



 14 

 

We will influence the way housing developments encourage movement, using active design 
principles to make walking and a priority, helping to ensure movement and participation in 
physical activity and sport is designed in and that provision of play, parks and open space is 
invested in appropriately. 
 

We must acknowledge that movement, physical activity and sport have an impact on the 
environment and on climate change, from energy use of our facilities to deciding to walk or 

cycle for that shot journey, instead of taking the car. Through this strategy, we will look to 
minimise environmental impact by encouraging environmentally friendly behaviours , 

sustainable solutions and by investing in infrastructure such as leisure centres to make them 
more energy efficient. 

 
Universal offer 
Maintaining the active habits of adults and children across the High Peak through a 
universal offer will continue to be a focus of this strategy, as it was our last strategy.  We 
know that nearly seven in ten adults and just less than half of children play sport or do 
physical activity in places such as leisure centres, schools, sports clubs, community centres 
and parks and green spaces and it is important that this continues if this group is to 
maintain their active habit. 
 
We will work to ensure these organisations and settings are supported to offer quality 
opportunities based on the needs of the communities they serve.  That facilities are of the 

required quality and where possible, we will encourage and support them to engage with 
priority groups and places we know need more support and access to opportunity. 

 
Investing in the built infrastructure which supports the organisations and places to continue 

to offer these opportunities is crucial and this will happen through strong strategic planning, 
collaboration with national partners, governing bodies of sport, funding bodies and the 

planning system, amongst others. 
 

Children and young people 
Establishing early habits, developing movement skills and enjoying being active is vital for all 

children and young people. We know the earlier these attitudes and behaviours are 
developed and maintained, the more likely they will become a lasting part of people's lives. 

In addition to the physical benefits, the mental health benefits are huge; being active can 
help build self-esteem and resilience and instil a sense of belonging. Being active and 

playing sport also has a role in preventing anti-social behaviour and reducing violence. 

Covid-19 has exacerbated the barriers for young people. Many children and young people 
weren't active enough before the pandemic, and now they are even less so. Young people's 

mental health has also worsened during the pandemic, so we need to look at the role 
physical activity might play in preventing, and treating, poor mental health. 

To understand this better we need to hear from young people themselves. We need to 
understand their motivations, experiences, and challenges and use this to inform work with 
partners.  We will also use this understanding to shape the environments where children 
and young people can be active and redesign the services and opportunities available in 

Page 140



 15 

schools, parks, clubs and community settings. And finally, we need to join the dots between 
schools and the wider neighbourhood to better connect the work being done and to help 
the young people in those communities, in and outside of school. 

Case studies 
 

Place based working delivers outcomes that are community led  
 

Move More Glossop, place based working has been developing relationships and networks 
with community groups and partners across Glossopdale since 2019, using a test and learn 

approach. This work has been able to empower the community to be a partner in future 
activity, enabling strong partnerships to develop and deliver sustainable change. 

 
Young people in the community of Hadfield demonstrated a keen desire for a BMX track – 

building bike tracks and ramps in the woods in Bankswood Park, thus raising concerns for 
their safety and the destruction of the woodland.  Move More Glossop was the mechanism 

with which to support and enable, once an understanding of the strength of support for a 

bike track from within the community could be established. The group of Hadfield residents 
who were keen to be involved in the delivery of this project, mobilised to capture the views 

of local people who supported the idea, obtaining 1,100 signatures in support of the idea. 
 

With this level of backing, Move More Glossop was able to attract external funding via a 
British Cycling bid that was also match funded by the Council and the new track opened in 

the spring of 2022.  The success was in part due to a collaborative bid writing process, 
whereby questions were posted to a local Facebook group for feedback.  As this all 

happened during the pandemic, it made finding communications methods that worked for 
everyone even more important. 

 
Once the funding was secured, the council offered to lead the tender process for a 

contractor to build the track, after offering a location in the Park to site track. Design of the 
track was collaborative and local people who were going to use the track, together with the 

experts who were going to build it, worked together to create a design that worked for 
everyone.   

 
Total cost: £85,000 (£51,000 High Peak BC, £34,000 British Cycling Places to Ride) 
 

 
Residents, community groups and statutory bodies collaborate to open a local green 
space to the Fairfield community 

 
Place based work in Fairfield has been underway since 2018, when the Active4Life Place 
Group set up to empower local people to live a healthy life for as long as possible.  They 
aimed to work towards this goal by bringing together community services providers, local 

authorities, primary care, the voluntary and community sector, and the public. 
 

Page 141



 16 

Very early on, the community voiced their feelings that access to good quality community 
facilities was high on their priorities and yet they felt excluded from using some of the 
existing facilities.   
 
One space generated a lot of attention.  It was a grassed area containing four football 
pitches that was very visible to the community, but not accessible.  The pitches, which were 
owned by Derbyshire County Council and kept well maintained, were fenced off and locked 

when not hired out.  Local people couldn’t understand this. Why was some of this space not 
available to them? 

 
Community engagement findings revealed that young people felt there was nowhere locally 

that they could play outdoor games or have a kick about with friends.  And parents 
remembered fondly how they used to take picnics and spend all day playing on the fields.  

They wanted to be able to do this with their own children, instead of having to get the bus 
to other neighbourhoods with open space. 

 
What followed was an example of collaborative working.  Derbyshire County Council agreed 
to retain three of the football pitches but transfer the fourth to High Peak Borough Council, 
to become a community pitch.  High Peak Borough Council took on the responsibility for 
regular annual maintenance of the pitch and in addition, agreed to install a new section of 
fencing to safeguard the adjacent schools and protect the remaining three pitches.   Then, 
finally, a small part of the existing fencing was removed, and the community were free to 
roam on their newly designated green space. 
 
The green space is now used for kickabouts, picnics, circular walks and the Residents of 
Fairfield Association have bought some games equipment for families to borrow in school 
holidays.  Work continues and a second phase will see further enhancements of the space in 
line with community led designs. 

 
Extra capacity for children and young people, funded collaboratively  
 

A Move More High Peak – Children & Young People Officer has been recruited to help 

deliver, support and coordinate opportunities for young people across High Peak.  This new 
post has come about through partners finding common ground and shared purpose.  

Together, partners including Active Derbyshire, Children’s Services, High Peak Borough 
Council, High Peak CVS, High Peak School Sport Partnership and Public Health have pooled 

funding and resources to create this new post.  Hosted by the voluntary sector, partners 
agree that this new post will enable them all to better meet the needs of young people in 

High Peak. 
 

The specifics of the work will be iterative and evolve through co-design and co-production 
with young people and local partners, however, we know the focus of the work will be on 

the five themes below: 

Page 142



 17 

 
 
Our key learnings so far are that true collaborative working takes time. There are also 
funding and commissioning challenges to overcome by working in a way that aligns and 
pools funding and resources from several places and may not follow usual ‘grant’ 
application processes. This has resulted in several service level agreements between 
organisations, but we hope they are as much about ways of working as they are 

transactional documents.  
 

Despite the time taken and the bureaucratic challenges, those involved in the work are 
engaged and enthused by the approach. It feels different and we are hopeful and excited by 

the prospect of positive outcomes for young people. 

 
How will we know if people are moving more?  
 
We believe there isn’t a single way to measure whether people are moving more.  But 
together, the approaches below will build up a richer picture of not only the progress being 
made, but importantly which aspects are working, which aren’t and, how we are continually 
learning and evolving our approach. 
 
A focus on learning 
 

How we learn together and understand what contributes to change at system, 
organisational and community level, will be central to how we support people to move 

more.  We will think about learning from the process as well as about the change created 
(whether positive or negative).  By bringing together a range of approaches we will look at 

things from as many perspectives as possible, to ensure our learning is rich and reflects 
what is happening between organisations and in the community. 

 
Stories of change and case studies 

 
We will observe what change is happening at system, organisational and community level 

and use stories and case studies to help explain what factors have contributed towards that 
change.  The detail will be built from a range of perspectives, so that what is collected can 

help shape collective learning and influence our future approach.  In this way, we aim to 
bring the work to life, using case studies to positively influence others as to the benefits of 

movement. 

Page 143



 18 

 
Data 
 
We will use a diverse range of population data to help explore and understand local needs, 
particularly where priority groups, places and related health conditions are concerned.  The 
ongoing review of population level data will be complemented by other more local sources 
of data such as leisure centre, programme and intervention data to inform learning around 

their reach, quality and contribution to the overall aim of people moving more. 
 

To help ensure our focus remains on the people and places which need it most, we will use 
data to help to observe what changes might be occurring over time, drawing out patterns 

and trends which will help us understand what is working, not working, not working or what 
is changing.  Where it is relevant and appropriate to monitor attendances, we will do so, but 

recognise we should only count what needs to be counted. 
 

Join us and get behind our shared goal - what’s your role? 
 

Together, our aim is for everyone across the High Peak to move more every day and 
within this, to provide greater support to those that need it most. 

 
Achieving our vision will take a collective effort from individuals, communities and 

organisations across the borough.  A challenge that requires us all to think differently, act 
boldly and recognise the role we have to play. 

 
Is this the first time you’ve heard about Move More High Peak? 

 
 Why not share this strategy with colleagues and discuss how your organisation 

could get involved? 

 
What can you do to help make a positive change happen?   

 
 Why not help us shape implementation plans for the priorities within the strategy as 

we work to bring our shared vision to life. 
 

 Share your ideas with us at movemore@highpeak.gov.uk 
 

 
 

 
 

Page 144

mailto:movemore@highpeak.gov.uk


Document is Restricted

Page 145

Agenda Item 11
By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.



This page is intentionally left blank



Document is Restricted

Page 147

Agenda Item 12
By virtue of paragraph(s) 1 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.



This page is intentionally left blank



Document is Restricted

Page 153

Agenda Item 13
By virtue of paragraph(s) 1 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.



This page is intentionally left blank



Document is Restricted

Page 185

Agenda Item 14
By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.



This page is intentionally left blank



Document is Restricted

Page 205

By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.



This page is intentionally left blank



Document is Restricted

Page 219

Agenda Item 15
By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.



This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	3 To approve the minutes of the previous meeting
	4 Revised Local Council Tax Reduction Scheme
	5 First Quarter Financial, Procurement & Performance Review 2022/23
	Appendix A
	Appendix B
	Appendix C

	6 East Midlands Devolution Deal
	Appendix A

	8 Joint Procurement Strategy 2022-25
	Appendix 1

	9 Refreshed Sport and Physical Activity Strategy
	Appendix A

	11 To approve the exempt minutes of the previous meeting
	12 Application for write off of non- recoverable debts
	13 New Staff Pay Grade Structure
	14 Proposals for the Delivery of the DFG Programme
	Appendix 1

	15 Leisure Facilities Improvement Plan and Operating Model Proposals

